
PLANNING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 10, 2015

6:00 PM

AGENDA

6:00 PM CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL
Marta McGuire - Chair Jerry Greenfield - Vice Chair Peter Hurley
Al Levit Phyllis Millan
Eric Postma Simon Springall City Council Liaison Charlotte Lehan

6:05 PM PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

6:10 PM CITIZEN'S INPUT
This is the time that citizens have the opportunity to address the Planning Commission 
regarding any item that is not already scheduled for a formal Public Hearing tonight.  

Therefore, if any member of the audience would like to speak about any Work Session 
item or any other matter of concern, please raise your hand so that we may hear from 
you now.

6:15 PM CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORT

6:20 PM CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES

A. Draft May 13, 2015 PC Minutes

May 13 2015 PC Minutes.pdf

6:25 PM WORK SESSIONS

A. Frog Pond Area Plan Update
Note: Additional documentation referenced in Attachment B: April  2015 community survey results  is 

posted at: Http://Www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/636/Maps -Documents  under "Online Survey 
Results".

June 10 2015 Frog Pond PC Staff Report And Attachments.pdf, 
Att F. Citizen Input April 6 - June 2 2015.Pdf

B. Transportation Performance Modeling - Preliminary Look

Transportation Performance Modeling Note.pdf

8:40 PM INFORMATIONAL

A. Basalt Creek Concept Plan Update

8:50 PM OTHER BUSINESS

A. 2015 Planning Commission Work Program

2015 PC Work Program June.pdf

9:00 PM ADJOURNMENT

Time frames for agenda items are not time certain.

Public Testimony

The Commission places great value on testimony from the public.  People who want to testify are 

encouraged to:

l Provide written summaries of their testimony

l Recognize that substance, not length, determines the value of testimony

l Endorse rather than repeat testimony of others

Thank you for taking the time to present your views.

For further information on Agenda items, call Linda Straessle, Planning Administrative Assistant, at (503) 
570-1571 or e-mail her at straessle@ci.wilsonville.or.us .

Assistive Listening Devices (ALD) are available for persons with impaired hearing and can be 
scheduled for this meeting.

The City will also endeavor to provide the following services, without cost, if requested at least 48 

hours prior to the meeting:

*Qualified sign language interpreters for persons with speech or hearing impairments

*Qualified bilingual interpreters.

To obtain services, please call the Planning Administrative Assistant at (503) 682-4960

I.

II.

III.

IV.

V.

Documents:

VI.

Documents:

Documents:

VII.

VIII.

Documents:

IX.

http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/636/Maps-Documents


PLANNING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 10, 2015

6:00 PM

AGENDA

6:00 PM CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL
Marta McGuire - Chair Jerry Greenfield - Vice Chair Peter Hurley
Al Levit Phyllis Millan
Eric Postma Simon Springall City Council Liaison Charlotte Lehan

6:05 PM PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

6:10 PM CITIZEN'S INPUT
This is the time that citizens have the opportunity to address the Planning Commission 
regarding any item that is not already scheduled for a formal Public Hearing tonight.  

Therefore, if any member of the audience would like to speak about any Work Session 
item or any other matter of concern, please raise your hand so that we may hear from 
you now.

6:15 PM CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORT

6:20 PM CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES

A. Draft May 13, 2015 PC Minutes

May 13 2015 PC Minutes.pdf

6:25 PM WORK SESSIONS

A. Frog Pond Area Plan Update
Note: Additional documentation referenced in Attachment B: April  2015 community survey results  is 

posted at: Http://Www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/636/Maps -Documents  under "Online Survey 
Results".

June 10 2015 Frog Pond PC Staff Report And Attachments.pdf, 
Att F. Citizen Input April 6 - June 2 2015.Pdf

B. Transportation Performance Modeling - Preliminary Look

Transportation Performance Modeling Note.pdf

8:40 PM INFORMATIONAL

A. Basalt Creek Concept Plan Update

8:50 PM OTHER BUSINESS

A. 2015 Planning Commission Work Program

2015 PC Work Program June.pdf

9:00 PM ADJOURNMENT

Time frames for agenda items are not time certain.

Public Testimony

The Commission places great value on testimony from the public.  People who want to testify are 

encouraged to:

l Provide written summaries of their testimony

l Recognize that substance, not length, determines the value of testimony

l Endorse rather than repeat testimony of others

Thank you for taking the time to present your views.

For further information on Agenda items, call Linda Straessle, Planning Administrative Assistant, at (503) 
570-1571 or e-mail her at straessle@ci.wilsonville.or.us .

Assistive Listening Devices (ALD) are available for persons with impaired hearing and can be 
scheduled for this meeting.

The City will also endeavor to provide the following services, without cost, if requested at least 48 

hours prior to the meeting:

*Qualified sign language interpreters for persons with speech or hearing impairments

*Qualified bilingual interpreters.

To obtain services, please call the Planning Administrative Assistant at (503) 682-4960

I.

II.

III.

IV.

V.

Documents:

VI.

Documents:

Documents:

VII.

VIII.

Documents:

IX.

mailto:straessle@ci.wilsonville.or.us
http://or-wilsonville.civicplus.com/a56806db-169b-459e-8e01-9d0442d7d184


 
 

 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION  
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 10, 2015 

 
 

 

 

 

V. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES 

A. Consideration of the May13, 2015 Planning Commission 
minutes 

  



Planning Commission Page 1 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 13, 2015 

6:00 P.M. 

Wilsonville City Hall 
29799 SW Town Center Loop East 

Wilsonville, Oregon 

Minutes 

I. CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL    
Chair McGuire called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  Those present: 

Planning Commission: Marta McGuire, Eric Postma, Peter Hurley, Phyllis Millan, and Jerry Greenfield. Al Levit 
Simon Springall and City Councilor Charlotte Lehan were absent. 

City Staff: Chris Neamtzu, Barbara Jacobson, Stan Sherer, and Nancy Kraushaar 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

III. CITIZEN’S INPUT - This is an opportunity for visitors to address the Planning Commission on items not
on the agenda.  

Lori Loen, Wagner St, Wilsonville, OR, asked that the Planning Commission revise and reconsider the Frog 
Pond Plan. She had written letters and testified to the Council, and all of a sudden, there was all of this 
energy from the neighborhood; petitions were going around and at least 75 to 80 people attended a 
meeting at Sandelie Golf Course. Everyone was asking everyone else to gather together to speak in favor of 
larger lots. The residents hoped the City could provide the community with lots larger than 9,000 sq ft, which 
was nice, but even 10,000 and 15,000 sq ft lots. There were very few home sites in Wilsonville. She has 
been a real estate broker since 1991 and had people who wanted single-level homes and families that 
wanted larger homes; so many people who had nowhere to move up to. Wilsonville’s move-up market was 
West Linn, because no larger, newer homes on larger lots exist in Wilsonville. 
 The apartment situation was another issue. She had buyers who wanted to leave Lake Oswego and move

to a really nice community. The homes were in the $800,000s, but the buyer said they did not want to 
look in Wilsonville anymore because there were too many apartments. Those things were impacting the 
people examining and considering moving into the community. Wilsonville had 54 percent apartments, 
which was not okay with her as a homeowner in the city.  

 She was hoping for lower density, fewer apartments, and larger lot sizes.

Chair McGuire said she assumed others would be providing input on Frog Pond, and she appreciated and 
valued the fact that residents are investing their time to provide comment to the Commission, which the 
Commission welcomed. She noted it was important that the residents come out for the public hearing on the 
actual plan, because giving feedback when the Commission was having a formal discussion about approving 
the plan was critical. There was a real impact when the residents were present during the actual public 
hearings and could respond to the Commission’s discussion. She asked Staff if a public hearing had been 
scheduled for Frog Pond at this point. 

Chris Neamtzu, Planning Director, provided an update on the Frog Pond Area Plan with these comments: 
 The survey results on the draft concept plan were recently compiled and would be posted by the end of

the week about which Staff would send out an email blast. A very interesting mix of input was received 
from about 180 respondents. Staff tried to make the Survey Monkey outputs more graphically 

DRAFT



Planning Commission  Page 2 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

appealing so they were easier to read. Staff also did some summary analysis and different statistical 
exercises that would be the basis of a Planning Commission work session in June. 

 The project staff team was working on a number of things to be responsive to the input, including some of 
the concerns Ms. Loen raised. Staff would be returning with a couple alternative land use plans that show 
different variations in lot sizes, some larger lot sizes, and other adjustments. Staff would also be coming 
forward with the infrastructure analysis, the cost of onsite and offsite infrastructure, which was always a 
very important part of concept plans. They would be having policy discussions around a wide variety of 
topics that are very specifically related to the input that has been provided. 

 He believed the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) decision being delayed by Metro afforded the City the 
time needed to be thoughtful and to continue to work through these issues in a methodical way. 

 No public hearing was scheduled, but work sessions were anticipated with the Council toward the end of 
June or beginning of July. Depending on how all that went, there could be hearings in August with the 
Planning Commission. If the Council wanted more work, more analysis, or additional information, the 
schedule could slide and be delayed. 

 He clarified that at this point, the Concept Plan did not include any apartments. 
 
Chair McGuire believed both the Planning Commission and City Council had received the message loud and 
clear with regard to apartments. The Commission had actually had a lengthy discussion about the apartments 
at the last work session and pulled them from the Frog Pond Area Plan. The Commission had also discussed 
the larger density lots, but there was a balance at this point with some of the larger scale lots. From some of 
the comments, the Commission was looking at additional, bigger sized lots. 
 
Ava Mieher, 28497 SW Meadows Lp, Wilsonville, OR, stated her family has lived in the Wilsonville area 
since the mid-1980s, and she had been a homeowner on Meadows Loop since 1996. She wanted to speak to 
some things she had noticed in the community that had changed recently. 
 She was greatly concerned about what was happening with the schools and the amount of incoming 

population that she described as somewhat transient, for lack of a better word. It seemed to be 
temporary housing for people who were moving on. As that has happened, it has affected the schools. 
The schools were getting very populated, and the quality of education had dropped. 

 She recently had a relative with a young, growing family move back to Oregon from out-of-state and 
she really hoped the relative would reside in Wilsonville. The relative had recently looked at the schools, 
which she had not revisited recently because her children had moved on, but her relative refused to move 
to Wilsonville due to concerns about the schools, and because she was looking for somewhere she could 
continue her family and then be able to stay in the community. Her relative noted that she did not see in 
her scope and where she was going with her life goals that could happen in Wilsonville. She had heard 
such things from people other than her relative. 

 With regard to larger lots, she would describe her home as a beginner's family in the neighborhood. She 
did not have a large family, so she had no need to move. However, several families within her community 
had looked for something larger that would allow their children to go outside and play in the yard with 
their friends. The comfort of going down the street to the park was not there anymore. Being able to 
have other children come over was a great asset she had when her children were in school, and it really 
created a community environment. She was able to intermingle with her neighbors, meet people, create a 
bond, and the community grew. Some of those people were still in the community. Some had moved out 
for the lack of another place to move that was less than 5 or 20 acres. There had to be an in between.  

 She concluded that she wanted to reemphasize Ms Loen’s comments. 
 
Dean Sprecher, 5696 SW Advance Rd, Wilsonville, OR, said he lived right along the line of the proposed 
UGB. He moved to this area in 1966, and remembered his dad saying that someday Portland was going to 
be all the way out to Wilsonville, and the family laughed. He had lived in this area most all of his life. He 
had moved to Portland for a short time and, basically, could not stand it. About 11 years ago, he bought an 
acre and a half. This town has changed considerably; he remembered when there was nothing but fields from 
that intersection all the way out. 
 He saw the apartments as a burden. Just like Ms. Mieher said, there were a lot of people that just move 

in and out. He understood there had to be housing for those types of people, but the 56 percentage 



Planning Commission  Page 3 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

number was way too much. He understood the Commission had already said no more apartments, but he 
was completely against any of the row houses and any lots with eight houses on one acre. He believed it 
was absolutely horrible that the City would even consider something like that.  

 Frog Pond was kind of a rural area. He had lived around here all his life. His family had moved back to 
Wilsonville because he and his wife heard Wilsonville had great schools. His daughter had attended a 
private school in Portland. He had to pull his daughter out of school and had to put her in a private 
school because of the problems the school was having, and he would have to do the same thing with his 
son, which was just really horrible. 
 He was told that the number of free lunches had doubled or tripled over the last ten years. He knows 

people who actually had jobs or worked for cash, and made plenty of money because they could 
afford property, but their kids got free lunches at school. He was just kind of fed up with the whole 
thing on how this was proposed. 

 He did not believe the City needed any trails in the big plan for Frog Pond. The plan showed that there 
would be a natural trail right down his driveway if he were to ever sell. He would never, ever sell his 
property if the plan being proposed right now was approved. He would figure out some way so that his 
property never went into the plan, and he was looking at trying to buy some adjoining property from 
one of his neighbors. 

 The idea that the City could turn this into some little suburb and make it a little miniature Portland or a 
bedroom community where people were just stacked in there was just a horrible idea. That was where he 
stood.  

 
Doris Wehler, 6855 SW Boeckman Rd, Wilsonville, OR, stated she was a member of the Frog Pond Task 
Force and lived within the West Frog Pond area. A year ago the Frog Pond Task Force held its first meeting 
and did a dot exercise. Three things stood out above all of the other dots: do something new and different in 
the city; build homes on one-quarter to one-half acre lots; safe trails and roads that connect different parts 
of the neighborhoods, and neighborhoods with character using quality materials and designs, not uniform 
subdivisions. So far, the plan met the request for safe trails and roads, but was a bit short on the request for 
the rest. The number of units and lots sizes bears no resemblance at all to what the property owners and 
neighbors requested to begin with. 
 She intended to give the Commission the statistics on the lot sizes, how many units, etc., but after listening 

to Staff's update, she believed they might change. However, as planned now, Frog Pond would be 
considerably more dense than Meadows, which was right across the street from West Frog Pond. 

 The City already provided a range of diverse housing options. There was diversity in Villebois, smaller 
units on Canyon Creek, and certainly enough apartments. The City did not have homes on large lots 
where kids could play in the yards, people could have gardens, a three-car garage if they wanted, or 
even a footprint for a large house. 

 She knew the Commission would be considering these things at the public hearing and she was sure there 
would be plenty of people to testify at that time. 

 
Dorothy Von Eggers, 6567 SW Stratford Ct, Wilsonville, OR, President, Landover Homeowners Association, 
stated she was testifying with regard to the Frog Pong development. The Landover subdivision bordered all 
three Frog Pond properties, the South, West and East Neighborhoods. She noted that as of today, the survey 
results were posted online. The reason the citizens were coming together before the Planning Commission now 
was to bring the Commission their ideas about the plan before the Commission approved the plan.  
 She wanted to appeal to the Planning Commission to look at the comments on the April 2015 survey. She 

saw her comment online, so she knew it was definitely the most recent survey.  
 She has also gone door-to-door in Landover and Arbor Crossing, and every single resident was against 

high density. When this many residents were against high density and wanted large homes and large 
lots, she appealed to the Planning Commission to please listen to the residents. 

 
Traci Sprecher, 5696 SW Advance Rd, Wilsonville, OR, said she agreed with the comments made by Mr. 
Sprecher. 
 



Planning Commission  Page 4 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

Chair McGuire thanked the residents who came to the meeting and provided feedback to the Planning 
Commission. The Commission appreciated it and looked forward to the continued discussions this summer, and 
she hoped that the residents would return. 
 
IV. CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORT 
No City Council liaison report was presented due to Councilor Lehan’s absence. 
 
V. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES 

 
A. Consideration of the April 8, 2015 Planning Commission minutes 

The April 8, 2015 Planning Commission minutes were approved 4 to 0 to 1 as presented with Phyllis Millan 
abstaining. 

  
VI. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A. Memorial Park Master Plan (Stan Sherer, Parks Director and Walker Macy)  

 
Chair McGuire read the conduct of hearing format and called for the Staff report. 
 
Chris Neamtzu, Planning Director, stated that City's Parks and Recreation Director Stan Sherer and Mike 
Zilas, a landscape architect with Walker Macy, had been working on the Memorial Park Master Plan for 
over a year now, and there had been quite a bit of robust public involvement, including both online and in-
person open houses.  
 The Planning Commission had a work session and received a comprehensive presentation about the site 

plan last month that had been turned into a Master Plan for the Commission's review. Cost estimates were 
now included that were not in the previous packet. There were also some priorities and groupings of 
projects according to common high-priority, medium-priority, and long-term priority. Master plans were 
often looked at as 20-year documents. Memorial Park was Wilsonville’s most important and significant 
park, and it was cherished by residents and people who visit the community, so the Master Plan was an 
important piece of work. 

 He entered the following exhibits into the record: 
 Exhibit A: Memorial Park Master Plan, which was provided in the meeting packet. 
 Exhibit B: Email dated May 7, 2015, from Elaine Swyt, providing input on a proposed improvement 

being added to the Memorial Park Master Plan. 
 He noted Mr. Sherer would go through another presentation this evening, noting the Commission would 

receive public testimony about the Memorial Park Master Plan and hopefully forward the Master Plan to 
City Council for a work session on May 18, 2015 and public hearing on June 1, 2015. 

 
Stan Sherer, Parks Director, stated this project was initially launched because certain elements within the 
existing facilities at Memorial Park were definitely in need of rehabilitation. In addition, it was an effort to 
keep up with the increasing demand for recreation services in the community. It was critical to the community 
throughout that public involvement process that there be a balance of passive and active recreation 
opportunities within the park, and he believed that had been accomplished with this plan. A couple of the 
items the Planning Commission raised during the work session last month had been addressed, including 
having multipurpose courts, as opposed to the number of pickle ball courts originally proposed, that could be 
used for either tennis or pickle ball. A basketball element was also added to the center of the park to 
accommodate the Commission's wishes. He agreed those were very good suggestions. 
 
Mike Zilas, Walker Macy, presented the Memorial Park Master Plan via PowerPoint with these additional 
comments: 
 Memorial Park is a highly used park that served many of the park amenities people look for within the 

City’s system, including both passive and active recreation. 



Planning Commission  Page 5 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

 He described the very robust stakeholder and public process, noting the process resulted in a similar set 
of requests. One key request was a need for safety and security on the edges of the park and buffers to 
the neighbors, which were incorporated in the plan. 
 The results of the public survey revealed that the highest use right now was sports fields, which was 

followed by specific family-related items like the playgrounds, water feature, and that sort of thing. 
 River access was desired. A variety of methods to provide access were tested and within the 

discussion groups consensus was reached about the need for visual access and better light watercraft 
access, but protecting the forested edge. 

 From this outreach, three plans were produced that considered a variety of different uses and further 
comments were received about the level of development people were seeking. Again, balancing 
active and passive uses and protecting the park’s edges were high priorities. 

 Memorial Park had a variety of uses within its 126 acres, and the Master Plan retained many of the uses 
related to sports and picnic shelters, and addressed improvements and some adjustments of areas on the 
west and some significant changes on the east of the park. 
 Access was a major conversation with everyone. One recommendation was to mark the entries more 

clearly and connect the circulation system within the park in an improved manner, and identify and 
build better parking lots. Many parking areas were informal right now, impacting the landscape. 

 Trails were highly used. The City heard from a wide variety of people that use the trails on a regular 
basis, and the plan not only improved trails, but extended them.  
 A connection was proposed for a regional trail coming from Wilsonville Road, which was 

indicated by the purple dashed line on Slide 14; other major trails were shown in red. Input was 
received that residents wanted to connect by means other than just vehicles, so this provided 
pedestrian and bicycle access, as well as a nice loop system that people could use as they walk 
around the park.  

 People were very interested in how far they could walk to track their daily exercise. One-mile 
and two-mile loops were included in the Master Plan, as well as a variety of smaller trails that 
connected uses within the park. 

 The environment was a major component of the park, and a lot of work had been done by City Staff 
and volunteers over the past decade plus on the parks many beautiful, natural areas. The Master 
Plan protected those areas, and in some cases expanded them. The environmental context of the 
park in the Master Plan was the forested areas below Murase Park as well as along the river; the 
riparian area along Beckman Creek; and the addition of a natural meadow and wet meadow 
environments to the northeast. There was a lot of discussion about the impact of active recreation on 
these environmental areas, so the yellow zones, shown on Slide 19, stayed clear of the key 
environmental areas. 

 During the public process, it was helpful to divide the Master Plan into four areas, which he reviewed as 
follows: 
 Murase Plaza, at the top of the hill along Wilsonville Road, was the newest portion of the park and 

a highly-prized area that was very visually accessible, so it was really the identifying element of the 
park today as people travel through the city. The proposal was to improve Murase Plaza by 
providing additional seating along the fountain, improving the amphitheater connecting the regional 
trail, making other connections down through the park, and improving accessibility to the existing 
barn. Mr. Sherer and his staff were also improving the playgrounds and other facilities. 

 In the west area, there were many conversations about tournament fields and the ability for the park 
to accommodate uses. The proposal would improve the sports fields with both synthetic turf and 
natural turf so they could be used throughout the year; increase the base pad length, so different 
users could use the ball fields; and add a variety of hard courts, including pickle ball and the shared 
sports court Mr. Sherer mentioned. One of the hard court areas would be covered.  
 Based on discussions with the Commission, some basketball shooting areas were added at the 

north and south ends of the park’s west area.  
 To the southwest, a new parking lot was proposed, as well as new restrooms and an expansion 

of the play area, which was well-loved. The play area would be improved with expanded play 



Planning Commission  Page 6 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

abilities to establish a nature-based play area where kids could have fun in the woods. (Slide 
26) 

 The existing barn above the sports fields currently used for maintenance would be renovated 
into a picnic shelter. A consultant looked at revenue generation and the use of spaces in the park, 
and picnic shelters are highly used. Renovating the barn into a leasable picnic shelter would be a 
good investment; the maintenance facilities would be relocated to Murase Park, adjacent to the 
others. 

 There were lots of conversations about the amount of activity on the riverfront. The proposal would 
maintain most of the forest, provide views to the water, and improve the boat access. Slide 29 
showed the proposed overlook areas. Improvements would be made the main river trail and the 
shelter. 
 A lot of people were interested in light water craft use, so the gravel driveway could be used 

and managed to allow additional access to the boat dock. In the future, there could be a 
concession area, perhaps, where boats could be rented. Once the City had jurisdiction of the 
dock in the coming years, improvements would be made to allow better access for light water 
craft.  

 The existing river shelter would remain in place and the landscape and connections to it would 
be improved. Few people know about the existing shelter to the east because of the berm and 
grading, so the suggestion was to remove that berm so the shelter was safer and more easily 
accessed, to increase use of the shelter. 

 A number of features would be located in the east area of the park that would balance different 
recreational needs and meet some new ones. Improvements included formalizing parking in the area, 
which had been lacking, adding a restroom area, and moving the skate spot over to the east area. 
Based on input from the community, a bicycle skills course would be added where people could work 
on a variety of mountain biking skills.  
 In the open area to the south, the dog area would be relocated to the north to create a nine-hole 

disc golf course that would be heavily planted and have a variety of trails for people to use as 
part of the connections through and to the park. The relocated off-leash dog area would be the 
same size as it was today with similar facilities.  

 In addition, the community garden would be moved slightly to the east to allow it to get better 
sun. Right now, the riparian vegetation was protecting the creek, but also shading the garden, so 
the suggestion was to slide it to the east.  

 Further to the east was an open meadow that was a leased property that the City was now 
managing. The meadow was often wet during the year, and people enjoy walking through 
meadow areas, birding, and that sort of thing. A circulation system was suggested in this area, 
but very much an open, passive zone. 

 The priorities for the improvements are: 
 Phase 1 was to prepare the east side of the park by moving the dog area and garden, and 

allowing some of the lower-cost improvements to occur, such as the disc golf and bicycle skills course, 
and improving the circulation and parking. 

 Phase 2 would involve making significant changes to the ball fields as a contiguous portion of work, 
rather than doing one field at a time, which would really help the sports groups.  

 Phase 3 involved many priorities throughout the park, including the trail systems. 
 
Commissioner Hurley: 
 Noted one item not mentioned but discussed at the prior Planning Commission meeting was doing all 

synthetic turf fields. The Commission was told that it was a budget issue; other budget issues were added 
in the plan but no additional synthetic turf and it was not addressed.  
 Mr. Sherer responded that during the public process, one of the conceptuals had all four fields being 

synthetic and there was some pushback because of the multi-purpose use of the park associated with 
nonathletic events. During that process, comments were made that grass certainly had its place as far 
as the special event activities, such as Easter egg hunts. Staff believed initially that it was a nice 



Planning Commission  Page 7 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

balance between the increased programmability that synthetic gives, and then, since the park was 
used for multiple activities, to leave the turf on the west and south sides. 

 Asked what percentage of the total park would go synthetic; from the map, it looked like about 5 
percent. There was land to the north and to the east for Easter egg hunts and tents with shelters and 
everything. It did not make a lot of sense to him, especially considering it was revenue-generating. If 
improvements were going to be made, the City should do it right. About six different uses are used for 
those fields throughout all twelve months. He had not taken his children to the Easter egg hunt, but he 
could see a lot of good places to do an Easter egg hunt that was not on a softball field.   
 Mr. Sherer noted none of the proposed projects were currently funded, which was a discussion Staff 

would need to have with City Council. Different funding options were being considered, whether 
strictly from the General Fund, incrementally through the CIP projects, or possibly through some sort 
of general obligation bond. Staff was going through a survey process right now for the aquatics 
center and one alternative that would be presented to the respondents was to include improvements 
to Memorial Park in with another bond. This was based on some of the input received from the 
consultants that including improvements to Memorial Park could certainly broaden the base of 
support for a bond question. Those were the only real alternatives and, of course, the solicitation of 
grants. Certainly, when it came time to allocate funds to the Master Plan, the option of additional 
synthetic turf could be represented. 

 Reminded that at the last meeting, Staff said there were still plans for the skateboard park across from 
City Hall, so the $250,000 seemed like a lot when another skateboard park was already planned.  
 Mr. Sherer replied the cost estimate for the skateboard park, for which Staff had just completed the 

planning process, was in excess of $800,000. Replacing the existing skateboard park in Memorial 
Park made sense on an interim basis. If both parks existed, there was certainly the demand for 
service where both could be successful. Quite honestly, the skateboard park across from City Hall 
was another project that was totally unfunded. City Council funded the design element, but it would 
have to be a community effort, partnering with the City, in order to make it a reality. 

 Noted the cost of $85,000 for moving the community garden.   
 Mr. Sherer replied a lot of that cost was fencing.  
 Mr. Zilas added it was also soil preparation, as improving the soil had occurred over the years as 

requested by the citizens who use the garden.  
 Mr. Sherer explained that community garden users pay different prices based on use of a raised 

bed or flat bed, but it was about $30 to $35 a year, which was included in the revenue projections. 
 Commented if the city had one-acre lots a community garden would not be needed. 
 
Commissioner Postma noted Page 28 of 102 incorrectly identified the regions of the park.  
 He appreciated that more basketball courts were added to avoid the risk of the courts being exclusive, 

but also recalled mentioning that sand volleyball courts had the same problem; adults were playing and 
children were left standing on the side holding the volleyball. Considering the relatively small cost, he 
believed adding another sand volleyball court at a cost of $9,500 was an excellent idea compared to 
the $500,000 for pickle ball courts. Like the basketball court, a single volleyball court becomes very 
exclusive, resulting in an even bigger problem than if nothing was provided. 

 He shared some of Commissioner Hurley’s concerns and was a bit troubled to see the City expending 
several hundred thousand dollars to essentially move an existing amenity to a new spot. He understood it 
was inevitable to some degree, but in a budget conscious era, it would be a bit tougher for everybody 
to swallow. Maybe there was no solution considering the topography and what the City had to work 
with, but he believed it was something the Commission should consider. He understood this was a Master 
Plan and nothing was defined in stone, so maybe those things could be addressed in the future. Going 
forward, the Commission might want to consider whether or not to spend money to move features the City 
already had. 

 He also agreed with the synthetic courts, which make a very big difference. There was clearly an 
appetite for synthetic courts and if more existed, the City’s would increase its opportunities for revenue. 
He knew it was an expensive option, which it was something to keep in mind going forward. 



Planning Commission  Page 8 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

 He noted the $500,000 for pickle ball courts. He understood pickle ball was a growing sport, but it was 
also still a fringe sport. The first option that came to the Commission had one basketball court and eight 
or nine pickle ball courts, which was a bit tough to explain to a community with kids who play basketball 
versus an up and coming sport. He questioned whether the City expected pickle ball to be revenue 
generating or some public/private partnership could be expected to create these sorts of things. He 
noted that covering some courts was a new introduction, but the City did not have covered tennis courts, 
basketball courts, or other courts. The City was now proposing covering this new pickle ball court at a 
pretty high expense and it had not even been tested in this community, which concerned him a little bit. 

 
Commissioner Greenfield: 
 Asked for clarification regarding Figure 11. Ball Field and Shelter Time of Use shown on Page 29 of 

102.  
 Mr. Zilas explained Figure 11 showed the weeks and times of use throughout the year. In July, for 

example, looking vertically, the ball fields, soccer fields and shelters were all being used. He 
confirmed the white space indicated the field or shelter was not used and that there was no 
particular significance to the color coding, only to make it legible. 

 Recalled there was an environmental reason for moving the community gardens, possibly about shade.  
 Mr. Zilas confirmed the western portion of the existing garden was getting shaded out and would be 

moved. People growing vegetables said they were not getting enough sun on that space, so the 
proposal was to leave some plots and shift others to the east. It was not simply an arbitrary design 
move.  

 Commissioner Postma understood there were reasons for moving some things. This was a shade and 
location issue for the community garden, but shade was not an issue for the off-leash dog area, which 
was also being moved. 

 Said he had heard or read recently about health and safety concerns for children related to synthetic 
turf and asked if that issue had been researched.  
 Mr. Sherer answered yes, noting the end result of the studies he read was that the risk was minimal, 

if at all. Today’s infill synthetic turfs were not the same as the initial versions; instead of running on a 
carpet, one actually ran on the infield between the fibers, so those things had been modified and 
advanced in implementation and impact on use. 

 Was pleased to see the location of the additional basketball hoops, and appreciated that that team 
took that into account. Overall, he was very pleased with the design. The team had done a really terrific 
job. He walked particularly the eastern part of the Riverfront the other day, imagining what it could be 
like, and it needed the improvement. If it could be done without significantly changing the general 
ambience, as he believed the Master Plan would, it would be very welcomed.  

 Asked if there was any projection or timeline for the phasing in a best possible scenario.  
 Mr. Sherer answered no; until a funding source was identified, there was just no way to anticipate 

when any of the phases could be initiated. The theory behind the phasing was that the City could do 
the relatively less expensive items initially and do the moving around to accommodate the 
improvements farther to the south on the east side, and then address the more active play area all at 
one time for economy of scale, instead of staging and unstaging. When those improvements would 
be initiated was dependent on the City’s ability to secure funding. 

 
Commissioner Millan: 
 Clarified that pickle ball was replacing tennis for the baby boomers, whose knees were not what they 

used to be.  
 Noted access to the river was one of the guiding principles, but that improvement was toward the end of 

the phasing. She understood about economy of scale, in terms of shifting where the dog park area etc., 
but asked why river access was relegated to the end of the plan when one complaint for years in the 
community has been the lack of access, use, or even advocating that people use the river. Some people 
do not even know there is a river in Wilsonville.  
 Chair McGuire asking if guiding principles were used to determine how the different projects were 

phased other than major elements need to be moved before other work was done.  



Planning Commission  Page 9 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

 Mr. Sherer replied a lot of the phasing was based on current demand and current uses. According to 
the 617 respondents to the comprehensive survey, the most active uses in the park were the sports 
fields, which he believed accounted for 55 percent of the total use in the park. Ideally, if the funding 
was available at one time, no phasing would be necessary. He agreed having some outlook areas in 
the early part of the phasing process was a good point. 

 Noted the river picnic shelter was very highly used and had to be booked almost a year or more in 
advance. The other alternatives were the forest shelter and turning the barn into a picnic area, but again, 
those improvements were lower priorities. These were features people really liked to use and were also 
revenue generating. Perhaps the team would want to consider where the renovation of that barn comes 
from. She asked if the barn would be more open air or a closed-in type of structure.  
 Mr. Sherer replied the reason the barn was so far down on the phasing list was because it was 

currently used for storage of park maintenance equipment. Until the maintenance yard could be 
relocated, the barn was needed for its current use.  
 The phasing was not an easy thing to determine, but was done based on current demand for 

services. Currently, the forest shelter was underutilized in comparison to the river shelter because 
it could not be seen. He agreed that opening the area up would change the use levels, but 
including the forest shelter improvements in Phase 1 was not practical. However, including it in 
Phase 2 might be feasible because some earth work would be done around the park to renovate 
the fields anyway. Projects in Phase 3 were not necessarily a lesser priority, but without knowing 
exactly what the funding strategy would be, the team came up with this proposal. 

 Stated she had heard complaints from former members of the community garden about how the garden 
has been managed. The garden plots of many people were poorly maintained, so weeds overtook 
adjacent plots and people who had brought in soil to amend their plots would not get the same plot the 
following year. She understood the Master Plan did not even address the issue, but she wanted to make 
the department aware of these concerns. She believed moving the garden so there was more sunshine 
was a good idea. 

 
Chair McGuire stated that overall, she supported the design of the Master Plan and appreciated the time 
taken to get and incorporate public input, as well as that received from the last Planning Commission 
meeting. She also supported adding the additional sand volleyball court, noting there was only one sand 
volleyball court in her neighborhood, and the kids wanted their own court to play on. Considering the cost 
benefit, she believed the additional court would get a lot of use.  
 She believed doing synthetic turf on two of the fields was a fair and balanced approach. The $2.5 

million was a significant investment for the City and there were benefits of doing that phased approach. 
There might be community support if the City could incorporate the additional revenue into other areas 
of the sports field; or if people have that experience of having turf and then want the grass, preserving 
the grass in case people did not want the entire area to be turfed was a balanced way to go about 
doing it. 

 The skateboard park and community garden were good elements of the Master Plan. 
 With the phasing, she understood this would unfold slowly over time, but she would advocate for moving 

that nature play area and dock launch up to the earlier phases, given their lower expense compared to 
some other line items, to give access to the river and give a different experience to the kids. Kids love 
playing in the woods and having a nature play area in that wooded area would offer an additional 
benefit to the community outside of the play structures and sports court. 

 
Commissioner Greenfield: 
 Confirmed no design plans yet existed for how the barn (near Murase Park) could be converted to a 

picnic shelter. He inquired about the durability of the barn and how it was being protected against 
rotting out.  
 Mr. Sherer replied when the City first renovated the barn (next to Murase Park), it was made 

structurally sound and still maintained the rustic feel of a historical building. He believed through 
existing maintenance practices; it could be kept in good shape. The City’s recent improvements had 



Planning Commission  Page 10 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

made the barn much more attractive and it becoming the City's most popular rental facility and a 
terrific revenue generator.  

 Added that Wilsonville has very few structures from that era, so it was worth protecting. He asked if the 
wood could be treated.  
 Mr. Sherer replied the wood could be stained, noting the City had to be careful not to take anything 

away from its historical significance, but structurally, the barn was sound. 
 
Commissioner Hurley asked if the team had considered cutting a few tress down to get rid of the shade at 
the community garden, which would save $85,000 and people could be growing in the garden this year. 
 Mr. Sherer replied the trees were in the protected areas as well as in the Boeckman Creek riparian area. 
 Chair McGuire added removing the shade would affect the fish. 
 
Commissioner Greenfield noted the difficulty in getting a view of the river from the walkway without risking 
life and limb or getting really scratched. He asked if some short-term improvements could be made to make 
the overlook sites immediately accessible, possibly through the use of volunteer labor.  
 Mr. Sherer believed there was, adding he would look at some of the more obvious sites identified in the 

Master Plan to see just what would be required to accomplish that. 
 

Commissioner Millan agreed with the suggestion, noting that people blaze their own trails through there. It 
would not need to be a fully developed trail, but something that would access a view of the river would go a 
long way. 
 
Chair McGuire called for public testimony on the Memorial Park Master Plan. 
 
Linda Ingalls, 7505 SW Schroeder Way, Wilsonville, OR, explained that Schroeder Way dead-ends at the 
community gardens. She had never heard anybody complaining about the shade, but she did not use the 
community gardens; she did walk there almost every day, though, and it was heavily used. Her concern was 
all the traffic that would be on Schroeder Way if the City was going to put in more parking and a restroom 
and was moving the dog park there and changing the gardens. There were only five residents that live on 
that road, now; of course, three huge million dollar homes were being put in next to her house if anybody is 
interested in a bigger lot. She asked what would be done with Schroeder Way because it was not that big 
of a road. 
 
Mr. Neamtzu explained a traffic analysis would come with development of the actual site; it was not done at 
the master planning level. However, with all new development traffic analyses were done to ensure the road 
would be able to meet certain level of service standards for flow of traffic. There were pretty rigorous 
requirements for making sure the road still functioned adequately to meet the demand. Staff did not have 
that information at this level, unfortunately, but it was an important point. 
 
Ms. Ingalls added two cars could barely pass each other on that road. She commented that pickle ball was 
up and coming sport and was what the baby boomers were doing. She taught and knew a lot of people 
play it. Pickle ball was not quite as big as tennis, and so it was an easier game to master. It was a great 
sport. 
 
Commissioner Postma agreed it was an up and coming sport and was a $500,000 expense. 
 
Commissioner Hurley noted something that had been around 100 years was not up and coming. 
 
Chair McGuire added it could be a potential source of revenue. 
 
Chris Owen, Sandy Court, Wilsonville, OR, noted it was great to see families play in the water feature at 
Murase Plaza, but many times kids would dart away from their families, and from the library parking lot 
across to the park. One always had to pay attention for people in the street there.  



Planning Commission  Page 11 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

 He appreciated that the Commission recognized the need for the additional sand volleyball. He believed 
it would be great to have more than one.  

 The pickle ball sounded like a great thing, but with everything being combined into one area and being 
so expensive, he asked if some things could be strategized into the other new developments as they 
came into town or was it best to be in just this one area when there was so much going on in one spot.  

 Regarding the BMX bike course, from his mountain biking experience, the City needed to consider a lot 
bigger venue. Given the costs he was hearing on such things as the skate park, moving the garden, etc., 
he assumed the BMX course was going to be pretty costly, and for the size and reward, there probably 
would not be that much return off the opportunity.  
 

Chair McGuire confirmed there was no further public testimony and closed the public hearing at 7:10 pm. 
 
Chair McGuire asked if the addition of a sand volleyball court could be added as an amendment or if the 
suggestion could be forwarded to City Council. 
 
Mr. Neamtzu replied it was perfectly appropriate for the Commission to make any series of modifications to 
the Master Plan and recommend that the Council consider including those as part of final adoption. 
 
Commissioner Postma advocated for adding at least one more sand volleyball court, adding he was very 
encouraged to see the minimal cost associated with it, so it seemed to be something of a no-brainer. He 
believed the synthetic turf and pickle ball courts and when and how the money would be spent were for later 
discussions; it was something the Commission could consider, but did not require modification. He asked if any 
additional changes, other than the added sand volleyball court, should be put into the motion. 
 
Commissioner Hurley stated the Master Plan had a long horizon with zero funding, so he believed the Master 
Plan should include the goal of having all the fields in that western section be synthetic turf fields. Phase 1 
would be the two ball fields, and then Phases 2 or 3 would be the remainder, which would also give the 
public the option or time before a second phase comes in to say whether they preferred grass or synthetic 
turf.  
 
He wanted it in the Master Plan, because the next Master Plan would not be done for another 25 years. He 
agreed to adding language to the Master Plan that consideration should be given to add additional turf 
during Phase 2 or subsequent to synthetic turf being installed on the first two fields.  
 
Commissioner Greenfield noted the language needed to be part of the Master Plan the Commission was 
endorsing today. 
 
Commissioner Postma agreed to the proposed language, noting it was actually a cost benefit analysis. The 
City needed to know whether or not the additional revenue made from the use of the ball fields would do 
that, and it was a very long-range and difficult process. 
 
Commissioner Hurley noted the City was spending $1.1 million on the lighting for the ball fields. However, 
there is not a decent field to play on, even if there is lighting. If he was trying to schedule some sort of 
evening sporting event and if he had two options between synthetic and natural turf and both have lighting, 
he was going to go with the synthetic because he believed that grass turf was the cause of too many injuries.  
 
Commissioner Postma confirmed the lighting improvement was part of Phase 3. 
 
Commissioner Millan noted the survey results on the natural versus artificial turf were split. 
 
Chair McGuire said she had heard mixed responses, so she believed the survey was representative of 
different opinions and that the balanced approach would serve that by giving people a chance to see 
whether they liked the synthetic turf and wanted to invest that money. 
 



Planning Commission  Page 12 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

Commissioner Postma believed the Commission could indicate the desire for consideration of additional 
synthetic turf at later phasing and let Staff find the appropriate place to include language in the Master 
Plan. 
 
Commissioner Hurley noted the cost in today's dollars for a bike pump track was $31,000, so he did not 
believe the track would be mountain biking, but for smaller BMX bikes. 
 
Commissioner Millan understood BMX bike tracks were used by people practicing their mountain biking skills. 
 
Commissioner Postma believed the bike track was one of those things the City could consider if funding was 
available. The mindset of the Master Plan was to find a location and when there was funding, the City could 
get more specific as to size and cost at that time. 
 
Commissioner Millan also wanted to add language regarding access to the river, starting with the viewpoints 
and moving to improving dock access. River access was down on the priority list, but the surveys reflected 
river access being a priority. 
 
Commissioner Postma said the Commission could also ask Staff to include, where appropriate, indications that 
the Commission would like to consider more immediate phasing of access to the river and river views, which 
was currently Phase 4. 
 
Commissioner Postma moved to adopt Resolution No. LP15-0001, correcting Page 28 of 102 of the Staff 
report to correctly identify the regions of Memorial Park, and 1) adding an additional sand volleyball 
court at an appropriate location to be determined by staff; 2) adding language in the Plan to consider the 
potential of additional synthetic turf beyond what is currently depicted in the active sports field core as 
part of later phases, and 3) more immediate phasing of access to the river and the creation of river 
views where appropriate. Commissioner Millan seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  
 
 
VII. WORK SESSIONS 

 
A. Coffee Creek Industrial Form-based Code (Neamtzu, Urbsworks) 

 
Chris Neamtzu, Planning Director, said that Staff and Urbsworks were working on the final draft for the 
Form-based Code, but tonight’s work session was to refresh the Planning Commission on the project and 
provide an update on the progress made thus far. Staff would also be reviewing the Form-based Code 
Pattern Book once received from the consultants, who would then make any final edits and prepare the draft. 
No public hearings had been scheduled at this point as the process of melding new Code language and 
existing processes with idea of creating clear and objective standards and a two-path system for review of 
development in the Coffee Creek Industrial Area had proven to be rather complex. 
 He noted the consultant team was working for the State of Oregon Transportation Growth Management 

(TGM) Program, and that Laura Buhl, Contract Administrator for the TGM Program, was also present. 
 He clarified that the deadline for the grant was the end of June, but the City was trying to extend that 

out a couple months. The grant required the consultant team to deliver a final product, but the City was 
not required to adopt the program within the timeframe. If the Form-based program was acceptable, the 
City would likely be required to continue the work and engage with the design team through the process 
for adoption. 

 
Chair McGuire noted it was good to have so many Commissioners with prior experience on the Development 
Review Board (DRB). 
 
Marcy McInelly, Urbsworks, stated the consultants were working closely with Staff on amendments to the 
Development Code that were necessary to make the new Form-based Code component work, and only about 
three issues, which were quite complicated, remained to be resolved. She reviewed the key elements of the 



Planning Commission  Page 13 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

Wilsonville Coffee Creek Light Industrial Area Form-based Code, discussed on Page 4 of the memorandum 
included in the meeting packet.  
 
Ms. McInelly and Staff responded to comments and questions from the Planning Commission regarding those 
key elements as follows: 
 Currently, Class II Administrative Reviews cover a wide variety of applications, including temporary uses, 

additions less than 1,250 sq ft, tree issues, etc. Form-based Code applications processed through a Class 
II review would be issued in the form of a decision, as currently allowed. A majority of either DRB Panels 
could call the decision up to a public hearing, and City Council could call up a DRB decision as well.  
 Application packets submitted for Form-based Code development would more substantial, but Staff 

did not envision changing the existing call up procedures, which provided options for the DRB to 
review the application if they believed it necessary or an issue emerged.  

 Concern was expressed about the significant review authority given to the Planning Director under the 
Form-based Code, especially given the proposed Pattern Book. The Villebois Master Plan had a Pattern 
Book with new developments and homes going through administrative review, not a public hearing. As 
new and different builders have come in for administrative review and do refinements allowed within the 
latitude of the Villebois Pattern Book, a dilution of the required design has resulted. While the private 
developer was provided with more flexibility, their interests were prioritized over the public’s interest. 
While there were advantages to having such a streamlined review process, administrative review 
involved a lot more subjectivity and was less vigorous.  
 As with the current process, a notice of administrative action would be sent to all surrounding 

property owners, who would have a minimum ten days to review the submitted materials and submit 
written testimony. The Planning Director could make a decision or send the application to public 
hearing if there were a lot of issues or concerns. Any Planning Director decision could be called up 
by the DRB to a public hearing. 

 The reason for giving the Planning Director more authority was because the Form-based Code would 
be much more exacting. There would not be so much room for interpretation, so areas where the 
Director had more authority would be clearly outlined in the Code. If the DRB called up a decision, 
the DRB only had latitude when latitude existed in the Code. One reason for passing the Form-based 
Code was to remove the discretionary elements of the Development Code. 

 The Form-based Code worked out every single standard that would apply to the site very exactly 
and without any room for maneuvering except for a few built in adjustments. The team was working 
to make every single standard clear and objective, for the setbacks, building heights, façade 
designs, landscaping, parking lot siting, new connections, etc. It was very exacting with no room for 
flexibility or negotiation.  
 The point was to work out all the details of the standards ahead of time, so that Staff and the 

consultant team were confident it would work, and then the Planning Director could simply say, 
yes, the standard had been met. 

 The Pattern Book is a complement to the Form-based Code and would help people understand 
how the Form-based Code could be interpreted.  Although some flexibility was built in, there 
would be clear limits of that flexibility.  The Pattern Book would show several optional patterns 
that could be used to meet one standard. For example, different kinds of streets and multi-use 
paths would be shown that could be built to meet the connectivity requirement. The Form-based 
Code still put a box around what a developer could do. 
 The best place to use a Form-based Code was in an industrial district far away from a 

residential district, so there was not a mix of uses or adjacent incompatible uses that had to 
be addressed. The Coffee Creek Industrial Area was a nice laboratory for the Form-based 
Code. 

 Adjustments would be limited to a 10 to 20 percent deviation. The 10 to 20 percent deviation 
would be allowed on any metric within a quantifiable standard, and the specific percentage 
differed slightly for every single standard. For example, if the connectivity standard required a 
connection every 600 ft, but a developer needed a connection a few feet farther than 600 ft 



Planning Commission  Page 14 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

because they had a very large site or another connection had already been put in, they could 
get a quantifiable adjustment. 

 
Ms. McInelly and Joseph Readdy, also of Urbsworks, presented the Form-based Code via PowerPoint, 
describing the four areas of regulation and how the Form-based Code would work on three actual sites using 
a road test and 3D modeling. The road test helped the team find 120 different issues within the Development 
Code that the Form-based Code had to address, unlock, unravel, and reconnect to ensure the Form-based 
Code would be as effective as possible. That the new code would work well from adoption, work well for 
Staff and make applicants grateful to have a clear and objective path to follow that would provide 
certainty. The 3D modeling was used to test whether the Form-based Code elements would really work on an 
actual site. 
 
Discussion and feedback from the Planning Commission as well as responses by Staff and the consultants to 
Commissioner questions were as follows: 
 Unlike the Day Road Design Overlay, which started with regulating buildings, the Coffee Creek Industrial 

Form-based Code started with the public realm of street design and connectivity, district-wide 
landscaping and design, development of the site and site design, and then building design would make 
the neighborhood complete. The goal of the project was to create an industrial district with cohesive, 
high-quality design in the public realm, in the landscaping and architecture. 

 Because these buildings could be a warehouse, fabrication, or even an office building, applicants could 
determine, to a large degree, the appropriate amount of fenestration or windows on their building 
facades; however, the Form-based Code was particularly concerned with transparency around the 
building entrances. The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) provided strong input about where 
regulation should apply and the best regulation that would be most applicable to the most types of 
buildings in the district. Fenestration was addressed, but not regulated. There was no minimum or 
maximum requirement for fenestration on buildings. 
 The team had considered having different fenestration percentages for different building uses, but 

the idea was to regulate use and not form in the Form-based Code in the hope that form would 
follow use. 
 The market would respond to the types of buildings resulting from the Form-based Code. Should 

Day Road get the kinds of developments the City always hoped for, it would not make sense for 
a company with a building that primarily housed office workers to build a big, solid, 
unfenestrated building without any transparency; it would not serve its tenants well. Conversely, 
it made no sense to have a minimum fenestration requirement for a distribution warehouse. The 
windows required originally by the Day Road Design Overlay likely would have been covered 
up or obscured, at worst, and at best, ridiculed by developers. 

 The team believed a balance had been achieved between encouraging the right kind of design 
for the right context for the right buildings, and encouraging the right kinds of buildings to be 
fully adaptable to a variety of uses, while not setting a required amount of fenestration. 

 Those in the market who served on the TAC assured that office buildings would have windows, but 
stated that if over-regulated and forced to put in windows, Coffee Creek would not be in the market 
for those wanting a distribution warehouse or manufacturing facility where secrecy and 
confidentiality were required. The consistent conversation was that there needed to be flexibility and 
understanding that the market would do what was needed with regard to things like windows. 
 The Form-based Code still had design standards and regulated how the entryways must look, so 

no buildings would be solid rectangles with no windows 
 Day Road is the northern entrance to the city. The intent of the Day Road Design Overlay was that 

area would be commercial space; developing with the Form-based Code without that vision could 
result in an industrial park of windowless buildings. 

 The Day Road Design Overlay was based on projections about what jobs would be coming to Wilsonville 
and continually hearing from the community that higher paying jobs were needed. Therefore, there were 
concerns about the Form-based Code approach. 



Planning Commission  Page 15 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

 People within the market had serious reservations about the current Day Road Design Overlay, and 
in fact, strong opinions as to whether Day Road could ever be built that way; those in the market 
said it would never be built.  The mindset was that the market had given a pretty clear indication 
that it would not be built out if the standards were that strict, so the idea was to build in a bit more 
flexibility in hopes of achieving build out.  

 Flexibility and responsiveness to the market was not necessary in deciding the land uses, but given a use 
in an application there seemed to be room in a form-based code to specify at least parameters as far 
as fenestration and materials. It did not seem that level of detail should be left to the market. 
 Mr. Readdy replied that he respected that point of view, but he suggested that the Commission 

consider the Applicant who refuses to provide fenestration and submitted plans for Staff review that 
did not show the true intention, and proposed no windows, citing the appropriate Form-based Code 
standard, when actually, a future use might need such windows under the Form-based Code.  
 The team had chosen to stay away from fenestration requirements by having a very simple set 

of clear standards that start with the high quality of the public realm; whereas the Day Road 
Design Overlay would result in a certain type of building with offices, but it did not necessarily 
result in those buildings up close to the street to provide a continuous street wall along Day Road 
that truly reinforced a high quality street with high quality landscape and good buildings. The 
Overlay focused only on good buildings.   

 The team knew the Form-base Code would result in a very beautiful street with buildings close to 
the street that were articulated and highly, well designed with the encouragement of the Pattern 
Book. The entrance would be very clear to people on the street, inviting, open, welcoming, 
protected, and people would understand the kind of architecture, design, and building uses 
Wilsonville wanted in the community. The team believed this could be achieved without setting 
standards for the amount of fenestration on each building. 

 Ms. McInelly offered a specific example. The Day Road Design Overlay required buildings to have a 
high degree of articulation, which received high push back from the development community, but the 
buildings were not required to be close to the street. Buildings could have been behind parking lots.  
 To compensate for the fact that the City could not control what was in the building or the amount 

of fenestration, a lot of the Form-based Code regulations focused on how to make the space 
between the sidewalk and building the highest quality possible. The landscape standards, 
parking screening, how buildings are articulated and their distance from the street were all 
specified to achieve a sense of enclosure on the street in order to make it an urban environment. 

 These things were not given much attention in the Day Road Design Overlay, which again, was 
focused on the buildings themselves, and this was one of the tensions the team had been working 
with. 

 Most developers and potential tenants want the entrance to be accessible. One concern discussed by the 
TAC was that the entranceways were being pushed to the front road, which was a long way from 
parking and not a natural spot where most people would be coming in. With regard to visibility concerns, 
the benefit of having a visible entrance was important, but from a utility standpoint, the entrance should 
be in the right location. The majority of people would not access the building at a front entrance on the 
addressing street. 

 The standards provided quite a lot of flexibility by allowing the entrance to be right at the 30-ft 
setback or pulled back 150 ft maximum from the right-of-way of the addressing street, giving 
the applicant a chance to include nearby parking.  

 Entrances could be in many different locations than those shown on the 3D slides, so some 
flexibility was available.  How walkways would connect parking lots to entrances within 150 ft 
and visible from the addressing street, even on separate buildings, was indicated. 

 The lingering concern was how to avoid having long expansive walls with no windows or visible 
entrances with windows in impractical locations, while still meeting the grand entranceway-type 
feature that developers want. 

 After TAC conversations about loading docks, the team held a Google Earth exploratory meeting to look 
at industrial development that had loading berths on the fronts of buildings and consider how they were 
designed and integrated.   



Planning Commission  Page 16 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

 Currently, the draft Form-based Code allowed one loading birth on the front façade of a building 
facing an addressing street. No screening was required, but the loading docks were limited in size 
and distance from the back of the sidewalk and could not interrupt the sidewalk. 

 The team had not yet explored options for having multiple docks or potential requirements for 
screening them. 

 Finding examples of outdoor spaces or respite areas was difficult on Google Earth because of trees and 
the fact that most outdoor spaces were within the site and not visible from Google’s street view. 
 Two suggested locations for the team to consider were on the west side of old Nike building, which 

was now Pacific Foods, and the area just south of there with the trees.  
 The Pattern Book would include really clear illustrations, including a combination of 3D models and a lot 

of photographic material to provide good examples of other exemplary development in other locations.  
 As an example, connectivity was important and part of achieving the City’s Transportation System 

Plan (TSP), so achieving it was made as flexible as possible. One difficulty of this whole endeavor 
was that form-based codes usually regulate from the outside of the site in, starting with the street; so, 
if facing a certain street, the building must do certain things with the street and have a certain 
relationship with the street. However, not many streets exist in Coffee Creek, so it was important to 
leave a lot of flexibility as far as where the streets would be placed because the industrial 
developers would need to locate the streets in ways that best meets their needs.  
 The team did not want too many limitations while meeting the TSP standard, so developers would 

be allowed to choose from a wide range of different types of connections to meet the 
requirement, such as a street, parking lot, drive aisle, multi-use trail, etc. The Pattern Book would 
show several different options that could be used to meet one standard. 

 Additionally, the imagery would be more explicit in guiding a person on where the primary frontage 
must be located, the type of façade required on the primary frontage, where the entrance must be 
located and its required features, etc. 

 The Form-based Pattern Book, brought to mind experiences with the Villebois Pattern Book and how 
things had deviated of late from that Pattern Book. Driving through Villebois, one could see that different 
houses from different builders were not the same. This could be due to the types or quality of materials 
used that might not be specified in the Villebois Pattern Book, or perhaps some builders went beyond the 
requirements and set the precedent higher. Stonework was lacking on some of the homes built later, but 
all Villebois homes were supposed to have the same level of appearance and they did not come off that 
way. While these builders adhered to the Pattern Book, the ability to take a slightly different approach 
resulted in a different product. 
 Mr. Neamtzu noted one example could be the courtyards, which were an optional design element 

implemented in much of the earlier phases of Villebois. No courtyards or patios were being built by 
the new company that came into Villebois, but after hearing from citizens, Staff began conditioning 
courtyards in subsequent phases. Standing close to the homes, one could recognize an obvious 
difference in construction techniques, but the Pattern Book did not address that level of detail.  

 There were unforeseen consequences to providing additional freedom for construction and 
development in the Coffee Creek Industrial Area and not having as rigorous of a process was 
concerning.  

 Developers would push any flexibility to nth degree to save money and maximize profits. People 
were seeing a difference in standards in Villebois, so was there a break down to identify to ensure 
the same problem was not repeated process wise with the Form-based Code? 

 Providing a 10 to 20 percent deviation must be allowed to accommodate certain circumstances, but 
that flexibility would result in a different outcome than the standards put in the Form-based Code. 
The City must be vigilant about allowing for those deviations based on objective metrics and not 
things like aesthetics or provide for a veto. 

 The market’s concern was that with too many options for vetoes, the Form-based Code would mean 
nothing. Everything would be vetoed so developers would be back to the DRB system and the City 
would struggle to get interested developers because of the costs associated to make their projects fit 
the Form-based Code, and then one veto would take them back to the system they were trying to 
avoid. 



Planning Commission  Page 17 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

 
Chair McGuire stated that was what the public process was about. She recognized the city wanted 
development, but the City and the Commission were here to serve the public’s interest. One of her guiding 
principles was to hold the public’s interest as more important than private developers, so that impact must be 
taken into consideration; this due process existed for a reason. 
 She did believe the Form-based Code was innovative and exciting, and that using an industrial area as 

a pilot was an excellent approach. She was interested in learning more and looked forward to seeing 
the Pattern Book, but she was a bit hesitant due to that risk and she wanted to be thoughtful about that 
for the Wilsonville community. 
 Mr. Neamtzu responded that was exactly what was needed in this process. It was important to be 

diligent in reviewing the Form-based Code to ensure it achieved what the community wanted. 
 
Commissioner Postma agreed, adding that both he and the TAC also struggled with the issue of balancing 
what the market could actually do something with and was acceptable to the community, which involved a 
certain design, look, and function. 
 
Chair McGuire noted the same balancing issue was occurring in Frog Pond; the community wanted 15,000 sq 
ft lots and the developers said no one would buy them and they could not afford to develop them. 
 
Discussion continued about the Form-based Code as follows: 
 The team recommended the City-sponsored tree inventory be done in advance to create a true, clear 

and objective process. The City would steward and protect the trees ahead of time. Everyone would 
know the important trees and tree groves that would need to be addressed from the beginning. A lot of 
flexibility was built into locating streets and designing parking lots, so developers would be required to 
meet those standards around the pre-identified trees.   
 If the tree inventory was not done, the team did not believe the Form-based Code would work 

because after going through the Class II Administrative Review, a developer could still get a call 
back on trees. 

 While identifying the tree resources to be preserved, the developer component of the TAC also 
suggested looking at the area’s transportation needs. With the transportation needs mapped out, 
developers on the TAC believed Coffee Creek would be one of the most attractive industrial areas in the 
region. The team was considering a loosely preapproved transportation plan with a lot of flexibility 
about where streets or connections were located. Generally, some master planning would help create a 
truly streamlined process. 
 Having a master transportation overlay of sorts also made tremendous sense because it could ensure 

the right traffic flow for different vehicle types and better inform developers about what parcels 
might best suit their transportation needs. 

 The lack of attention to aesthetics in the Form-based Code caused some uncertainty and discomfort. 
Would there be protections against such architectural horrors as seen in the SMART Building? What 
structure would produce a sense of identity, consistency, and a sense of place in Coffee Creek, which 
would be thwarted by a hodgepodge of architectural development? 
 The sense of place would come from the environment: the tree preservation and nature that would be 

left, as well as the public realm between the building and the street where a significant amount of 
landscaping would be required. 

 Although the look of the buildings was not as regulated as far as style, architecture, amount of 
fenestration, etc., the buildings were allowed to be what the market needed for that use at that time. 
 Many tilt up buildings had become more employee-rich places with windows cut into the slab to 

open them up and floors put in to create multi-story buildings from prior warehouses.  
 A minimum height requirement would enable the buildings to be adapted in the future. 

 The team was walking a fine line between allowing flexibility in the buildings, such as with 
architecture, and requiring a lot from the developers in terms the quality of the public realm and 
amount of landscaping that was required and preserved in the form of the tree preservation, which 
would go a long way toward creating a sense of place. 



Planning Commission  Page 18 of 18 
May 13, 2015 Minutes 

 Form-based Code was cold and clinical and made as clear and objective as possible; however, it 
would not operate without the Pattern Book as its component part. The emphasis on aesthetics was in 
the Pattern Book, which was appropriate. The Pattern Book would emphasize creating a high quality 
environment that starts with the regional landscape and goes down to the specific elements of the 
building. The team did not find an appropriate place to say “beautiful”, other than in the 
encouraging language of the purpose statement of the Form-based Code, because beautiful was not 
clear and objective. The challenge now was to come up with the proper illustrations to help show an 
applicant what was expected and encourage them to provide maybe more than even they 
anticipated. 

 Coffee Creek would be a vibrant and exciting place, full of business opportunity and employment. 
People would be thrilled to go there and would think of it as a single place, the Coffee Creek area, 
not just an industrial area with one good building. The team assured that aesthetics had been 
considered and were quite emphasized. 

 
B. Community Development Project Updates (Kraushaar) 

 
Nancy Kraushaar, Community Development Director, stated that after updating City Council, she and Mr. 
Neamtzu believed providing the same update to the Planning Commission was important so they could 
address any questions from Wilsonville citizens. She presented the Community Development Project Updates 
via PowerPoint, describing the details and anticipated timelines of several construction projects underway 
throughout the city and responding to clarifying questions from the Commission.  
 Installing a flashing red light or, at minimum, striping was suggested at the Boeckman/Canyon Creek Rd 

intersection. A majority of the car accidents there occur when someone going east-west on Boeckman Rd 
did not see or did not know there was a stop sign and tagged someone going north-south on Canyon 
Creek Rd.  
 The thermal plastic pedestrian crossing that would be installed as part of the Canyon Creek 

Pedestrian Enhancement could raise some awareness to drivers about the presence of the 
intersection. Another idea was to install oversized stop signs, which help a fair amount and would be 
a very economical.   

 The two heavily traveled roads would have a traffic signal someday, but that was not shown in the 
TSP for 10 to 15 years. 

 Commissioners Levit and Springall should be contacted about serving on the task force for the French 
Prairie Ped/Bike/Emergency Bridge. 
 With any large project using federal funding, part of process involved looking at a couple 

alternatives for the location. Both the Boones Ferry and Charbonneau Connections would be 
considered, though the Boones Ferry Connection seemed to be the preferred location years ago. 

 
VIII. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. 2015 Planning Commission Work Program 
 
IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
There were none. 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT  
Chair McGuire adjourned the regular meeting of the Wilsonville Planning Commission at 8:56 p.m. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
By Paula Pinyerd of ABC Transcription Services, Inc. for  
Linda Straessle, Administrative Assistant III 

 



 
 

 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION  
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 10, 2015 

 
 

 
 

VI. WORK SESSIONS 

A. Frog Pond Area Plan update (Neamtzu) 
  



1

PLANNING COMMISSION 
WORKSESSION STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: June 10, 2015 Subject:  Frog Pond Area Plan update and next steps

Staff Member: Chris Neamtzu, AICP
Department: Community Development

Action Required Advisory Board/Commission Recommendation
Motion Approval
Public Hearing Date: Denial
Ordinance 1st Reading Date: None Forwarded 
Ordinance 2nd Reading Date: Not Applicable 
Resolution Comments:  N/A
Information or Direction 
Information Only 
Council Direction 
Consent Agenda 

Staff Recommendation: N/A

Recommended Language for Motion: N/A

PROJECT / ISSUE RELATES TO:
Council Goals/Priorities 

FY 13’-15’: Thoughtful Land 
Use – Complete a formal 
concept plan for Advance 
Road and Frog Pond 
residential areas. 

Adopted Master Plan(s) Not Applicable 

ISSUE BEFORE COMMISSION: The project team has completed the second round of public 
involvement on the Frog Pond Area Plan.  To date, there has been excellent public participation 
from a wide variety of stakeholders.  Staff will present a summary of the survey results and 
introduce new information that is responsive to the recent public input on lot size.  The purpose 
of this meeting is to provide information about key outstanding issues and provide options for 
consideration.  Discussion and feedback is requested of the Commission to inform the ultimate 
direction the project takes.

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 1 of 143



2

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  In January, the Planning Commission and City Council conducted 
a joint worksession on the Draft Frog Pond Area Plan providing direction to the project team on 
a wide variety of topics, most notably the housing mix and the location of a commercial node.   

Regarding housing mix, the consensus was to remove multi-family housing (apartments, 
condominiums, senior housing) from the plan and to continue to locate the neighborhood scale 
retail at the northeast corner of Boeckman/Advance, Wilsonville/Stafford.  Based on the 
direction provided, the plan was revised and presented to the Task Force in March. 

An on-line and in-person open house was conducted in April, and the results were posted on the 
project web site in May.  Over the month of May, testimony was received in both writing and in 
person at the May 18th City Council meeting. In summary, community members have requested 
that the City look at increasing the lot sizes in the Plan. 

The materials in your packet are responsive to this public input and are the subject of policy 
discussions with both the Planning Commission and City Council over the months of June and 
July in preparation for adoption of Phase 1 in August/September.

At the June 10 work session, Staff will present: 
1. 2nd open house summary
2. Status of working recommendations, issues/options for the concept plan
3. Infrastructure overview 
4. Draft infrastructure funding strategy 
5. Revised land development financial analysis

The project team is working on a number of additional products for review in July.  Those items 
include:

1. Final draft of the infrastructure analysis
2. East neighborhood demonstration plan depicting the attached/cottage single-family 

housing type
3. Lot diagrams and site layouts
4. 60th Avenue cross sections
5. Continued discussion of the issues/tradeoffs between options

EXPECTED RESULTS:  Additional community dialogue about options and tradeoffs will 
ensure a thoughtful concept plan for the entire area. 

TIMELINE:  The overall project timeline has been delayed by a couple of months to afford 
thoughtful and deliberate responses to public comment.  The following review schedule is 
envisioned.

June - informational discussions with the Planning Commission and City Council 
July - PC and CC direction on the concept plan 
August - public hearings before the Planning Commission 
September - public hearings before the City Council  
September – Spring 2016 phase 2 master planning for the west neighborhood 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 2 of 143



3

CURRENT YEAR BUDGET IMPACTS: The city received a Metro Community Planning and 
Development Grant to complete the work. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW / COMMENTS: 
Reviewed by: ______________  Date: _____________ 

LEGAL REVIEW / COMMENT:
Reviewed by: ________________ Date: _____________ 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROCESS: The preparation of the concept plan for the 
Frog Pond area is guided by a detailed Public Involvement Plan (PIP). 

POTENTIAL IMPACTS or BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY (businesses,
neighborhoods, protected and other groups):  Completing a concept plan for the Frog Pond area 
is a City Council goal.  Conducting a thorough and thoughtful planning process will identify and 
resolve potential impacts to the community.  The benefits to the community include the potential 
for well-planned new neighborhoods that are well-connected to existing neighborhoods and that 
include new housing opportunities, quality trails, parks and retail services to serve new and 
existing residents. 

ALTERNATIVES: The project has been through numerous alternatives with more included in 
the packet.  Policy direction is anticipated in July as part of upcoming meetings. 

CITY MANAGER COMMENT:

ATTACHMENTS
A. Agenda for the work session 
B. April 2015 community survey results 
C. Memorandum from LCG “Draft Infrastructure Funding Strategy” 
D. Memorandum from LCG “Land Development Financial Analysis” 
E. Memorandum from APG “Key Issues Options and Solutions for June 10th Work Session” 
F. Citizen input received since April 2015 open house – available online at:

http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/636/Maps-Documents.

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 3 of 143



For additional information, visit the project website at www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/frogpond or contact Chris 
Neamtzu, City of Wilsonville Planning Director, at Neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us or 503-570-1574. 

Planning Commission Work Session – June 10, 2015 

Agenda 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 4 of 143



Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 1
43



De
m
og
ra
ph

ic
s

Io
w
n
a
ho

m
e
in

W
ils
on

vi
lle

Ir
en

ti
n

W
ils
on

vi
lle

Iw
or
k
in

W
ils
on

vi
lle

To
ta
l

Re
sp
on

de
nt
s

88
.2

4%
7.

35
%

17
.6

5%

12
0

10
24

15
4

Io
w
n
a
ho

m
e
in
W
ils
on

vi
lle

Ir
en

ti
n
W
ils
on

vi
lle

Iw
or
k
in
W
ils
on

vi
lle

0
10

20
30

40
50

U
nd

er
18

18
to

24

25
to

34

35
to

44

45
to

54

55
to

64

65
to

74

75
or

ol
de

r

N
um

be
ro

fR
es
po

nd
en

ts

Ag
e
Ca
te
go

rie
s

Re
sp
on

de
nt
s'
Ag

es
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

75
or

ol
de

r
3

2.
07
%

65
to

74
20

13
.7
9%

55
to

64
22

15
.1
7%

45
to

54
43

29
.6
6%

35
to

44
43

29
.6
6%

25
to

34
14

9.
66
%

18
to

24
0

0.
00
%

Un
de

r1
8

0
0.
00
%

M
al
e

Fe
m
al
e

Pr
ef
er

N
ot

to
Sa
y

M
al
e

Fe
m
al
e

Pr
ef
er

N
ot

to
Sa
y

58
81

4
40
.5
6%

56
.6
4%

2.
80
%

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 1
43



De
m
og
ra
ph

ic
s

W
he

re
Re

sp
on

de
nt
s
Li
ve

Re
sp
on

se
s

Pe
rc
en

ta
ge

Ea
st
W
ils
on

vi
lle

(E
as
to

fB
oe

ck
m
an

Cr
ee

k)
43

32
.8
2%

Ce
nt
ra
lW

ils
on

vi
lle

(E
as
to

f1
5,
W
es
to

f
Bo

ec
km

an
Cr
ee

k)
35

26
.7
2%

W
es
tW

ils
on

vi
lle

(W
es
to

f1
5)

31
23
.6
6%

So
ut
h
of

th
e
Ri
ve
r

6
4.
58
%

Ru
ra
lA

re
a

16
12
.2
1%

Ea
st
W
ils
on

vi
lle

(E
as
to

fB
oe

ck
m
an

Cr
ee
k)

Ce
nt
ra
lW

ils
on

vi
lle

(E
as
to

f1
5,
W
es
to

fB
oe

ck
m
an

Cr
ee
k)

W
es
tW

ils
on

vi
lle

(W
es
to

f1
5)

So
ut
h
of

th
e
Ri
ve
r

Ru
ra
lA

re
a

Av
er
ag
e
An

nu
al
In
co
m
e

of
Re

s p
on

de
nt
s

Re
sp
on

se
s

Pe
rc
en

ta
ge

$0
$2
4,
99
9

2
1.
55
%

$2
5,
00
0

$4
9,
99
9

7
5.
43
%

$5
0,
00
0

$7
4,
99
9

11
8.
53
%

$7
5,
00
0

$9
9,
99
9

24
18
.6
0%

$1
00
,0
00

an
d
ab
ov
e

85
65
.8
9%

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 1
43



La
nd

U
se

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

la
nd

us
e

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Ve
ry

Im
po

rt
an

t

Im
po

rt
an

t

So
m
ew

ha
tI
m
po

rt
an

t

Le
ss

Im
po

rt
an

t

N
ot

Im
po

rt
an

t

Ve
ry

Im
po

rt
an
t

Im
po

rt
an
t
So
m
ew

ha
t

Im
po

rt
an
t

Le
ss

Im
po

rt
an
t

N
ot

Im
po

rt
an
t

To
ta
l

W
ei
gh
te
d

Av
er
ag
e

73
.4
1%

9.
25

%
5.
78

%
4.
62

%
6.
94

%

12
7

16
10

8
12

17
3

4.
38

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 1
43



La
nd

U
se

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

la
nd

us
e

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
1,
fo
r

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g

Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#2
.

0
10

20
30

40
50

60
70

80
90

10
0

En
te
rp
ris
in
g

Pr
of
es
si
on

al
s

N
ea
rb
y
St
ud

en
ts
&

te
ch
no

lo
gy

se
ct
or

em
pl
oy
ee
s

Te
ac
he

rs

U
p
an

d
Co

m
in
g

Fa
m
ili
es

Ag
in
g
Ba

by
Bo

om
er
s

Se
ni
or
s

N
um

be
ro

fR
es
po

nd
en

ts

Ve
ry

Im
po

rt
an

t

Im
po

rt
an

t

So
m
ew

ha
tI
m
po

rt
an

t

Le
ss

Im
po

rt
an

t

N
ot

at
Al
lI
m
po

rt
an

t

Ve
ry

Im
po

rt
an
t

Im
po

rt
an
t

So
m
ew

ha
t

Im
po

rt
an
t

Le
ss

Im
po

rt
an
t

N
ot

at
Al
l

Im
po

rt
an
t

To
ta
l

W
ei
gh
te
d

Av
er
ag
e

26
.4
7%

7.
06

%
30

.0
0%

15
.8
8%

20
.5
9%

45
12

51
27

35
17

0
3.
03

29
.2
4%

16
.9
6%

27
.4
9%

9.
36

%
16

.9
6%

50
29

47
16

29
17

1
3.
32

46
.2
0%

15
.2
0%

19
.8
8%

7.
02

%
11

.7
0%

79
26

34
12

20
17

1
3.
77

22
.0
9%

18
.0
2%

28
.4
9%

14
.5
3%

16
.8
6%

38
31

49
25

29
17

2
3.
14

15
.2
0%

23
.3
9%

22
.8
1%

16
.3
7%

22
.2
2%

26
40

39
28

38
17

1
2.
93

40
.7
0%

20
.3
5%

22
.0
9%

6.
40

%
10

.4
7%

70
35

38
11

18
17

2
3.
74

En
te
rp
ris
in
g

Pr
of
es
si
on

al
s

Ag
in
g
Ba

by
Bo

om
er
s

U
p
an
d
Co

m
in
g

Fa
m
ili
es

Se
ni
or
s

Te
ac
he

rs

N
ea
rb
y
St
ud

en
ts
&

te
ch
no

lo
gy

se
ct
or

em
pl
oy
ee

s

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 1
43



La
nd

U
se

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

la
nd

us
e

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Ve
ry

Im
po

rt
an

t

Im
po

rt
an

t

So
m
ew

ha
t

Im
po

rt
an

t

Le
ss

im
po

rt
an

t

N
ot

Im
po

rt
an

t

Ve
ry

Im
po

rt
an
t

Im
po

rt
an
t

So
m
ew

ha
t

Im
po

rt
an
t

Le
ss

Im
po

rt
an
t

N
ot

Im
po

rt
an
t

To
ta
l

W
ei
gh
te
d

Av
er
ag
e

39
.4
1%

27
.0
6%

21
.7
6%

5.
88

%
5.
88

%

67
46

37
10

10
17

0
3.
88

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 1

43



Lo
tS

ize
Fl
ex
ib
ili
ty

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

lo
ts

ize
fle

xi
bi

lit
y

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
3,
fo
rc
om

m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#4
.

St
ro
ng
ly
Su
pp

or
t

Su
pp

or
t

N
eu

tr
al

Le
ss

Su
pp

or
t

Do
no

ts
up

po
rt
at

al
l

St
ro
ng

ly
Su

pp
or
t

Su
pp

or
t

N
eu

tr
al

Le
ss

Su
pp

or
t

Do
no

t
su
pp

or
ta

ta
ll

To
ta
l

W
ei
gh

te
d

Av
er
ag
e

31
.5
5%

20
.8
3%

22
.0
2%

7.
14
%

18
.4
5%

53
35

37
12

31
16
8

3.
40

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 1

43



Lo
tS

ize
Fl
ex
ib
ili
ty

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

lo
ts

ize
fle

xi
bi

lit
y

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
6,
fo
r

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g

Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#5
.

0
20

40
60

80
10

0

Th
e
ov
er
al
lp
la
n

fo
rl
an

d
us
e

Th
e
ty
pe

an
d
lo
ca
tio

n
of

la
nd

us
es

in
th
e

So
ut
h
N
ei
gh
bo

rh
oo

d

Th
e
ty
pe

an
d
lo
ca
tio

n
of

la
nd

us
es

in
th
e

Ea
st
N
ei
gh
bo

rh
oo

d

Th
e
ty
pe

an
d
lo
ca
tio

n
of

la
nd

us
es

in
th
e

W
es
tN

ei
gh
bo

rh
oo

d

N
um

be
ro

fr
es
po

nd
en

ts

Il
ik
e
it
a
lo
t

Il
ik
e
it

It'
so

ka
y

Id
is
lik
e
it

Id
on

't
lik
e
it
at

al
l

Il
ik
e
it
a
lo
t

Il
ik
e
it

It'
so

ka
y

Id
is
lik
e
it

Id
on

't
lik
e

it
at
al
l

To
ta
l

W
ei
gh
te
d

Av
er
ag
e

18
.6
7%

25
.9
0%

24
.7
0%

10
.2
4%

20
.4
8%

31
43

41
17

34
16
6

3.
12

10
.3
0%

18
.7
9%

26
.6
7%

9.
09
%

35
.1
5%

17
31

44
15

58
16
5

2.
60

12
.0
5%

27
.7
1%

26
.5
1%

12
.0
5%

21
.6
9%

20
46

44
20

36
16
6

2.
96

11
.1
8%

24
.8
4%

22
.9
8%

17
.3
9%

23
.6
0%

18
40

37
28

38
16
1

2.
83

Th
e
ty
pe

an
d
lo
ca
tio

n
of

la
nd

us
es

in
th
e

W
es
tN

ei
gh
bo

rh
oo

d

Th
e
ty
pe

an
d
lo
ca
tio

n
of

la
nd

us
es

in
th
e

Ea
st
N
ei
gh
bo

rh
oo

d

Th
e
ty
pe

an
d
lo
ca
tio

n
of

la
nd

us
es

in
th
e

So
ut
h
N
ei
gh
bo

rh
oo

d

Th
e
ov
er
al
lp
la
n

fo
rl
an
d
us
e

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 1

43



Co
m
m
un

ity
De

si
gn

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

Co
m

m
un

ity
De

sig
n

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Il
ik
e
it
a
lo
t

Il
ik
e
it

It'
so

ka
y

Id
is
lik
e
it

Id
on

’t
lik
e
it
at

al
l

Il
ik
e
it
a
lo
t

Il
ik
e
it

It'
so

ka
y

Id
is
lik
e
it

Id
on

't
lik
e
it

at
al
l

To
ta
l

W
ei
gh
te
d

Av
er
ag
e

29
.8
7%

26
.6
2%

22
.7
3%

7.
79
%

12
.9
9%

46
41

35
12

20
15
4

3.
53

*S
ee

Q
ue

st
io
n
#7
,o

n
sl
id
e
10
,

of
th
is
pr
es
en

ta
tio

n
fo
ri
m
ag
es
.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
11
,f
or

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#6
.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 1

43



Co
m
m
un

ity
De

si
gn

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

Co
m

m
un

ity
De

sig
n

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
14
,f
or

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#7
.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
4 

of
 1

43



Co
m
m
un

ity
De

si
gn

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

Co
m

m
un

ity
De

sig
n

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
18
,f
or

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#8
.

Il
ik
e
it
a
lo
t

Il
ik
e
it

It'
so

ka
y

Id
is
lik
e
it

Id
on

’t
lik
e
it
at

al
l

Il
ik
e
it
a
lo
t

Il
ik
e
it

It'
so

ka
y

Id
is
lik
e
it

Id
on

't
lik
e
it

at
al
l

To
ta
l

W
ei
gh
te
d

Av
er
ag
e

33
.7
7%

18
.5
4%

19
.2
1%

6.
62
%

21
.8
5%

51
28

29
10

33
15
1

3.
36

*S
ee

Q
ue

st
io
n
#9
,o

n
sl
id
e
12
,

of
th
is
pr
es
en

ta
tio

n
fo
ri
m
ag
es
.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
5 

of
 1

43



Co
m
m
un

ity
De

si
gn

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

Co
m

m
un

ity
De

sig
n

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
21
,f
or

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#9
.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
6 

of
 1

43



Bo
ec
km

an
Cr
ee
k
Tr
ai
lO

pt
io
ns

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

Bo
ec

km
an

Cr
ee

k
Tr

ai
lO

pt
io

ns
m

at
er

ia
ls

at
th

e
op

en
ho

us
e

an
d

an
sw

er
th

e
qu

es
tio

ns
be

lo
w

.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
26
,

fo
rc
om

m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g

Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#1
0.

O
pt
io
n
A:

CR
EE
KS

ID
E

O
pt
io
n
B:

U
PL
AN

D

N
o
Pr
ef
er
en

ce

O
pt
io
n
A:

Cr
ee

ks
id
e

O
pt
io
n
B:

U
pl
an
d

N
o
Pr
ef
er
en

ce
To
ta
l

19
.3
3%

48
.0
0%

32
.6
7%

29
72

49
15
0

*S
ee

Q
ue

st
io
n
#1
1,
on

sl
id
e
14
,

of
th
is
pr
es
en

ta
tio

n
fo
rm

ap
s

sh
ow

in
g
th
e
op

tio
ns
.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
7 

of
 1

43



Bo
ec
km

an
Cr
ee
k
Tr
ai
lO

pt
io
ns

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

Bo
ec

km
an

Cr
ee

k
Tr

ai
lO

pt
io

ns
m

at
er

ia
ls

at
th

e
op

en
ho

us
e

an
d

an
sw

er
th

e
qu

es
tio

ns
be

lo
w

.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
27
,f
or

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#1
1.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
8 

of
 1

43



Tr
an

sp
or
ta
tio

n
Fr
am

ew
or
k

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
Fr

am
ew

or
k

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
32
,f
or

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#1
2.

St
ro
ng

ly
Su

pp
or
t

Su
pp

or
t

N
eu

tr
al

Le
ss
Su

pp
or
t

Do
no

t
su
pp

or
ta

ta
ll

To
ta
l

W
ei
gh

te
d

Av
er
ag
e

17
.9
9%

25
.1
8%

29
.5
0%

10
.7
9%

16
.5
5%

25
35

41
15

23
13
9

3.
17

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
9 

of
 1

43



Tr
an

sp
or
ta
tio

n
Fr
am

ew
or
k

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
Fr

am
ew

or
k

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
36
,f
or

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#1
3.

St
ro
ng
ly
Su
pp

or
t

Su
pp

or
t

N
eu

tr
al

Le
ss

Su
pp

or
t

Do
no

ts
up

po
rt
at

al
l

St
ro
ng

ly
Su

pp
or
t

Su
pp

or
t

N
eu

tr
al

Le
ss
Su

pp
or
t
Do

no
ts
up

po
rt

at
al
l

To
ta
l

W
ei
gh

te
d

Av
er
ag
e

35
.8
6%

22
.7
6%

29
.6
6%

2.
76
%

8.
97
%

52
33

43
4

13
14
5

3.
74

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 2
0 

of
 1

43



Tr
an

sp
or
ta
tio

n
Fr
am

ew
or
k

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
Fr

am
ew

or
k

m
at

er
ia

ls
at

th
e

op
en

ho
us

e
an

d
an

sw
er

th
e

qu
es

tio
ns

be
lo

w
.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
38
,f
or

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#1
4.

St
ro
ng
ly
Su
pp

or
t

Su
pp

or
t

N
eu

tr
al

Le
ss

Su
pp

or
t

Do
no

ts
up

po
rt
at

al
l

St
ro
ng

ly
Su

pp
or
t

Su
pp

or
t

N
eu

tr
al

Le
ss
Su

pp
or
t

Do
no

t
su
pp

or
ta

ta
ll

To
ta
l

W
ei
gh

te
d

Av
er
ag
e

34
.9
3%

17
.1
2%

17
.8
1%

10
.2
7%

19
.8
6%

51
25

26
15

29
14
6

3.
37

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 2
1 

of
 1

43



Pa
rk
s,
O
pe

n
Sp
ac
e,
an

d
N
at
ur
al
Re

so
ur
ce
s

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

Pa
rk

s,
O

pe
n

Sp
ac

e,
an

d
N

at
ur

al
Re

so
ur

ce
sm

at
er

ia
ls

at
th

e
op

en
ho

us
e

an
d

an
sw

er
th

e
qu

es
tio

ns
be

lo
w

.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
42
,f
or

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#1
5.

Ve
ry

Im
po

rt
an

t

Im
po

rt
an

t

So
m
ew

ha
tI
m
po

rt
an

t

Le
ss

Im
po

rt
an

t

N
ot

Im
po

rt
an

t

Ve
ry

Im
po

rt
an
t

Im
po

rt
an
t

So
m
ew

ha
t

Im
po

rt
an
t

Le
ss

Im
po

rt
an
t

N
ot

Im
po

rt
an
t

To
ta
l

W
ei
gh
te
d

Av
er
ag
e

50
.3
4%

16
.3
3%

15
.6
5%

8.
84

%
8.
84

%
74

24
23

13
13

14
7

3.
9

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 2
2 

of
 1

43



Pa
rk
s,
O
pe

n
Sp
ac
e,
an

d
N
at
ur
al
Re

so
ur
ce
s

Pl
ea

se
re

vi
ew

th
e

Pa
rk

s,
O

pe
n

Sp
ac

e,
an

d
N

at
ur

al
Re

so
ur

ce
sm

at
er

ia
ls

at
th

e
op

en
ho

us
e

an
d

an
sw

er
th

e
qu

es
tio

ns
be

lo
w

.

Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
44
,f
or

co
m
m
en

ts
re
ga
rd
in
g
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#1
6.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 2
3 

of
 1

43



Se
e

Co
m

pi
le

d
Co

m
m

en
ts

fr
om

Su
rv

ey
,p

ag
e
47
,f
or

co
m
m
en

ts
re
sp
on

di
ng

to
Su
rv
ey

Q
ue

st
io
n
#1
7.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 2
4 

of
 1

43



M
et
ho

d
Re

sp
on

se
s
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

Ci
ty

of
W
ils
on

vi
lle

W
eb

sit
e

38
28
.3
6%

E
M
ai
l

47
35
.0
7%

Fa
ce
bo

ok
39

29
.1
0%

N
ei
gh

bo
ro

rF
rie

nd
46

34
.3
3%

M
ai
lin

g
27

20
.1
5%

Ho
w
Pe

op
le
He

ar
d
Ab

ou
tt
he

O
nl
in
e
O
pe

n
Ho

us
e

Ci
ty

of
W
ils
on

vi
lle

W
eb

si
te

E
M
ai
l

Fa
ce
bo

ok

N
ei
gh
bo

ro
rF

rie
nd

M
ai
lin

g

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 2
5 

of
 1

43



Frog Pond Area Plan
April 2 – April 12, 2015 Online Open House

Online Survey

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 26 of 143



Frog Pond Area Plan
April 2 – April 12, 2015 Online Open House

Compiled Comments from Survey

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 27 of 143



Frog Pond Area Plan
April 2 – April 12, 2015 Online Open House

Land Use Material available at
April 2, 2015 Frog Pond Area Plan

Open House

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 28 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      1 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy 

Memorandum 

Date 3 June 2015 

To Chris Neamtzu, City of Wilsonville 

From Brian Vanneman, Leland Consulting Group  

CC Joe Dills, Angelo Planning Group 

Subject Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy  

Project 5462 Frog Pond  

INTRODUCTION AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 29 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      2 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy 

TYPES OF INFRASTRUCTURE 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 30 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      3 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 31 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      4 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy 

INFRASTRUCTURE CATEGORIES AND FUNDING APPROACHES  

Local or On-Site Infrastructure   

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 32 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      5 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy 

Major Off-Site Infrastructure  

 
Framework Infrastructure 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 33 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      6 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy 

FRAMEWORK INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING STRATEGIES   

Reimbursement Areas 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 34 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      7 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy 

Reimbursement Districts 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 35 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      8 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy 

Local Improvement Districts 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 36 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      9 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy 

Other Approaches to Framework Infrastructure  

OTHER FUNDING SOURCES  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 37 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      10 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy 

LIST OF FROG POND INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 38 of 143



 Le
lan

d C
on

su
ltin

g G
ro

up
    

    
Ju

ne
 20

15
    

 
 

11
 

 Fr
og

 P
on

d A
re

a P
lan

: In
fra

str
uc

tur
e F

un
din

g S
tra

teg
y 

Pr
oj

ec
t C

at
eg

or
y a

nd
 N

am
e

W
ho

Ti
mi

ng
Fu

nd
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 an

d 
No

te
s

To
ta

l
Ci

ty
 C

os
t

Bu
ild

s?
Fa

cil
ity

 
 E

st.
 1 

 E
st.

 2 
Co

st
 E

st
CI

P 
or

SD
C

 C
oll

ec
tor

s 
RA

 W
es

t
RA

 E
as

t
 A

m
ou

nt 
 S

ou
rc

e 
 A

ttri
bu

tab
le 

Bu
ilt w

ith
:

Ot
he

r F
un

d
Cr

ed
its

 Lo
ca

ls 
 (R

A-
W

) 
 (R

A-
E)

 
 to

 F
P 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n

Lo
ca

l
W

es
t N

eig
hb

or
ho

od
 C

oll
ec

tor
s

De
ve

lop
er

W
es

t
DK

S
Ci

ty
$9

,51
0,0

00
$1

,58
5,0

00
$7

,92
5,0

00
$0

Ea
st 

Ne
igh

bo
rh

oo
d C

oll
ec

tor
s

De
ve

lop
er

Ea
st

DK
S

Ci
ty

$8
,16

0,0
00

$1
,36

0,0
00

$6
,80

0,0
00

$0

So
uth

 N
eig

hb
or

ho
od

 C
oll

ec
tor

s
De

ve
lop

er
So

uth
As

 ab
ov

e; 
sc

ho
ol 

als
o p

ay
s f

or
 pr

op
or

tio
na

te 
sh

ar
e.

DK
S

Ci
ty

$3
,90

0,0
00

$4
50

,00
0

$2
,65

0,0
00

$8
00

,00
0

Sc
ho

ol 
D.

$0

Lo
ca

l ro
ad

s
De

ve
lop

er
Va

rie
s

De
ve

lop
er

s b
uil

d. 
No

 ci
ty 

co
sts

, s
o c

os
ts 

ar
e n

ot 
inc

lud
ed

 he
re

.
Ci

ty
-

    
    

    
    

    
-

    
    

    
    

    
  

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

Bo
ec

km
an

 R
oa

d U
rb

an
 U

pg
ra

de
 U

U-
02

 
(P

ar
t 1

) 
Ci

ty
W

es
t

Ci
ty 

bu
ild

s. 
So

uth
 si

de
 is

 ci
ty 

re
sp

on
sib

ility
, n

or
th 

sid
e i

s d
ev

elo
pe

rs
 re

sp
on

sib
ility

 
an

d i
s c

ha
rg

ed
 to

 R
DW

.
DK

S
$3

,70
0,0

00
$1

,85
0,0

00
$1

,85
0,0

00
$1

,85
0,0

00

Bo
ec

km
an

/S
taf

for
d T

ra
ffic

 S
ign

al 
UU

-0
2 

(P
ar

t 2
) 

Ci
ty

W
es

t
Ci

ty 
bu

ild
s, 

ch
ar

ge
s p

ro
po

rtio
na

te 
sh

ar
es

 to
 R

DW
, R

DE
, a

nd
 sc

ho
ol 

dis
tric

t; c
ity

 
pa

ys
 fo

r r
em

ain
de

r o
f p

ro
jec

t v
ia 

CI
P.

 T
his

 co
uld

 be
 a 

ga
tew

ay
 tre

atm
en

t th
an

 a 
ro

un
da

bo
ut.

DK
S

$5
00

,00
0

$7
0,0

00
$3

05
,00

0
$1

25
,00

0
Sc

ho
ol 

D.
$0

St
aff

or
d R

oa
d U

rb
an

 U
pg

ra
de

 U
U-

06
Ph

as
e 1

Ci
ty

W
es

t
Ci

ty 
bu

ild
s w

ith
 W

es
t N

eig
hb

or
ho

od
; p

lac
es

 re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t d
ist

ric
t o

n R
DW

, C
ity

 
(C

IP
) p

ay
s f

or
 14

' o
f 3

8'.
DK

S
$3

,00
0,0

00
$1

,00
0,0

00
$2

,00
0,0

00
$1

,00
0,0

00

Ad
va

nc
e R

oa
d U

rb
an

 U
pg

ra
de

 U
U-

P1
 

Ph
as

e 1
A 

an
d 1

B
Ci

ty
Sc

ho
ol

Ph
as

e 1
A 

an
d 1

B 
is 

the
 fa

cil
itie

s o
n t

he
 so

uth
 si

de
 of

 A
dv

an
ce

 th
at 

ar
e w

es
t o

f 6
0th

. 
Ci

ty 
bu

ild
s, 

sc
ho

ol 
dis

tric
t p

ay
s p

ro
 ra

ta 
sh

ar
e.

DK
S

$1
,08

7,5
00

$5
43

,75
0

$5
43

,75
0

Sc
ho

ol 
D.

$0

St
aff

or
d R

oa
d U

rb
an

 U
pg

ra
de

 U
U-

06
Ph

as
e 2

Ci
ty

Ea
st

Ci
ty 

bu
ild

s w
ith

 E
as

t N
eig

hb
or

ho
od

, p
lac

es
 re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t d

ist
ric

t o
n R

DE
, 

de
ve

lop
er

s p
ay

s f
or

 al
l a

dd
itio

na
l ro

ad
wa

y. 
DK

S
Ci

ty
$2

,00
0,0

00
$2

,00
0,0

00
$0

 P
ote

nti
al 

Si
ng

le-
La

ne
 R

ou
nd

ab
ou

t
 or

 G
ate

wa
y T

re
atm

en
t o

n S
taf

for
d R

oa
d 

Ci
ty

Ea
st

Pr
oje

ct 
is 

on
ly 

bu
ilt w

he
n E

 ne
igh

bo
rh

oo
d d

ev
elo

ps
. C

ity
 bu

ild
s, 

ch
ar

ge
s 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te 

sh
ar

e t
o R

DE
. T

his
 co

uld
 be

 m
or

e o
f a

 ga
tew

ay
 tre

atm
en

t th
an

 a 
ro

un
da

bo
ut.

DK
S

$6
00

,00
0

$6
00

,00
0

$0

 A
dv

an
ce

 R
oa

d U
rb

an
 U

pg
ra

de
 U

U-
P1

Ph
as

e 2
  

Ci
ty

Ea
st

Ph
as

e 2
 is

 th
e f

ac
iliti

es
 on

 th
e n

or
th 

sid
e o

f A
dv

an
ce

, a
nd

 al
l fa

cil
itie

s (
no

rth
 an

d 
so

uth
) e

as
t o

f 6
0th

. C
ity

 bu
ild

s, 
pa

ys
 fo

r p
or

tio
n o

uts
ide

 of
 F

P 
(s

ou
th 

sid
e)

, c
ha

rg
es

 
de

ve
lop

er
 co

sts
 to

 R
DE

.

DK
S

$3
,26

2,5
00

$5
43

,75
0

$2
,71

8,7
50

$0

M
ajo

r O
ff S

ite
 B

oe
ck

m
an

 R
oa

d B
rid

ge
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts 

UU
-0

1  
Ci

ty
TB

D
Ci

ty 
bu

ild
s v

ia 
CI

P.
 T

his
 pr

oje
ct 

is 
of 

cit
yw

ide
 im

po
rta

nc
e a

nd
 ad

dr
es

se
s s

afe
ty 

iss
ue

s. 
OB

EC
 

$1
2,2

00
,00

0
$1

2,2
00

,00
0

$4
,27

0,0
00

St
aff

or
d R

d./
65

th 
Av

e I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
SI

-0
3 

Co
un

ty
TB

D
Fu

tur
e p

ro
jec

t; n
ot 

dir
ec

tly
 as

so
cia

ted
 w

ith
 F

P.
 10

%
 at

trib
uta

ble
 to

 F
P.

Co
un

ty
$5

,50
0,0

00
$1

,00
0,0

00
$0

$4
,50

0,0
00

Co
un

ty
$1

00
,00

0

Su
bt

ot
al

$5
3,4

20
,00

0
$1

7,7
37

,50
0

$3
,39

5,0
00

$1
7,3

75
,00

0
$3

,92
0,0

00
$5

,02
3,7

50
$5

,96
8,7

50
$8

,90
7,5

00

De
ve

lo
pe

r C
os

ts
Ot

he
r C

os
ts

De
ve

lop
er

s b
uil

d a
nd

 re
ce

ive
 S

DC
 cr

ed
its

 fo
r o

ve
rs

ize
'(g

en
er

all
y, 

ro
ad

wa
y >

 24
' o

r 4
8',

 an
d b

ike
 la

ne
s)

. 

Es
tim

at
es

 b
y

Ci
ty

 C
os

ts

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 3
9 

of
 1

43



 Le
lan

d C
on

su
ltin

g G
ro

up
    

    
Ju

ne
 20

15
    

 
 

12
 

 Fr
og

 P
on

d A
re

a P
lan

: In
fra

str
uc

tur
e F

un
din

g S
tra

teg
y 

 

 Pr
oj

ec
t C

at
eg

or
y a

nd
 N

am
e

W
ho

Ti
mi

ng
Fu

nd
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 an

d 
No

te
s

To
ta

l
Ci

ty
 C

os
t

Bu
ild

s?
Fa

cil
ity

 
 E

st.
 1 

 E
st.

 2 
Co

st
 E

st
CI

P 
or

SD
C

 C
oll

ec
tor

s 
RA

 W
es

t
RA

 E
as

t
 A

m
ou

nt 
 S

ou
rc

e 
 A

ttri
bu

tab
le 

Bu
ilt w

ith
:

Ot
he

r F
un

d
Cr

ed
its

 Lo
ca

ls 
 (R

A-
W

) 
 (R

A-
E)

 
 to

 F
P 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
$0

Lo
ca

l
M

ajo
r S

an
ita

ry
 Li

ne
s: 

W
es

t
De

ve
lop

er
W

es
t

De
ve

lop
er

s b
uil

d, 
re

ce
ive

 S
DC

 cr
ed

its
 fo

r o
ve

rs
ize

d c
om

po
ne

nts
 (>

8"
)

M
SA

Ci
ty

$1
,37

0,0
00

$8
0,0

00
$1

,29
0,0

00
$0

M
ajo

r S
an

ita
ry

 Li
ne

s: 
Ea

st
De

ve
lop

er
Ea

st
"

M
SA

Ci
ty

$6
30

,00
0

$4
0,0

00
$5

90
,00

0
$0

M
ajo

r S
an

ita
ry

 Li
ne

s: 
So

uth
De

ve
lop

er
So

uth
"

M
SA

Ci
ty

$6
60

,00
0

$3
5,0

00
$6

25
,00

0
$0

Lo
ca

l S
S 

(8
" a

nd
 sm

all
er

)
De

ve
lop

er
Va

rie
s

De
ve

lop
er

s b
uil

d. 
No

 ci
ty 

co
sts

, s
o c

os
ts 

ar
e n

ot 
inc

lud
ed

 he
re

.
M

SA
Ci

ty
-

    
    

    
    

    
-

    
    

    
    

    
  

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

Bo
ec

km
an

 R
oa

d S
S

Ci
ty

W
es

t
Ci

ty 
bu

ild
s a

s p
ar

t o
f ro

ad
 re

bu
ild

, c
ha

rg
es

 de
ve

lop
er

 (n
on

-o
ve

rs
ize

) p
or

tio
n t

o 
RD

W
.

M
SA

$6
80

,00
0

$1
20

,00
0

$5
60

,00
0

$1
20

,00
0

St
aff

or
d R

oa
d S

S
Ci

ty
W

es
t

Ci
ty 

bu
ild

s w
ith

 S
taf

for
d R

oa
d P

ha
se

 1,
 ch

ar
ge

s d
ev

elo
pe

r (
no

n-
ov

er
siz

e)
 co

sts
 to

 
RD

W
 an

d R
DE

. R
ou

gh
 pr

op
or

tio
na

lity
 of

 1/
3 d

em
an

d i
n W

es
t, a

nd
 2/

3 i
n E

as
t 

as
su

m
ed

 he
re

.

M
SA

$6
40

,00
0

$5
0,0

00
$1

96
,66

7
$3

93
,33

3
$5

0,0
00

Ad
va

nc
e R

oa
d S

S
Ci

ty
Sc

ho
ol

Ci
ty 

bu
ild

s, 
ch

ar
ge

s d
ev

elo
pe

r (
no

n-
ov

er
siz

e)
 po

rtio
n t

o R
DE

. 
Th

is 
pr

oje
ct 

on
ly 

ex
ten

ds
 to

 60
th 

Av
e; 

SS
 to

 th
e e

as
t is

 no
t o

ve
rs

ize
d.

M
SA

$7
80

,00
0

$4
0,0

00
$7

40
,00

0
$4

0,0
00

Pu
m

p s
tat

ion
 an

d f
or

ce
 m

ain
Sc

ho
ol

Sc
ho

ol
Sc

ho
ol 

bu
ild

s, 
se

rv
es

 sc
ho

ol 
pr

op
er

tie
s. 

M
SA

$1
,29

0,0
00

$1
,29

0,0
00

Sc
ho

ol 
D.

$0

M
ajo

r O
ff S

ite
Bo

ec
km

an
 T

ru
nk

 S
ew

er
 

Ci
ty

Ea
st

M
ajo

r o
ff s

ite
 pr

oje
ct,

 pa
id 

by
 C

ity
 vi

a C
IP

. 5
2%

 at
trib

uta
ble

 to
 F

P.
 Li

ke
ly 

do
es

 no
t 

ne
ed

 to
 be

 bu
ilt f

or
 th

e W
es

t N
eig

hb
or

ho
od

, S
ch

oo
ls,

 an
d P

ar
ks

 al
on

e; 
ca

n b
e b

uil
t 

wi
th 

Ea
st 

an
d S

ou
th 

Ne
igh

bo
rh

oo
ds

.

M
SA

$8
,00

0,0
00

$8
,00

0,0
00

$0
$4

,16
0,0

00

M
em

or
ial

 P
ar

k P
um

p S
tat

ion
Ci

ty
W

es
t

M
ajo

r o
ff s

ite
 pr

oje
ct,

 pa
id 

by
 C

ity
 vi

a C
IP

. 4
8%

 at
trib

uta
ble

 to
 F

P;
 ho

we
ve

r p
ro

jec
t is

 
no

t g
ro

wt
h r

ela
ted

 pe
r s

e; 
it is

 in
 th

e f
loo

d p
lai

n a
nd

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 up
gr

ad
ed

. D
oe

s n
ot 

ne
ed

 to
 be

 in
 pl

ac
e u

nti
l 4

0%
 of

 W
es

t N
eig

hb
or

ho
od

 an
d S

ch
oo

l is
 in

 pl
ac

e.

M
SA

$5
,20

0,0
00

$5
,20

0,0
00

$0
$2

,49
6,0

00

Su
bt

ot
al

$1
9,2

50
,00

0
$1

3,4
10

,00
0

$1
55

,00
0

$2
,50

5,0
00

$7
56

,66
7

$1
,13

3,3
33

$1
,29

0,0
00

$6
,86

6,0
00

W
at

er
$0

Lo
ca

l
M

ajo
r W

ate
r L

ine
s: 

W
es

t
De

ve
lop

er
W

es
t

M
SA

Ci
ty

$2
,58

0,0
00

$4
60

,00
0

$2
,12

0,0
00

$0

M
ajo

r W
ate

r L
ine

s: 
Ea

st
De

ve
lop

er
Ea

st
M

SA
Ci

ty
$2

,58
0,0

00
$4

70
,00

0
$2

,11
0,0

00
$0

M
ajo

r W
ate

r L
ine

s: 
So

uth
De

ve
lop

er
So

uth
M

SA
Ci

ty
$1

,86
0,0

00
$3

30
,00

0
$1

,53
0,0

00
$0

Lo
ca

l W
ate

r (
8"

 an
d s

m
all

er
)

De
ve

lop
er

Va
rie

s
De

ve
lop

er
s b

uil
d. 

No
 ci

ty 
co

sts
, s

o n
ot 

inc
lud

ed
 he

re
.

M
SA

Ci
ty

$0
$0

Fr
am

ew
or

k
Bo

ec
km

an
 R

oa
d W

Ci
ty

NA
NA

. W
ate

r li
ne

 in
 B

oe
ck

m
an

 al
re

ad
y e

xis
ts.

 
M

SA
$0

$0

St
aff

or
d R

oa
d W

Ci
ty

W
es

t
Sa

m
e a

s S
taf

for
d S

S.
 'C

ity
 bu

ild
s w

ith
 S

taf
for

d R
oa

d P
ha

se
 1,

 ch
ar

ge
s d

ev
elo

pe
r 

(n
on

-o
ve

rs
ize

) c
os

ts 
to 

RD
W

 an
d R

DE
. R

ou
gh

 pr
op

or
tio

na
lity

 of
 1/

3 d
em

an
d i

n 
W

es
t, a

nd
 2/

3 i
n E

as
t a

ss
um

ed
 he

re
.

M
SA

$1
,08

0,0
00

$2
00

,00
0

$2
93

,33
3

$5
86

,66
7

$2
00

,00
0

 A
dv

an
ce

 R
oa

d W
 

Sh
ar

ed
Sc

ho
ol

Ci
ty 

bu
ild

s, 
ch

ar
ge

s d
ev

elo
pe

r (
no

n-
ov

er
siz

e)
 po

rtio
n t

o R
DE

.
M

SA
$8

90
,00

0
$1

60
,00

0
$7

30
,00

0
$1

60
,00

0

M
ajo

r O
ff S

ite
W

es
t S

ide
 R

es
er

vo
ir

Ci
ty

W
es

t
M

ajo
r o

ff s
ite

 pr
oje

ct,
 pa

id 
by

 C
ity

 vi
a C

IP
. 2

5%
 at

tib
uta

ble
 to

 F
P.

M
SA

$5
,80

0,0
00

$5
,80

0,0
00

$1
,45

0,0
00

Su
bt

ot
al

$1
4,7

90
,00

0
$6

,16
0,0

00
$1

,26
0,0

00
$5

,76
0,0

00
$2

93
,33

3
$1

,31
6,6

67
$0

$1
,81

0,0
00

De
ve

lop
er

s b
uil

d, 
re

ce
ive

 S
DC

 cr
ed

its
 fo

r o
ve

rs
ize

d c
om

po
ne

nts
 

(>
8"

 pi
pe

 si
ze

). 

Es
tim

at
es

 b
y

Ci
ty

 C
os

ts
De

ve
lo

pe
r C

os
ts

Ot
he

r C
os

ts

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 4
0 

of
 1

43



 Le
lan

d C
on

su
ltin

g G
ro

up
    

    
Ju

ne
 20

15
    

 
 

13
 

 Fr
og

 P
on

d A
re

a P
lan

: In
fra

str
uc

tur
e F

un
din

g S
tra

teg
y 

 

  Pr
oj

ec
t C

at
eg

or
y a

nd
 N

am
e

W
ho

Ti
mi

ng
Fu

nd
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 an

d 
No

te
s

To
ta

l
Ci

ty
 C

os
t

Bu
ild

s?
Fa

cil
ity

 
 E

st.
 1 

 E
st.

 2 
Co

st
 E

st
CI

P 
or

SD
C

 C
oll

ec
tor

s 
RA

 W
es

t
RA

 E
as

t
 A

m
ou

nt 
 S

ou
rc

e 
 A

ttri
bu

tab
le 

Bu
ilt w

ith
:

Ot
he

r F
un

d
Cr

ed
its

 Lo
ca

ls 
 (R

A-
W

) 
 (R

A-
E)

 
 to

 F
P 

St
or

mw
at

er
$0

Lo
ca

l
Lo

ca
l s

tor
m

 de
ten

tio
n, 

on
 de

ve
lop

m
en

t s
ite

s.
De

ve
lop

er
Va

rie
s

De
ve

lop
er

s b
uil

d. 
No

 ci
ty 

co
sts

, s
o n

ot 
inc

lud
ed

 he
re

.
M

SA
Ci

ty
$0

$0
$0

M
ajo

r
Bo

ec
km

an
 R

oa
d r

eg
ion

al 
sto

rm
wa

ter
 fa

cil
ity

NA
NA

Inc
lud

ed
 in

 D
KS

' ro
ad

wa
y c

os
t e

sti
m

ate
s

M
SA

DK
S

$0
$0

Fr
am

ew
or

k
St

aff
or

d R
oa

d r
eg

ion
al 

sto
rm

wa
ter

 fa
cil

ity
NA

NA
"

M
SA

DK
S

$0
$0

Su
bt

ot
al

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

Pa
rk

s
$0

Lo
ca

l
Fr

og
 P

on
d N

eig
hb

or
ho

od
 P

ar
k, 

P1
6, 

W
es

t
Ci

ty
W

es
t

Ci
ty 

ac
qu

ire
s l

an
d, 

pa
ys

 fo
r c

on
str

uc
tio

n, 
ch

ar
ge

s c
os

t to
 R

DW
. 

Co
st 

es
tim

ate
s i

nc
lud

e l
an

d a
nd

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
 co

sts
.

Ci
ty

$3
,37

5,9
00

$3
,37

5,9
00

$0

Fr
og

 P
on

d N
eig

hb
or

ho
od

 P
ar

k, 
P1

7, 
W

es
t

Ci
ty

W
es

t
As

 ab
ov

e. 
Lin

ea
r p

ar
k w

ith
 fe

we
r b

uil
t a

m
en

itie
s, 

ad
jac

en
t o

r c
on

ne
cte

d t
o t

he
 

Bo
ec

km
an

 C
re

ek
 T

ra
il.

Ci
ty

$2
,28

6,9
00

$2
,28

6,9
00

$0

Fr
og

 P
on

d E
as

t N
eig

hb
or

ho
od

 P
ar

k
Ci

ty
Ea

st
As

 ab
ov

e, 
cit

y c
ha

rg
es

 co
st 

to 
RD

E.
Ci

ty
$3

,37
5,9

00
$3

,37
5,9

00
$0

Bo
ec

km
an

 C
re

ek
 T

ra
il, 

RT
-0

1A
 

Ci
ty

W
es

t
DK

S
$8

50
,00

0
$5

70
,00

0
$2

80
,00

0
$0

So
uth

 N
eig

hb
or

ho
od

 T
ra

il
Ci

ty
Ea

st
DK

S
$7

00
,00

0
$4

60
,00

0
$2

40
,00

0
$0

BP
A 

Ea
se

m
en

t T
ra

il 
Ci

ty
Ea

st
Ci

ty 
bu

ild
s s

inc
e t

ra
il is

 in
 B

PA
 rig

ht 
of 

wa
y, 

ch
ar

ge
s d

ev
elo

pe
r p

or
tio

n (
1/3

) to
 R

DE
.

DK
S

$6
70

,00
0

$4
50

,00
0

$2
20

,00
0

$4
50

,00
0

LT
-P

5 N
ew

 S
ch

oo
l S

ite
 T

ra
il 

Ci
ty

Sc
ho

ol
Sc

ho
ol 

bu
ild

s a
nd

 pa
ys

 fo
r th

is 
tra

il.
DK

S
$7

00
,00

0
$7

00
,00

0
Sc

ho
ol 

D.
$0

Fr
am

ew
or

k
 A

dv
an

ce
 R

d. 
Sc

ho
ol 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

ar
k, 

P1
8 

Ci
ty

W
es

t
M

ajo
r p

ro
jec

t, p
aid

 vi
a C

ity
 C

IP
. 2

5%
 at

trib
uta

ble
 to

 F
P.

Ci
ty

$5
,41

0,0
00

$5
,41

0,0
00

$1
,35

2,5
00

Su
bt

ot
al

$1
7,3

68
,70

0
$5

,86
0,0

00
$1

,03
0,0

00
$5

20
,00

0
$5

,66
2,8

00
$3

,59
5,9

00
$7

00
,00

0
$1

,80
2,5

00
$1

04
,82

8,7
00

$4
3,1

67
,50

0
$5

,84
0,0

00
$2

6,1
60

,00
0

$1
0,6

32
,80

0
$1

1,0
69

,65
0

$7
,95

8,7
50

$1
9,3

86
,00

0

Es
tim

at
es

 b
y

Ci
ty

 C
os

ts
De

ve
lo

pe
r C

os
ts

Ot
he

r C
os

ts

De
ve

lop
er

 bu
ild

s, 
re

ce
ive

s C
ity

 sh
ar

e (
2/3

) fr
om

 ei
the

r S
DC

 cr
ed

its
 

(a
ss

um
ed

 he
re

) o
r C

IP
.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 4
1 

of
 1

43



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      14 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Funding Analysis 

CIP COSTS AND REVENUES  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 42 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      15 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Funding Analysis 

 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 43 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      16 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Funding Analysis 

 

 
 

 
 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 44 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      17 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Funding Analysis 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 45 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      18 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Funding Analysis 

REIMBURSEMENT DISTRICT COST ALLOCATION 

 
  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 46 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015      19 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Funding Analysis 

APPENDICES AND INFORMATION SOURCES 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 47 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    1 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Memorandum 

Date 3 June 2015  

To Chris Neamtzu, Planning Director, City of Wilsonville 

From Brian Vanneman and Wally Hobson, Leland Consulting Group  
 

CC Joe Dills, Angelo Planning Group 

Subject Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Project 5462  

Introduction  

Assumptions and Site Plans 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 48 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    2 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Data Sources 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 49 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    3 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Development Models 

Memo Revisions 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 50 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    4 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Inputs to the Financial Analysis 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 51 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    5 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 52 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    6 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 53 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    7 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Household Demographics for Wilsonville and Market Area   

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 54 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    8 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

 
  
  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 55 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    9 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Residual Land Value Model  

 
  

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 56 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    10 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

 

 

 
 
 

 
  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 57 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    11 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

 

 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 58 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    12 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Market Price Model  

$394 K
$470 K

$547 K

$831 K

$351 K

$485 K

$634 K

$1099 K

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 59 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    13 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

$437 K

$574 K

$773 K

$1099 K

$432 K
$509 K

$635 K

$831 K

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 60 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    14 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 61 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    15 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Appendix A: Additional Figures and Detailed Financial Analysis of Development Concepts 

 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 62 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    16 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

  

  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 63 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    17 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Small Lot Development Concept (Option D) 

  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 64 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    18 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Medium Lot Development Concept (Option D) 

 

  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 65 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    19 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Large Lot Development Concept (Option D) 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 66 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    20 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Estate Lot Development Concept  

 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 67 of 143



 

Leland Consulting Group        June 2015    21 
 

Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis 

Appendix B 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 68 of 143



A
lle

y 
(2

0’
 R

O
W

)
A

lle
y 

(2
0’

 R
O

W
)

36
’

36
’

36
’

36’

Small Lots
3570sf - 3960sf

100’ 110’

110’

L O C A L  S T R E E T
(60’ ROW)

C O L L E C T O R
(80’ ROW)

Undeveloped

Undeveloped

20-acre
parcel

Undeveloped

Undeveloped

60’
ROW

November 2014

0 100’50’ 200’

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 69 of 143



55
’

65
’

55’

55
’

55
’

110’

Medium Lots
5500sf - 6500sf

65
’

65
’

L O C A L  S T R E E T
(60’ ROW)

C O L L E C T O R
(80’ ROW)

Undeveloped

Undeveloped

20-acre
parcel

Undeveloped

Undeveloped

60’
ROW

November 2014

0 100’50’ 200’

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 70 of 143



80
’

80
’

80
’

110’ 110’

Large Lots
8800sf

L O C A L  S T R E E T
(60’ ROW)

C O L L E C T O R
(80’ ROW)

Undeveloped

Undeveloped

20-acre
parcel

Undeveloped

Undeveloped

60’
ROW

November 2014

0 100’50’ 200’

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 71 of 143



Le
ge

nd
 a

t V
ill

eb
oi

s 
Zo

ni
ng

: V
 

Gr
os

s A
cr

es
:  

 
31

.2
2 

N
um

be
r o

f L
ot

s:
  

18
8 

Gr
os

s D
en

sit
y:

  
6.

0 
du

/a
c 

 

N
et

 A
cr

es
: 

16
.2

 a
cr

es
 

N
et

 D
en

si
ty

:  
11

.5
 d

u/
ac

 
Ty

pi
ca

l L
ot

 S
ize

:  
2,

80
0-

4,
50

0 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 - 

Ju
ne

 1
0,

 2
01

5 
Fr

og
 P

on
d 

A
re

a 
Pl

an
 U

pd
at

e 
Pa

ge
 7

2 
of

 1
43



Re
na

is
sa

nc
e 

Ho
m

es
  

at
 C

an
yo

n 
Cr

ee
k 

Zo
ni

ng
: P

DR
-3

 

Gr
os

s A
cr

es
:  

10
.4

3 
N

um
be

r o
f L

ot
s:

  
45

 
Gr

os
s D

en
sit

y:
  

3.
6 

du
/ a

cr
e 

N
et

 A
cr

es
: 

6.
34

 
N

et
 D

en
si

ty
:  

7.
1 

du
/a

c 
Ty

pi
ca

l L
ot

 si
ze

:  
6,

00
0 

sq
. f

t. 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 - 

Ju
ne

 1
0,

 2
01

5 
Fr

og
 P

on
d 

A
re

a 
Pl

an
 U

pd
at

e 
Pa

ge
 7

3 
of

 1
43



M
or

ey
’s 

La
nd

in
g 

 
Zo

ni
ng

: P
DR

-3
 

Gr
os

s A
cr

es
:  

56
  

N
um

be
r o

f L
ot

s:
  

13
8 

Gr
os

s d
en

sit
y:

  
3 

du
/a

cr
e 

N
et

 A
cr

es
: 

23
.2

8 
N

et
 d

en
si

ty
:  

 
5.

93
 d

u/
ac

re
 

Ty
pi

ca
l L

ot
 S

ize
:  

7,
00

0-
9,

00
0 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 7
4 

of
 1

43



0 

Sm
all

 Lo
t 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 7
5 

of
 1

43



1 

Me
diu

m 
Lo

t 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 7
6 

of
 1

43



2 

La
rg

e L
ot 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 7
7 

of
 1

43



3 

Es
tat

e L
ot 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 7
8 

of
 1

43



A Publication of RMLS™, The Source for Real Estate Statistics in Your Community

© Copyright RMLS™ 2014. All Rights Reserved.

Residential Review: Metro Portland, Oregon October 2014 Reporting Period

October Residential Highlights
October brought an uptick in 

closings to the Portland metro area. 
These closed sales (2,487) showed 
a 13.6% increase over the 2,189 
closings posted last October and a 
4.6% increase over the 2,378 closings 
last September. It was the strongest 
October for closings in the Portland 
metro area since 2006 when there 
were 2,503. Pending sales (2,480) 
cooled 2.8% from September’s 
2,551 accepted offers, but were 

accepted last October. New listings, 
at 2,881, similarly cooled 7.1% from 
September (3,102) but represented 
a 13.6% increase over last October 
(2,535).  

There are currently 6,963 active 
residential listings in the Portland 
metro area. Total market time rose 
in October to 65 days, and inventory 
decreased to 2.8 months.

Year to Date Summary
Activity in the Portland metro 

area has now surpassed numbers 
from last year. New listings (34,056) 
are up 4.9%, pending sales (24,671) 
are up 3.0%, and closed sales 
(23,301) are up 1.7% compared to 

Average and Median Sale Prices

months of the year was $333,200, 
up 7.4% from the same time frame 
in 2013 when the average was 
$310,200. In the same comparison, 
the median also rose 7.5% from 

2013 to $285,000 in the same period 
of 2014.

New 
Listings

Pending 
Sales

Closed
Sales

Average
Sale Price

Median
Sale Price

Total  
Market  

Time 

October 2,881 2,480 2,487 335,600 289,000 65

September 3,102 2,551 2,378 338,100 289,900 60

Year-to-date 34,056 24,671 23,301 333,200 285,000 70

October 2,535 2,125 2,189 314,100 270,000 76

Year-to-date 32,452 23,955 22,909 310,200 265,000 83

October 13.6% 16.7% 13.6% 6.8% 7.0% -13.8%

Prev Mo 2014 -7.1% -2.8% 4.6% -0.7% -0.3% 8.7%

Year-to-date 4.9% 3.0% 1.7% 7.4% 7.5% -15.7%

20
14

20
13

Ch
an

ge

Portland Metro 
Residential 
Highlights

*Inventory in Months is calculated by dividing 
the Active Residential Listings at the end of the 
month in question by the number of closed sales 
for that month. This includes proposed and under 
construction homes.

Inventory in Months*
2012 2013 2014

January 7.0 4.7 4.1
February 6.5 4.5 3.9
March 5.0 3.2 3.1
April 4.7 3.1 2.8
May 4.2 2.5 2.8
June 3.9 2.9 2.8
July 4.6 2.8 2.9
August 3.9 3.1 3.0
September 4.6 3.7 3.1
October 3.8 3.4 2.8
November 4.2 3.7
December 3.6 3.2

Percent Change of 12-Month Sale Price 
Compared With The Previous 12 Months  

Average Sale Price % Change: 
+7.8% ($330,100 v. $306,300)
Median Sale Price % Change:
 +9.3% ($284,100 v. $259,900)

For further explanation of this measure, see the 
second footnote on page 2.

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 79 of 143



2
© Copyright RMLS™ 2014. All Rights Reserved.

Portland Metropolitan Area, Oregon

1 Percent change in number of pending sales this year compared to last year.  The Current Month section compares October 2014 with October 2013.  The 
Year-To-Date section compares 2014 year-to-date statistics through October with 2013 year-to-date statistics through October.

2 % Change is based on a comparison of the rolling average sale price for the last 12 months (11/1/13-10/31/14) with 12 months before (11/1/12-10/31/13).
3 Total Market Time is the number of days from when a property is listed to when an offer is accepted on that same property. If a property is re-listed within 31 

days, Total Market Time continues to accrue; however, it does not include the time that it was off the market. 

A
ct

iv
e 

Li
st

in
gs

N
ew

 L
is

tin
gs

Pe
nd

in
g 

Sa
le

s

Pe
nd

in
g 

Sa
le

s 
20

14
 v

. 2
01

31

C
lo

se
d 

Sa
le

s

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
al

e 
Pr

ic
e

To
ta

l M
ar

ke
t T

im
e 

3

N
ew

 L
is

tin
gs

Pe
nd

in
g 

Sa
le

s

Pe
nd

in
g 

Sa
le

s 
20

14
 v

. 2
01

31

C
lo

se
d 

Sa
le

s

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
al

e 
Pr

ic
e

M
ed

ia
n 

Sa
le

 P
ric

e

A
vg

. S
al

e 
Pr

ic
e 

%
 C

ha
ng

e2

C
lo

se
d 

Sa
le

s

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
al

e 
Pr

ic
e

C
lo

se
d 

Sa
le

s

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
al

e 
Pr

ic
e

C
lo

se
d 

Sa
le

s

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
al

e 
Pr

ic
e

14
1

N Portland 213       115     35       111    14.4% 118     302,200       67      1,448     1,154     9.6% 1,116    290,500      277,000      11.0% 11     389,000          17      215,300      31      423,000      

14
2

NE Portland 481       253     62       262    11.0% 261     351,200       47      3,114     2,371     -3.9% 2,236    347,900      306,000      7.5% 25     393,800          38      124,200      70      387,200      

14
3

SE Portland 671       348     106     328    25.7% 311     299,300       44      4,010     3,016     7.6% 2,819    302,500      259,900      13.6% 33     457,500          53      158,000      124    475,000      

14
4

Troutdale 540       215     65       160    34.5% 138     244,600       100    2,192     1,523     13.8% 1,423    243,500      229,000      11.2% 8        288,900          48      162,700      37      366,000      

14
5

Clackamas 569       224     104     202    18.1% 196     327,200       62      2,829     1,994     3.3% 1,844    310,900      287,000      11.9% 5        339,700          98      167,000      15      328,600      

14
6

Canby 403       131     65       107    -8.5% 130     305,500       72      1,777     1,312     5.0% 1,261    298,400      279,000      10.3% 6        274,800          86      183,300      13      259,800      

14
7

West Linn 475       166     68       136    3.0% 130     547,800       81      2,075     1,343     -3.0% 1,278    531,400      459,000      9.4% 2        564,300          46      359,900      11      407,600      

14
8

W Portland 723       328     141     291    17.8% 237     480,000       65      3,803     2,653     -3.9% 2,512    471,500      395,000      5.8% 8        298,600          76      226,500      37      570,500      

14
9

NW Wash Co. 254       101     40       97      -2.0% 115     435,500       57      1,580     1,185     -1.1% 1,177    421,700      394,000      7.2% -    -                  41      256,000      5        334,900      

15
0

Aloha 537       271     88       217    19.2% 244     278,900       51      3,099     2,275     8.0% 2,177    275,400      254,000      7.3% 4        270,500          11      154,200      36      346,000      

15
1

Wilsonville 583       270     99       219    25.1% 256     338,500       65      2,989     2,184     -2.1% 2,043    335,800      320,000      6.5% 7        660,400          32      386,100      8        415,400      

15
2

Forest Grove 468       199     53       158    0.0% 182     267,400       62      2,242     1,710     -0.2% 1,607    271,700      250,000      11.1% 16     262,300          47      193,900      32      378,600      

15
3

Mt. Hood 109       24       8         17      41.7% 12       245,500       68      243        167        25.6% 159       240,300      219,500      5.2% 2        216,500          14      66,800        -     -              

15
5

Columbia Co. 347       103     40       75      78.6% 54       217,500       141    936        609        14.3% 543       211,900      201,500      12.9% 10     243,000          43      90,900        12      166,000      

15
6

Yamhill Co. 590       133     63       100    29.9% 103     229,200       114    1,719     1,175     11.4% 1,106    250,400      220,000      1.4% 14     240,600          79      240,100      18      265,000      

Year-To-Date

COMMERCIAL LAND MULTIFAMILYRESIDENTIAL

Year-To-Date Year-To-DateCurrent Month Year-To-Date

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 80 of 143



Memorandum

PAGE 1 OF 18 

June 3, 2015 

To: 

Cc: 

From: 

Re: 

Wilsonville Planning Commission 

Frog Pond Area Plan Task Force, Project Team 

Joe Dills and Andrew Parish, Angelo Planning Group 

Frog Pond Concept Plan – Key Issues  Options  and Solutions for June 10th Work Session 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this memorandum is to: (1) Identify key issues for completing the Frog Pond Concept 
Plan; (2) Provide information, options and solutions for those key issues for consideration by the 
Planning Commission. 

STATUS OF WORKING RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE CONCEPT PLAN 
Summary of work to date 
The working recommendations of the Frog Pond Area  Plan have been prepared with the guidance of 
the Frog Pond Task Force (who met four times) and Frog Pond Technical Advisory Committee (three 
meetings).  The working recommendations of the plan were prepared in a series of steps and 
community outreach, as summarized below: 

Vision and Guiding Principles (approved by the City Council on  August 14, 2014)

Land Use and Transportation Alternatives – Summary and Evaluation (reviewed by the Task
Force on October 2, 2014)

Open house and On-Line Survey (October, 2014)

Preferred Concept Plan – Working Recommendations (reviewed by the Task Force on  December
4, 2014)

Joint Planning Commission-City Council discussion and direction on residential element and
neighborhood commercial center (January 22, 1014)

Draft Concept Plan Updates (reviewed by the Task Force on March 18, 2015)

Open House and on-line survey (April, 2015)

Posting of on-line survey results (May, 2015)

The above-listed progression of plan concepts were supported by multiple technical reports.  Examples 
include: opportunities and constraints report, market analysis, transportation impact analysis, water-
sewer-storm water analysis, infrastructure funding plan, and development feasibility analysis.  All of the 
plans and studies summarized above are available on the project web site: 
http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/628/Frog-Pond-Area-Plan. 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 81 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 2 OF 18 

Status of recommendations and suggested key issues 
Based on feedback from the Task Force, the Open House and On-line Survey, and community input in 
April and May, there are several key issues that require discussion by the Planning Commission prior to 
preparing a recommended Concept Plan.  The foremost of the key issues is the residential element of 
the Land Use Framework, specifically the provision of “large lots.” There are a few other issues as well 
noted below. To help see the entire set of working recommendations in context, the team has prepared 
the following table listing each element of the working Concept Plan and characterized those elements 
that are broadly supported, as well as those that are key issues and require further review by the 
Planning Commission.  As used here, “broadly supported” means feedback has been generally positive 
and no specific changes have been identified as needed. 

Page references below refer to pages in this memorandum where more information is provided.  Some 
elements will be discussed more fully at the July meeting of the Planning Commission.  Other elements 
will be discussed as part of Phase 2 of the Frog Pond process, during which the West Neighborhood 
Master Plan and zoning recommendations will be prepared. 

Summary and Status of Concept Plan Recommendations  

Line 
item 

Concept plan element - working 
recommendations 

Broadly supported 
– planned as part 
of recommended 

Draft Concept Plan 

Key Issue – Requires further 
review by the Planning 

Commission.  Notes and 
references to further 

information are provided below. 
 

1 Vision and Guiding Principles x  
2 Neighborhood Framework x  
3 Land use Framework   
4 Residential  See Key Issue 1, page 4.  
5 School and Community Park x  
6 Civic/Institutional x  
7 Neighborhood Commercial  Use and location was directed by 

the Planning Commission and 
City Council on January 21, 2015.  
See below for Community Design 
comments. 

8 Street Framework   
9 60th Avenue classification 

and cross -section 
 See Key Issue 2, page 16. 

10 Remainder of Street 
Framework 

x  

11 Pedestrian and Bicycle Framework    
12 Boeckman trail conceptual 

alignment (Upland option) 
x  

13 Advance Road undercrossing 
– general concept; not a 
commitment to build 

x  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 82 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 3 OF 18 

Line 
item 

Concept plan element - working 
recommendations 

Broadly supported 
– planned as part 
of recommended 

Draft Concept Plan 

Key Issue – Requires further 
review by the Planning 

Commission.  Notes and 
references to further 

information are provided below. 
 

14 Park and Open Space Framework  x Broadly supported.  See Key 
Issue 3, page 17, for a park-
related update. 

15 Infrastructure Framework x  
16 Infrastructure Funding Strategy  Needs Planning Commission 

review in relation to Land Use 
Framework Residential 
Component.  See memorandum 
from Leland Consulting Group, 
dated June 3, 2015. 

17 Land Development Financial Analysis  Informational memo only, not a 
part of the Concept Plan. Needs 
Planning Commission review in 
relation to Land Use Framework 
Residential Component.  See 
memorandum from Leland 
Consulting Group, dated June 3, 
2015. 

18 Community Design Framework    
19 Community Design 

Principles 
x  

20 West Neighborhood 
Demonstration Plan 

x  

21 Neighborhood Commercial 
Center design concepts 

 See Key Issue 4, page 16. 

22 East Neighborhood 
Demonstration Plan 

n/a Will be provided for Planning 
Commission review in July. 

23 Zoning Strategy n/a Phase 2: Information only, not a 
part of the Concept Plan.  
Important information for 
understanding how the Concept 
Plan will be implemented. 

24 Overall approach x  
25 Early work on standards: 

a. Flexible Lot Size Options 
b. Minimum yard 

standards 
c. Quality design standards 

n/a Phase 2: Zoning standards for 
Frog Pond West will be 
addressed in Phase 2 of the 
project.  See Key Issue 5, page 17 
for comments on the items listed 
here. 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 83 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 4 OF 18 

KEY ISSUES, OPTIONS AND SOLUTIONS 
Key Issue 1 – Residential Lot Sizes and Housing, and Paying For Infrastructure 

IIssue Description 
The umbrella question for this key issue is: “What is the best residential plan that will the best balance: 
implementing the vision and guiding principles, addressing City and community preferences, covering 
the cost of infrastructure, and enabling desirable development?” 

This question is being brought to the Planning Commission in order to be responsive to community 
feedback from the on-line open house and recent testimony.  In summary, feedback has focused on 
concerns regarding lots size ranges, and the proportion of land planned for each lot size range.  To 
generalize, commenters have expressed a desire for lower density, and more “large lots” than are 
currently shown on the draft Concept Plan.  Many commenters have expressed this as a values-based 
request, focusing on Wilsonville’s high quality of life and why they move to the community, a priority for 
private amenities such as ample yards and three-car garages, and various concerns about recent 
development in Wilsonville.  Another reason noted is there is an unmet need for larger lots and the 
larger homes that would be built on them. 

The question is also on the table because of the importance of aligning the land use plan with the 
infrastructure funding plan. This alignment is a fundamental and practical need of property owners, the 
City, and future developers. It is also captured in one of the project’s Guiding Principles, which says: 
“Create a feasible implementation strategy - A realistic funding plan for infrastructure, smart and flexible 
regulations, and other strategies to promote successful implementation of the plan.” The on-line survey 
asked:  “How important is it that future development in the Frog Pond area can pay for the 
infrastructure needed to serve the area?”  Of the 170 respondents, 88% answered in the top positive 
categories ranging from Very Important to Somewhat Important. 

Context 
The context for answering this question starts with the overall residential implementation strategy that 
has been crafted to date.  The strategy has several parts: 

1. The Frog Pond area will be planned and developed as three interconnected neighborhoods 
(West, East and South) that are an integrated part of adjacent areas and an extension of the 
larger City. 

2. Frog Pond West will be planned exclusively for single family detached homes, and, lower density 
than future development in the East and South neighborhoods. 

3. All neighborhoods in the Frog Pond area will have features that implement walkability, 
connectivity, housing variety, parks and open spaces, and other aspects of the vision and guiding 
principles. 

For the purposes of this key issue, the above planning strategies are assumed as foundational. 

West Neighborhood 
The project team recommends that Planning Commission look first at the West Neighborhood, followed 
by the East and South neighborhoods, as it examines the lot size issue. In the last six months, it has 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 84 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 5 OF 18 

become clear that it could be many years before the East and South neighborhoods are brought into the 
Urban Growth Boundary (UGB), with additional years beyond that before annexation and development 
would occur. The East and South neighborhoods will also require a Master Plan that is not part of this 
project. The current Metro Urban Growth Report states that the current Metropolitan UGB has a 20-
year land supply for residential growth.  Further, all urban reserve areas in Clackamas and Multnomah 
counties are tied up in litigation over the urban reserve decisions by Metro.  The City of Wilsonville will 
continue to do long range planning for the urban reserve areas, but until there is more clarity on these 
issues the City’s request to Metro to bring them into the UGB is on hold. 

Description of the Current Draft Concept Plan for the West Neighborhood (Option D) 
The location of the lot sizes in the current plan (called Option D here, so options can be easily 
referenced) follow the following concepts: 

Large lots (7000-9000 square feet) in the northwest portion of the neighborhood, creating a 
transition to Boeckman Creek in the western half of Frog Pond Lane. 

Medium Lots (5000-7000 square feet) in much of the remainder of the neighborhood, forming 
the predominant land use (52% of the gross buildable area). 

Small Lots (2000-3000 square feet) in two areas: the southwest corner of the neighborhood 
(based on this being the closest area to jobs and commercial uses to the west); and along 
Stafford Road and the east half of Frog Pond Lane based on proximity to a future transit route.  

 

The Land Use Framework Map is on the following page.  

It is important to note that the character and livability of development would not be solely influenced by 
the lot sizes on the Land Use Framework Map.  Design standards, articulated at a policy level in the 
Community Design Framework Principles, would result in walkable streets, varied building form, 
architectural detailing, etc. 

Table 1 summarizes the acreages and housing capacities of Option D. 

Table 1 – West Neighborhood Housing Metrics for Option D 

Designation Lot Size 
Range (SF) Gross Acres Net Acres Dwellings 

Net Density 
(Dwellings / 

Net Acre) 
Large Lot Single 
Family 

7,000-9,000 31.8 20.6 112 5.4 

Medium Lot 
Single Family 

5,000-7,000 79.1 53.2 386 7.3 

Small Lot Single 
Family 

3,000-5,000 35.8 23.6 256 10.9 

Civic Institutional - 3.9 3.9 - - 
Totals - 150.6 97.4 754 7.7 
 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 85 of 143



JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION PAGE 6 OF 18 Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 86 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 7 OF 18 

The following tables provide additional ways of looking at the lots sizes in Option D.  Table 2 and the 
image on Page 8 provide lot size information for other Wilsonville neighborhoods for comparison to 
each lot size category of Frog Pond West.   

Table 2 – Comparison of Frog Pond West (Option D) to Existing Wilsonville Neighborhoods 

Frog Pond West Comparison Neighborhoods 

Designation 

Lot 
Size 

Range 
(SF) 

Average 
Lot Size 

Density 
(Units / 

Net 
Acre) 

Neighborhood 
Lots Typical 

Size 
Range (SF) 

Average Lot 
Size 

Density 
(Units / Net 

Acre) 

Large Lot 
Single 
Family 

7,000 
- 

9,000 
8,000 5.4 

Morey’s 
Landing 

7,000 - 
9,000 8,610 SF 5.1 

Wilsonville 
Meadows 

6,500 - 
15,500 8,244 SF 4.9 

The Park at 
Merryfield 

5,000 - 
8,000 8,659 SF 5.0 

Medium Lot 
Single 
Family 

5,000 
- 

7,000 
6,000 7.3 

Landover 4,000 -
11,800 6,690 SF 6.5 

Arbor Crossing 4,500 -
9,000 6,478 SF 6.7 

Renaissance 
Homes at 
Canyon Creek 
(I) 

5,000 - 
8,000 6,136 SF 7.1 

Small Lot 
Single 
Family 

3,000 
- 

5,000 
4,000 10.9 Legend at 

Villebois 
2,700 - 
6,150 3,783 SF 11.5 

Source: Angelo Planning Group GIS Analysis 

Table 3 provides the estimated “required home price” for each land use category, based on the land 
development financial analysis by Leland Consulting Group1 included in this packet.  The “required home 
price” is an estimate of what a home would sell for using the infrastructure costs estimated specifically 
for Frog Pond West coupled with the other land development assumptions described in the memo. 

Table 3 – Estimated Dwelling Cost Range for Frog Pond West (Option D) 

Designation Lot Size Range (SF) Average Lot Size Required Home Price 
Large Lot Single Family 7,000-9,000 8,000 $633,500 

Medium Lot Single Family 5,000-7,000 6,000 $484,600 
Small Lot Single Family 3,000-5,000 4,000 $350,800 

Source for required home prices: Leland Consulting Group Market Price Model. These are estimates, based on 
infrastructure and development feasibility information prepared to date, and are subject to change. 

                                                           
1 Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis, Leland Consulting Group, June 3, 2015, Figure 4, 
Market Price Model.  The memo is included in the packet for the June 10, 2015 Planning Commission meeting. 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 87 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 8 OF 18 Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 88 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 9 OF 18 

Description of an alternative lower density Concept Plan for the West Neighborhood (Option E) 
What would be responsive to the comments and concerns about the lot sizes and amounts of large lots 
described in Option D above?  To provide what this might look like, the team has prepared an 
alternative plan – Option E.  Option E uses the same basic geographies and location criteria as described 
above for Option D, but the lot sizes are increased in all categories. 

The Large Lot Single Family lots are increased from 7,000-9,000 square feet to 8,000-12,000 
square feet. 

The Medium Lot Single Family lots are increased from 5,000-7,000 square feet to 6,000-8,000 
square feet.   

The Small Lot Single Family lots are increased from 2,000-3,000 square feet to 4,000-6,000 
square feet.    

As noted above, the character and livability of development would not be solely influenced by the lot 
sizes on the Land Use Framework.  Design standards, articulated at a policy level in the Community 
Design Framework Principles, would result in walkable streets, varied building form, architectural 
detailing, etc. 

Table 4 summarizes the acreages and housing capacities of Option E. 

Table 4 – West Neighborhood Housing Metrics for Option E 

Designation Lot Size 
Range (SF) Gross Acres Net Acres Dwellings Net Density 

(Dwellings/Net Acre) 
Large Lot Single 

Family 
8,000 - 
12,000 31.8 20.6 89 4.4 

Medium Lot 
Single Family 

6,000 - 
8,000 79.1 53.2 331 6.2 

 
Small Lot Single 

Family 
4,000 - 
6,000 35.8 23.6 205 8.7 

Civic Institutional - 3.9 3.9 - - 
Totals - 150.6 97.4 625 6.4 
 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 89 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 10 OF 18 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 90 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 11 OF 18 

 

Tables 5 and 6 below provide information about comparable neighborhoods and estimated required 
home prices for Option E, as was done for Option D in Tables 2 and 3.  Similar to the notes above, Table 
6 provides the estimated price of a home in Frog Pond using the infrastructure costs estimated 
specifically from Frog Pond West, coupled with the other land development assumptions described in 
the Leland memo included in this packet. 2 

 

Table 5 – Comparison of Frog Pond West (Option E) to Existing Wilsonville Neighborhoods 

Frog Pond West Comparison Neighborhoods 
Designation Lot 

Size 
Range 

(SF) 

Average 
Lot Size 

Density 
(Units / 

Net 
Acre) 

Neighborhood Lots Size 
Range (SF) 

Average Lot 
Size 

Density 
(Units / Net 

Acre) 

Large Lot 
Single 
Family 

8,000-
12,000 10,000 4.4 

Charbonneau 
Single Family 
East 

7,500 - 
15,000 9,256 SF 4.7 

Medium Lot 
Single 
Family 

6,000-
8,000 7,000 6.2 

Arbor Crossing 4,500 - 
9,000 6,478 SF 6.7 

Landover 4,000 -
11,800 6,690 SF 6.5 

Small Lot 
Single 
Family 

4,000-
6,000 5,000 8.7 

Renaissance 
Homes at 
Canyon Creek (I) 

5,000 - 
8,000 6,136 SF 7.1 

Canyon Creek 
Estates 

4,500 - 
7,500 5,186 SF 8.4 

Source: Angelo Planning Group GIS Analysis 

 

Table 6 – Estimated Dwelling Cost Range for Frog Pond West (Option E) 

Designation Lot Size Range (SF) Average Lot Size Required Home Price 
Large Lot Single Family 8,000 - 12,000 10,000 $773,100 

Medium Lot Single Family 6,000 - 8,000 7,000 $573,800 
Small Lot Single Family 4,000 - 6,000 5,000 $437,400 

Source:  Leland Consulting Group Market Price Model. These are estimates, based on infrastructure and 
development feasibility information prepared to date, and are subject to change. 

Observations and Comparisons between Option D and Option E for the West Neighborhood 
Total dwellings – Reduced from 754 (Option D) to 625 (Option E) – a reduction of 129 units or 17%. 

                                                           
2 Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis, Leland Consulting Group, June 3, 2015, Figure 5, 
Market Price Model.  The memo is included in the packet for the June 10, 2015 Planning Commission meeting. 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 91 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 12 OF 18 

Net density – Net Density is reduced from 7.7 dwellings per net acre (Option D) to 6.4 dwelling per net 
acre (Option E) – a reduction of 17%. 

Affordability  – Comparisons of the Required Home Price in options D and E are summarized below. 3   
These estimates assume that major infrastructure (e.g. Stafford Road upgrade) is distributed evenly 
between all properties in Frog Pond West. 

Large Lot – Option D Required Home Price is $633,500 and Option E price point is $973,000 (18% 
increase) 

Medium Lot – Option D Required Home Price is $484,600 and Option E price point is $573,800 (18.4% 
increase) 

Small Lot – Option D Required Home Price is $350,800 and Option E price point is $437,400 (24% 
increase) 

System Development Charge Revenues – The City collects system development charges when 
properties are developed.  They are used to fund capital improvements throughout the City.  System 
development charge revenue estimates for Option D and Option E are provided below. 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost per Lot for Major Infrastructure – The Leland Draft Infrastructure Funding Strategy identifies 
approximately $10.6 million in major infrastructure necessary to serve Frog Pond West, above and 
beyond the on-site costs a developer would incur to build local water and sewer lines, streets, storm 
drainage, etc. 4  Examples of the major infrastructure for Frog Pond West include the oversized portions 
of Boeckman and Stafford Roads, a traffic signal at the intersection of Boeckman-Stafford-Advance-
Wilsonville Roads, the Boeckman Trail, and neighborhood parks to serve Frog Pond West.  Under the 
City’s infrastructure funding policies and practices, this $10.6 million would typically be funded by the 
multiple benefiting properties through a Reimbursement District, Local Improvement District or similar 

                                                           
3 Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis, Leland Consulting Group, June 3, 2015, Figure 5, 
Market Price Model.  The memo is included in the packet for the June 10, 2015 Planning Commission meeting. 
4 All references in this paragraph are to:  Frog Pond Area Plan: Land Development Financial Analysis, Leland 
Consulting Group, June 3, 2015, Figure 5, Market Price Model.  The memo is included in the packet for the June 10, 
2015 Planning Commission meeting. 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 92 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 13 OF 18 

financial instrument.  Assuming the $10.6 million would be allocated across all properties within Frog 
Pond West, the cost per lot comparison is: $14,100 per lot for Option D; and, $17,000 per lot for Option 
E (17.0% increase). 

Metro Functional Plan Compliance – Metro has told the City that there are no density targets required 
for Frog Pond West.  From this perspective, the two plans are essentially the same.  Metro will be 
contacted in June to determine if there are other compliance issues associated with the two plans. 

EEast and South Neighborhoods 
As noted above, most of the East and South neighborhoods are designated urban reserves by Metro (the 
school and community park properties are within the current UGB).  It is unknown when these areas will 
be brought into the UGB, but it will likely be many years down the road.  It makes sense for the City to 
conduct long range concept planning for the area, so that if and when the urban reserves do develop, 
the entire area knits together and is planned cohesively.  In addition, Concept Planning is a requirement 
to be considered for inclusion in the UGB. Table 7 provides the housing metrics for the current plan, 
Option D, for the combined East and South Neighborhoods.   

Table 7 – Combined South and East Neighborhood Housing Metrics for Option D 

Designation Lot Size 
Range (SF) Gross Acres Net Acres Dwellings 

Net Density 
(Dwellings/Net 

Acre) 
Large Lot Single 
Family 7000-9000 40.5 27.4 147 5.4 

Medium Lot 
Single Family 5000-7000 53.3 39.7 288 7.3 

Small Lot Single 
Family 3000-5000 52.9 37.6 409 10.9 

Attached/Cottage 
Single Family 2000-3000 37.7 37.7 481 17.4 

Civic Institutional - 7.3 3.3 - - 
Neighborhood 
Commercial - 5.3 5.3 - - 

Totals - 195.1 132.3 1,325 10.0 
 

The above-described assumptions for Option E were also used to calculate housing metrics for the east 
and south areas and presented in Table 8.  An additional assumption is the former Attached Single-
Family designation is renamed “Attached/Cottage Single Family” (ACSF) to indicate the intended 
flexibility in the housing form, and respond to concerns about too uniform a housing pattern in the East 
Neighborhood.  As such, the lot sizes for this designation increased from the previous 2,000-3,000 
square feet to 2,000-4,000 square feet.   

 

 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 93 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 14 OF 18 

 

Table 8 – Combined South and East Neighborhood Housing Metrics for Option E 

Designation Lot Size 
Range (SF) Gross Acres Net Acres Dwellings 

Net Density 
(Dwellings/Net 

Acre) 
Large Lot Single 
Family 

8,000 -
12,000 40.5 27.4 118 4.4 

Medium Lot 
Single Family 

6,000 - 
8,000 53.3 39.7 246 6.2 

 
Small Lot Single 
Family 

4,000 - 
6,000 52.9 37.6 326 8.7 

Attached/Cottage 
Single Family 

2,000 - 
4,000 37.7 37.7 401 14.5 

Civic Institutional - 7.3 3.3 - - 
Neighborhood 
Commercial - 5.3 5.3 - - 

Totals - 195.1 132.3 1,091 8.2 
 

Observations and Comparisons between Option D and Option E for the Combined East and South 
Neighborhoods 
Total dwellings – Total dwellings are reduced from 1,325 (Option D) to 1,091 (Option E), a reduction of 
17.6%. 

Net density – Net density is reduced from 10.0 dwellings per net acre (Option D) to 8.24  dwelling per 
net acre (Option E) – a reduction of 17.6%. 

Affordability – The relative price point comparisons are likely to be similar, on a percentage basis, to 
those cited above.  Homes built under Option D would be more affordable. The affordability will be 
greatly influenced by market forces and the change in cost of development between now and when (if) 
the urban reserves are developed.  

System Development Charge Revenues – The SDC estimates for the East and South Neighborhoods are 
summarized on Page 12 of this memo. 

Cost per Lot for Major Infrastructure - The Infrastructure Funding Plan identifies approximately $11 
million in major infrastructure that is necessary to serve the residential properties in Frog Pond East and 
South, above and beyond the typical on-site costs a developer would incur to build local water and 
sewer lines, streets, storm drainage, etc.  Examples of the major infrastructure for are the north side of 
Advance Road, the BPA Powerline Trail, and the neighborhood park in the East Neighborhood.  Under 
the City’s infrastructure funding policies and practices, this $11 million would typically be funded by 
multiple benefiting properties through a Reimbursement District, Local Improvement District or similar 
financial instrument.  Assuming the $11.0 million would be allocated across all residential properties 
within Frog Pond East and South, the cost per lot comparison is: $7,500 per lot for Option D; and, $9,100 
per lot for Option E (17.6% increase). 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 94 of 143



JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION PAGE 15 OF 18 

Metro Functional Plan Compliance – Metro Title 11 applies to urban reserve areas.  Metro’s 
representative on the Frog Pond Technical Advisory Committee stated that Metro staff could support 
the levels of density being examined at the time (Alternative B in the three alternatives evaluated last 
fall.  Since that time, Multi-Family residential has been removed from the plan as directed in the joint 
City Council-Planning Commission work session in January.  This reduced densities in the East 
Neighborhood by about 15%.  Metro will be contacted in June to determine if there are other 
compliance issues associated with the two plans (options D and E). 

RRecommendation 
The project team is providing information for the Planning Commission to consider.  The 
recommendation for the June meeting is to discuss the issues, options and trade-offs.  If there is 
additional information the Planning Commission would like, the June meeting would be a good time to 
identify it.  Resolution of this key issue, specifically the lot size designations in relation to development 
feasibility, will be brought back for Planning Commission direction in July. The City Council will also be 
conducting a work session which will inform the dialogue as the project proceeds.  

Key Issue 2 – 60th Avenue Classification and Cross-Section 

Issue Framing 
There are two questions for this key issue: 

1. Should 60th Avenue (south of Advance Road) be classified as a Collector Street or Local
Framework Street?

2. What should be the preferred cross-section – specifically, should bike lanes be on-street or off-
street?

The current working recommendation is that 60th Avenue should be classified as a Collector street from 
Advance Road south to the entry to the schools, and as a Local Framework street south of that point.  
The street would have two travel lanes (a center turn lane or median treatment is not needed due to the 
future traffic volumes).  On-street parking could be allowed under Wilsonville standards.  There is 
flexibility in how to site the bike lanes, but a Collector street in Wilsonville typically would have on-street 
striped lanes or a unique solution such as a cycle track.  

Task Force member Bill Ciz (a property owner in the South Neighborhood) has advocated for the Local 
Framework option classification for 60th Avenue.  This would also be a similar two-lane cross section 
(with parking possible), but the bike lanes would not be on-street.  Mr. Ciz recommends that a multi-use 
path (off-street and parallel to 60th Avenue) be built on the west side of 60th.  This would narrow the 
curb-to-curb cross-section and place a prominent path along the edges of the community park and 
school.  

Working Recommendation 
Staff recommends that this issue be discussed by the Planning Commission in July.  In the interim, the 
City will be completing the traffic impact analysis for the proposed schools.  This will provide additional 
information to inform the 60th Avenue questions.  Staff will prepare cross-sections for Planning 
Commission review.   

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 95 of 143



JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION PAGE 16 OF 18 

Key Issue 3 – Refinement for West Neighborhood Parks 

IIssue Description 
This issue proposes flexibility for how the City implements the two neighborhood parks planned for the 
West Neighborhood.  The refined concept would place a neighborhood park (2 acres minimum) within 
the neighborhood as the primary active neighborhood park.  The second park would be located in the 
western portion of the neighborhood, along the Boeckman Trail, and would be a  roughly 1.5 acre linear 
feature with a recreational trail in a  more natural setting intended to provide visual and physical access 
to the Boeckman Creek corridor.   

This issue is being brought to the Planning Commission as a working idea that has emerged from the 
Infrastructure Funding Plan.  The original plan for two “standard” neighborhood parks would cost an 
estimated $7,950,0005.  The refined concept would cost an estimated $5,660,000 saving $2,290,000.6  
This savings is helpful to the project’s effort to reduce infrastructure costs while still providing quality 
infrastructure and leveraging the neighborhood’s abundant natural resources. It is recognized that 
through the platting and development process, additional private parks will be provided – the figures 
here represent the public portion of the parks system.  

The original 2-park concept stems from the Wilsonville Park and Recreation Master Plan. The following 
table summarizes how the Frog Pond Concept Plan’s West Neighborhood compares. 

Table 9 – Park Assumptions and Needs Compared to Parks & Recreation Master Plan 

Frog Pond Concept Plan: 
West Neighborhood 

Parks and Recreation Master Plan: 
Frog Pond-Advance Road 

Neighborhood 
Assumed 
Residential 
Capacity 

754 Single Family Units 600 Single Family Units
600 Multifamily Units

Planned 
Parks 

1 Neighborhood Park
(2 acres Minimum)
1 Linear Feature with
recreational trail
(roughly 1.5 acres)

7.13 Acres Neighborhood
Parks

Key Issue 4 – Neighborhood Commercial Design 

Issue Description 
The question for this key issue is: “What guidance should be captured in the Concept Plan to ensure that 
the neighborhood commercial center is the appropriate scale and design to be a positive and compatible 
use in the East Neighborhood?” 

At the January 21, 2015 joint meeting of the Planning Commission and City Council, the project team 
requested guidance on whether to include the neighborhood commercial center in the Land Use 

5

6
 October 10, 2014 memo titled “Frog Pond Area Plan: Funding Analysis” from Leland Consulting Group. 

 , 2015 memo titled “Frog Pond Area Plan: Infrastructure Funding Strategy” from Leland Consulting Group. 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 96 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 17 OF 18 

Framework, and if so, at what location.  The Planning Commission and City Council voted on four 
possible options: 

1. Retail in the “Four Corners” location, recommended by the project team. (5 votes) 

2. A smaller commercial node at the Grange location, as examined in earlier iterations of the 
plan. (2 votes) 

3. Flexible land use designations that allow for a "market-oriented" approach, allowing 
commercial development or residential development on these properties. (3 votes) 

4. Removing retail from the planning area entirely, and instead considering a larger retail 
location west of Stafford Road within the Elligsen urban reserve area. (1 vote) 

The Planning Commission and City Council voted to retain the use and locate it at the northeast corner 
of the Stafford-Boeckman-Wilsonville-Advance Road intersection.  In short, the Planning Commission 
and Council members were supportive of the potential for local shops and services to complement the 
surrounding four neighborhoods, walking and biking to reduce the need for automobile trips to other 
commercial areas of the City, and design compatible with the surrounding residential uses. 

This key issue is being brought to the Planning Commission in response to community feedback from the 
on-line open house and testimony since the January joint meeting.  For survey question 8 regarding the 
proposed commercial community design standards, 151 people responded and the response was 
generally positive (3.36 overall weighted average score, 72% rating the images as “Its okay” or better).  
In the written comments, common concerns included: doubt that the retail would be successful, belief 
that Wilsonville has ample retail in other locations, concern for competition with vacant spaces, and a 
sense that Villebois’ retail was not successful so Frog Pond should not have local retail. 

Positive comments centered around: liking the imagery, preference for small scale, blending with the 
neighborhood, not being a regional destination, support for walkability, and a desire for outdoor 
seating. 

RRecommendation 
This issue is included because the project team believes it is important to acknowledge the concerns.  
The use and location should be retained in the Concept Plan, following the direction from January.  
Additionally, the design elements that received support should also be included in the Concept Plan.   

Key Issue 5 – Zoning Standards 

Issue Description and Recommendations 
As the Concept Plan has explored concepts for lot sizes and community design, the project team has 
identified ideas for zoning strategies to address community preferences. The project team recommends 
these ideas for further exploration in Phase 2: 

Flexible lot size options – Work to date has revealed interest and support for several lot size 
flexibility tools.  The first is the City’s existing lot size averaging standards, which are already part 
of the Planned Development Residential (PDR) provisions in the Wilsonville Code.  Task Force 
and on-line survey feedback has also been mostly positive regarding using the PDR provisions 
for this flexibility as well as the potential for Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) to help meet 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 97 of 143



   
 

JUNE 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION  PAGE 18 OF 18 

minimum density requirements, while increasing flexibility for larger lots. Feedback has been 
less positive about transfer of density – the team recommends this idea not be advanced. 

Yard standards – One of the often-cited reasons for the need for larger lots is to ensure good 
yards for homes.   In Phase 2, the project should look at minimum yard requirements or design 
standards as a tool to address this desire.   

Quality design standards - The Zoning Strategy memorandum, which will not be part of the 
Concept Plan, recommends:  “As a zoning strategy for the Frog Pond area, the City should 
consider creating a hybrid of its PDR regulations and the Villebois regulations.  There are good 
elements to draw from each, and the local experience and familiarity with them will be valuable 
in future implementation.”  The reference to Villebois is about the role that design standards 
play in ensuring quality design.  The specific design standards to be applied in Frog Pond should 
be tailored for Frog Pond, and worked out in Phase 2 which will follow adoption of the Concept 
Plan and will progress well into 2016. 

 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 98 of 143



Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 99 of 143



 

 

A VISION FOR FROG POND IN 2035 
The Frog Pond Area in 2035 is a Wilsonville community with attractive and connected 

neighborhoods. The community’s hallmarks are its walkable and active streets, variety of quality 

homes, and connected trails and open spaces. Frog Pond’s excellent schools and parks are focal 

points of the community. Frog Pond is “just a short bike, walk, or bus trip” from all parts of 

Wilsonville – a highly valued part of the larger city. 

 

GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR THE FROG POND AREA PLAN 
Create great neighborhoods 
Frog Pond’s homes, streets, open spaces, neighborhood-scale retail, and other uses fit 
together into walkable, cohesive, and connected neighborhoods. 

Create a complete streets and trails network 
Streets are designed for safe and enjoyable travel by car, bike, or on foot and a great 
network of trails is provided.

Provide access to nature 
The creeks and natural areas provide opportunities to see and interact with nature close to 
home.

Create community gathering spaces 
Beautiful parks, quality schools, and other public spaces serve as community centers and 
gathering places. The land uses, transportation, and open space around the Advance Road 
school and park sites support a compatible neighborhood plan in that area.

Provide for Wilsonville’s housing needs 
A variety of attractive homes are provided to fulfill the City’s housing needs and align with 
the market. Single-family homes are an important part of the mix, and neighborhoods are 
designed to be multi-generational and offer attractive housing options at a variety of prices.

Create a feasible implementation strategy 
A realistic funding plan for infrastructure, tailored regulations, and other strategies promote 
successful implementation of the plan.  

 PAGE 1 OF 2 Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 100 of 143



 
Frog Pond is an extension of Wilsonville 
Frog Pond is truly connected – it is an easy walk, bike trip, or bus ride to other parts of 
Wilsonville, and Frog Pond feels like a well-planned extension of the city.

Retain trees 
Mature native trees are integrated into the community to enhance the area’s character and 
value.

Honor Frog Pond’s history 
A sense of history is retained, recognized, and celebrated.

Provide compatible transitions to surrounding areas 
New urban land uses are good neighbors to adjacent rural land uses, future developable 
areas, and existing neighborhoods. 

Promote healthy, active lifestyles 
Extensive walkways, community gardens, recreational facilities, and other elements support 
active and healthy lifestyles.

Integrate sustainability 
Economic, environmental, and community-oriented solutions are integrated to meet the 
needs of today’s residents and help future residents meet their own needs.

Coordinate with Wilsonville’s transportation network 
The plan is consistent with the Wilsonville Transportation System Plan. Traffic impacts are 
managed for key streets and intersections, including the I-5 interchanges.

PROCESS PRINCIPLES 
Create a model that could be used in other communities. 
Provide early and ongoing opportunities for stakeholders to raise issues and concerns.  
Facilitate equitable and constructive communication between the public and project team.  
Empower residents to become involved with the project.  
Provide the public with balanced and objective information to help the public understand issues, 
alternatives, opportunities, and solutions. 

 

VISION AND GUIDING PRINCIPLES  PAGE 2 OF 2 Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 101 of 143



Fr
og

 P
on

d 
U

G
B 

A
re

a
!

!

!

!

Urban Growth Boundary

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n 

B
ou

nd
ar

y

El
lig

se
n

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
Ar

ea
 (4

G
)

Fr
og

 P
on

d
U

rb
an

 R
es

er
ve

Ar
ea

 (4
H

)

Wilsonville Rd

E
ss

ex
C

t

M
ee

k
Ln

X
er

ox
 D

r

Mcgraw Ave

WillowCreekDr As hl
an

d

Loop

M
u r

ra
y

S
t

D
ay

br
ea

k 
S

t

M
e

ad
ow

s
P

kw
y

P
rin

te
r

P
kw

y

Meek
Loop

S
um

m
er

to
n 

S
t

B
oe

ck
m

an
 R

d

O
ak

Pa
tc

h
C

t

G
le

nw
oo

d
C

t

Stafford Rd

Engle St

A
dv

an
ce

 R
d

Em
ery C

ir

C
ar

ria
ge

O
ak

s
Ln

M
or

ga
n

S
t

La
nd

ov
er

D
r

WagnerSt

San
da

lw
oo

d
Dr

To
ur

na
m

en
t

C
t

A
ld

er
cr

es
t

C
t

Fa
lle

n 
Le

af
S

t

Iro
n 

H
or

se
 S

t H
ol

ly
br

oo
k

C
t

Mcleod St

CanyonCreekRd

K
ru

se
 R

d

Canyon Creek Rd S
Wood Ave

Bou ch
a i

ne
C

t
B

ou
ch

ai
ne

S
t

K
ah

le
 R

d

53rd Ave

Fr
og

po
nd

 L
n

ColorConnection Courtside

Dr

CanyonCreekRdN

Mornin g
si

deAve

Tami Loop

Ro

anoke Dr

Roanoke

D
r

A
sh

la
nd

D
r

V
la

ho
s 

D
r

Ade n

Ave

Thornt
on

D
r

Th
or

nt
on

 D
r

Crestw
ood

Dr

Flynn St

Cascade Loop

Co
lvin Ln

60th Ave

W
im

bl
ed

on
Ci

r
N

C
ity

 o
f

W
ils

on
vi

lle

Ea
st

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d
W

es
t

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d

So
ut

h
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d

[
0

0.
25

0.
5

0.
12

5
M

ile
s

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 A

re
a 

&
 

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

ds

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
02

 o
f 1

43



[
0

50
0

1,
00

0
25

0
Fe

et

D
at

e:
4/

01
/1

5

D
is

cl
ai

m
er

:
Th

is
 m

ap
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 f
or

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s 

on
ly.

W
hi

le
 t

hi
s 

m
ap

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

be
st

 d
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
th

e 
tim

e 
of

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n,

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

W
ils

on
vi

lle
 m

ak
es

no
 

cl
ai

m
s,

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

, 
or

 w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s 

as
 t

o 
its

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
r 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s.
 M

et
ad

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
up

on
re

qu
es

t.

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 B
y:

 
A

ng
el

o 
P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ro

up

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

Sy
st

em
:

N
AD

 1
98

3 
H

AR
N

 S
ta

te
 P

la
ne

 O
re

go
n 

N
or

th
 F

IP
S 

36
01

La
nd

 U
se

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k

D
ra

ft 
C

on
ce

pt
 P

la
n

C
om

m
er

ci
al

La
rg

e 
Lo

t S
F

M
ed

iu
m

 L
ot

 S
F

S
m

al
l L

ot
 S

F

A
tta

ch
ed

 S
F

In
st

itu
tio

na
l/C

iv
ic

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
S

tre
et

Lo
ca

l C
on

ne
ct

io
n

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

re
a

Ta
x 

Lo
ts

B
PA

 C
or

rid
or

S
tre

am

P
la

nn
ed

 S
ch

oo
l S

ite

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
k

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 O

ve
rla

y

Ex
ist

in
g 

Tr
ee

s 
an

d 
G

ro
ve

s

Po
te

nt
ia

l F
ut

ur
e 

Pa
rk

 S
ite

Stafford Road

Bo
ec

km
an

 R
oa

d

Boeckman Creek

Stafford Road

Wilsonville Road

Wilsonville Road

Bo
ec

km
an

 R
oa

d

Fr
og

 P
on

d L
an

e
Fr

og
 P

on
d L

an
e

Ad
va

nc
e R

oa
d

Ad
va

nc
e R

oa
d

Boeckman Creek

60th Avenue 60th Avenue

Ka
hle

 R
oa

d
Ka

hle
 R

oa
d

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
03

 o
f 1

43



Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
04

 o
f 1

43



Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
05

 o
f 1

43



Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
06

 o
f 1

43



Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
07

 o
f 1

43



Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
08

 o
f 1

43



Stafford Road

Bo
ec

km
an

 R
oa

d

Boeckman Creek

Stafford Road

Wilsonville Road

Wilsonville Road

Bo
ec

km
an

 R
oa

d
Ad

va
nc

e R
oa

d
Ad

va
nc

e R
oa

d

Boeckman Creek

Canyon Creek Road Canyon Creek Road

Willow Creek Drive Willow Creek Drive 

60th Avenue 60th Avenue

Ka
hle

 R
oa

d
Ka

hle
 R

oa
d

[
0

50
0

1,
00

0
25

0
Fe

et

D
at

e:
11

/1
2/

20
14

D
is

cl
ai

m
er

:
Th

is
 m

ap
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 f
or

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s 

on
ly.

W
hi

le
 t

hi
s 

m
ap

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

be
st

 d
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
th

e 
tim

e 
of

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n,

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

W
ils

on
vi

lle
 m

ak
es

no
 

cl
ai

m
s,

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

, 
or

 w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s 

as
 t

o 
its

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
r 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s.
 M

et
ad

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
up

on
re

qu
es

t.

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 B
y:

 
A

ng
el

o 
P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ro

up

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

Sy
st

em
:

N
AD

 1
98

3 
H

AR
N

 S
ta

te
 P

la
ne

 O
re

go
n 

N
or

th
 F

IP
S 

36
01

E
xi

st
in

g 
M

aj
or

 A
rte

ria
l

E
xi

st
in

g 
M

in
or

 A
rte

ria
l

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

ol
le

ct
or

N
ew

 C
ol

le
ct

or
*

* I
nc

lu
de

s 
bi

ke
 la

ne
s 

an
d 

on
-s

tre
et

 
pa

rk
in

g 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

.

N
ew

 L
oc

al
 C

on
ne

ct
io

n

N
ew

 L
oc

al
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
S

tre
et

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

re
a

Ta
x 

Lo
ts

B
PA

 C
or

rid
or

S
tre

am

P
la

nn
ed

 S
ch

oo
l S

ite

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
k

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 O

ve
rla

y

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k
D

ra
ft 

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e

St
op

 S
ig

ns
 (o

n 
si

de
 s

tr
ee

ts
) 

or
 R

ou
nd

ab
ou

t

Tr
affi

c 
Si

gn
al

St
op

 S
ig

n 
(o

n 
si

de
 s

tr
ee

ts
)

E
xi

st
in

g 
Lo

ca
l S

tre
et

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
09

 o
f 1

43



Stafford Road

Bo
ec

km
an

 R
oa

d

Boeckman Creek

Stafford Road

Wilsonville Road

Wilsonville Road

Bo
ec

km
an

 R
oa

d
Ad

va
nc

e R
oa

d
Ad

va
nc

e R
oa

d

Boeckman Creek

Canyon Creek Road Canyon Creek Road

Willow Creek Drive Willow Creek Drive 

60th Avenue 60th Avenue

Ka
hle

 R
oa

d
Ka

hle
 R

oa
d

BoeckmanCreekTrai
l

South Neighborhood Trail

BPA Eas
ement Trail

60th Avenue Trail

[
0

50
0

1,
00

0
25

0
Fe

et

D
at

e:
11

/2
1/

20
14

D
is

cl
ai

m
er

:
Th

is
 m

ap
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 f
or

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s 

on
ly.

W
hi

le
 t

hi
s 

m
ap

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

be
st

 d
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
th

e 
tim

e 
of

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n,

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

W
ils

on
vi

lle
 m

ak
es

no
 

cl
ai

m
s,

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

, 
or

 w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s 

as
 t

o 
its

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
r 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s.
 M

et
ad

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
up

on
re

qu
es

t.

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 B
y:

 
A

ng
el

o 
P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ro

up

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

Sy
st

em
:

N
AD

 1
98

3 
H

AR
N

 S
ta

te
 P

la
ne

 O
re

go
n 

N
or

th
 F

IP
S 

36
01

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
S

tre
et

Lo
ca

l C
on

ne
ct

io
n

E
xi

st
in

g 
R

oa
ds

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

re
a

Ta
x 

Lo
ts

B
PA

 C
or

rid
or

S
tre

am

P
la

nn
ed

 S
ch

oo
l S

ite

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
k

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 O

ve
rla

y

E
xi

st
in

g 
B

ic
yc

le
 L

an
e 

an
d 

S
id

ew
al

ks

E
xi

st
in

g 
S

id
ew

al
ks

i
e 

 
e

es
tr

ia
n 

Fr
am

ew
or

k
D

ra
ft 

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
S

tre
et

(A
ll 

ci
ty

 s
tre

et
s 

w
ill

 
ha

ve
 s

id
ew

al
ks

)

Fu
tu

re
 T

ra
il 

C
on

ne
ct

io
n

P
ot

en
tia

l G
ra

de
-S

ep
ar

at
ed

C
ro

ss
in

g

P
ro

po
se

d 
B

ic
yc

le
 L

an
e 

an
d

S
id

ew
al

ks

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
10

 o
f 1

43



C
o
n

n
e
c
to

r 
Tr

a
il 

in
 f

o
re

st

U
p

la
n

d
 T

ra
il

U
p

la
n

d
 T

ra
il

C
re

e
k
si

d
e
 T

ra
il 

a
n

d
 B

ri
d

g
e

H
o
m

e
s 

o
n

 n
a
tu

ra
l 
e
d

g
e

C
o
n

c
e
p

t 
fo

r 
tr

a
il 

lo
o
p

F
R

O
G

P
O

N
D

L
N

C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y 
D

e
si

g
n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

D
e
m

o
n
st

ra
ti

o
n
 P

la
n
: 

B
o
e
c
k
m

a
n

 C
re

e
k
 C

o
n

n
e
c
ti

o
n

s

O
p

ti
o
n

 A
: 

C
re

e
k
si

d
e

(w
it

h
in

 S
R

O
Z

)

2
1
6
’

+
+

+
+

1
4
2
’

1
5
6
’

1
9
0
’

Boeckman Creek

C
a
n

yo
n

 
C

re
e
k

C
o
n

n
e
c
to

r

C
o
p

p
e
r 

C
re

e
k

C
o
n

n
e
c
to

r

C
an

yo
n 

C
re

ek
M

ea
d

o
w

s

O
p

ti
o
n

 B
: 

U
p

la
n

d
(m

in
im

iz
e

s
 i
m

-

p
a

c
ts

 t
o

 n
a

tu
ra

l 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 

s
te

e
p

 s
lo

p
e

s
)

B
o
e
c
k
m

a
n

 R
o
a
d

* 
N

e
w

 b
ri

d
g

e
 w

il
l 
a

ll
o

w
 t

ra
il
 

u
n

d
e

r 
b

ri
d

g
e

, 
c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 

s
o

u
th

 o
n

 t
o

p
 o

f 
s
e

w
e

r 
li
n

eF
ro

g
 P

o
n

d
 L

a
n

e

SROZ

Boundary

No
te

: A
ll 

tra
il 

al
ig

nm
en

ts
 a

re
 

co
nc

ep
tu

al
 a

nd
 

ar
e 

ill
us

tra
tiv

e

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
11

 o
f 1

43



B
O

E
C

K
M

A
N

 R
D

A
D

V
A

N
C

E
 R

D

N

0
8
0

1
6
0

4
0

2
0

P
e
d
e
st

ri
a
n
 a

n
d
 B

ik
e
 

U
n
d
e
rc

ro
ss

in
g
 S

tu
d
y

F
U

T
U

R
E

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L

F
U

T
U

R
E

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L

Tunnel

S
w

it
c
h
b
a
c
k

O
p

ti
o
n

 (
u

se
s 

le
ss

 l
a
n

d
)

+
2
2
5
’

+
2
2
3
’

+
2
2
1
’

+
2
2
7
’

+
2
2
7
’

+
2
2
5
’

+
2
1
3
’

+
2
1
6
.5

’

+
2
2
9
.5

’ WallWall

F
U

T
U

R
E

P
A

R
K

F
U

T
U

R
E

S
C

H
O

O
L

A
A
’

STAFFORD ROAD

60’ ROW

F
u
tu

re
 R

o
a
d

6
0
’ 
R

O
W

P
ro

p
e
rt

y 
L
in

e

2
6

0
’ 
R

a
m

p
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

fo
r 

5
%

 g
ra

d
e

2
0

0
’ 
R

a
m

p
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

fo
r 

5
%

 g
ra

d
e

3.
5.

20
15

U
n
d

e
rc

ro
ss

in
g
 a

n
d
 R

a
m

p
 D

e
ta

ils

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 A

A
d

va
nc

e 
R

oa
d

Tu
nn

el

12’

10’

1
2
’

F
u

tu
re

 S
tr

e
e
t

6
0

’ 
R

O
W

R
e

ta
in

in
g

W
a

ll

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
12

 o
f 1

43



Memorandum  

3/13/2015 

To:  Frog Pond Area Plan Task Force 
Cc: Technical Advisory Committee 

From:  Angelo Planning Group Team 
Re: Under-crossings Within the Frog Pond Concept Plan – What We Have Learned To Date 

 

OVERVIEW 
As part of the Frog Pond Concept Plan, interest has arisen for below grade street crossings near two 
main intersections in the planning area. The purpose of this memorandum is to summarize information 
gathered to date regarding below grade street crossings (aka under-crossings).  For purposes of brevity, 
the information is summarized in bullet format. 

CONCEPT 
The vision and purpose of under-crossings is to: 

Facilitate safe street crossings for pedestrians and bicycles, particularly to the proposed schools 
and Community Park south of Advance Road.   
Support the vision for the Frog Pond area neighborhoods as one of Wilsonville’s most walkable 
areas. 

POTENTIAL LOCATIONS  
Please see the attached Bicycle and Pedestrian Framework Plan. 
The primary undercrossing would be located under Advance Road, approximately 660 feet east 
of the four corners intersection.  This location is under the planned intersection that will serve 
as one of the access points to the schools and park, and, as access to the East Neighborhood and 
neighborhood commercial center to the north.  The undercrossing would also be at the northern 
end of a planned trail.    
Another potential undercrossing is located at the gateway intersection of Stafford Road and 
Kahle Road. 

CONSIDERATIONS FOR THE ADVANCE ROAD LOCATION 
Site Study 

Walker Macy prepared the attached site study for the Advance Road location. 
To achieve the assumed grades shown, the access ramps would need to be configured either as: 
a. A straight access ramp extending approximately 200 feet north of Advance Road.  A similar 

straight ramp design would run approximately 260 feet from the intersection on the south 
side of Advance Road.  

b. A switchback access ramp, which would require less distance north and south of the 
intersection but a wider footprint to accommodate the switchbacks. 

 PAGE 1 OF 2 Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 113 of 143



   
 

Team Comments on the Site Study 
Location – Placing the trail and undercrossing next to the park creates a direct connection 
between those uses.  
Switchbacks and ramps – The advantage with switchbacks is they will slow bikes 
down.  Question: would the switchback design be steeper with landings at the 
switchbacks? Perhaps a ramp on the south end and switchbacks on the north end would work 
well. 
Light and openness – To give it less of a dark trench look, either benching the retaining walls or 
battering them back should be considered.   A battered wall with the switchback design would 
greatly improve the lighting. 
Utilities - MSA has prepared draft infrastructure plans for the Concept Plan.  Utilties, particularly 
sewer routing, will need to be carefully reviewed to work with the undercrossing. 
Coordination – Clearly the design of the undercrossing needs to be highly coordinated with the 
School District and the City, reflecting considerations of infrastructure systems, safe routes to 
school, the trail-park relationship, attractiveness for all users, and impact to properties. 

EXAMPLE PROJECTS 
DKS summarizes two constructed undercrossing projects as follows (images are included in the 
attachments): 

“The first was a tunnel in Washougal Washington under SR-14.  This tunnel had significant 
tunnel lighting for security purposes. As you can see from the photos, there is great visibility 
during the day due to the tunnel lighting. It also had two motion activated CCTV security 
cameras that record footage anytime someone walked through the tunnels. This tunnel had 
a planning level cost estimate of $3.1 million. The actual construction cost was $1.25 million. 
I'm not sure what the design and right of way fees were on this project.” 
The second tunnel is in the Washington/Skamania portion of the Columbia River Gorge. This 
tunnel was for a Forest Service trail that crossed SR-14. Note that this tunnel did not have 
lighting so you can see how dark it appears. There were two similar grade separated tunnels 
constructed as part of this project so the attached bid is for two tunnels. The construction 
cost of these tunnels was $4.6 million or ($2.3 million per tunnel).”  

RECOMMENDATION FOR THE CONCEPT PLAN 
At this point, Angelo Planning Group recommends that the under-crossings be retained on the Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Framework Plan, and identified as a concept for continued study.  That is, the Concept 
Plan would describe the vision and purpose for the under-crossings and include the information 
gathered during the Concept Plan process.  The need for further detailed study, coordination, and 
design would be identified.  The logical time for that work to be done is prior to engineering studies for 
the improvement of Advance Road as part of the park and school design. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Framework Plan 
Walker Macy site study 
DKS images of example projects 
Images from the boards prepared for the Open House 

Frog Pond Concept Plan – Under-crossings  PAGE 2 OF 2 Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 114 of 143



UNDERCROSSING EXAMPLE 1: SR-14 Tunnel in Washougal, WA 

 
Before: South side of SR 14 

 

 
After: South end of SR 14 Pedestrian Tunnel, with stairs and ADA-accessible path connecting to 

fitness trail along the top of the Columbia River dike 
  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 115 of 143



UNDERCROSSING EXAMPLE 1: SR-14 Tunnel in Washougal, WA 

 
Before: North side of SR 14 

 

 
After: North end of SR 14 Pedestrian Tunnel, with pedestrian plaza 

 
 Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 

Frog Pond Area Plan Update 
Page 116 of 143



Open House Images of Intersection Treatments 

 
Pedestrian Refuge at Roundabout 

 
HAWK Pedestrian Crossing 
 
 
 Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 

Frog Pond Area Plan Update 
Page 117 of 143



Open House Images of Intersection Treatments 

 
Curbless Street and Intersection 
 

 
Pedestrian Undercrossing 
 
 Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 

Frog Pond Area Plan Update 
Page 118 of 143



WASHINGTON CO

CLACKAMAS CO

2

4

5

1

3

SW ELLIGSEN RD

SW BOECKMAN RD

SW MILEY RD

SW WILSONVILLE RD

S
W

65
T

H
AV

E

SW
 TOOZE RD

NEPRAHLRD

N
E

BO
O

N
E

S
FE

R
R

Y
R

D

SW
G

R
AH

AM
S

FE
RR

Y
RD

SW RIDDER RD

NE BUTTEVILLE RD

S
W

C
O

S
TA

C
IR

SW
BELL

RD

SW BARBER
ST

SW CLUTTER ST

S
W

S
TA

FF
O

R
D

R
D

S
W

B
O

O
N

E
S

FERR
Y

R
D

N
E

 G
R

A
H

A
M

 R
D

SW WESTFALL RD

N
E

A
IR

P
O

R
T

R
D

SW DAY RD

SW ADVANCE RD

SW HOMESTEADER RD

S
W

B
O

O
N

E
S

FE
R

R
Y

R
D

S
W

B
O

O
N

E
S

FE
R

R
Y

R
DS
W

11
0T

H
AV

E

S
W

 B
R

O
W

N
 R

D

§̈¦I5
Graham Oaks
Nature Park

Charbonneau
Golf Course

Merryfield Park Eng elman
Park

River
Fox Park

Canyon
Creek
Park

Courtside

Oregon State Parks 
Willamette

Meridian Landing

Park

Landover
Park

Town
Center
Park

Tranquil
Park

Arrowhead
Creek Park

Corral  Creek
Natural Area

Hathaway
Park

Boones
Ferry Park

Wil low
Creek Park

Sofia
Park

Palermo
Park

Memorial
to Boones
Ferry Trail

Murase
Plaza

Memorial Park

Boeckman Creek
Crossing Trai l

Northwest
Montessori

School

Oregon
Institute

of  Technology

Inza
R Wood
Middle

Boeckman ES

Wilsonville
High

Lowrie
Primary

Argyle Square 
Retail Center

Xerox
Company

Mentor
Graphics

Town
Center

School
Site

0 2,000 4,0001,000
Feet

[
Date:
9/10/2014

Disclaimer:
This map is intended for informational purposes
only. While this map represents the best data
available at the time of publication, the City of
Wilsonville makes no claims, representations, or
w arranties as to its accuracy or completeness.
Metadata available upon request.

Prepared By: 
Angelo Planning Group

Coordinate System:
NAD 1983 HARN State Plane
Oregon North FIPS 3601

Existing Bike Lane

Park

Natural Area

City of Wilsonville

Frog Pond Planning Area

Proposed Bikeway

Existing Trail 

Proposed Regional Trail

Proposed Water Trail

Major Destination

Low-Moderate Traffic Through Street

Frog Pond Bicycle and Pedestrian Projects

1. Planned Boeckman Creek Regional Trail
2. Proposed BPA Corridor Trail
3. Connection to Wilsonville HS and Boeckman 

Elementary
4. Potential Connection to Wilamette River 
5. Improved bicycle and pedestrian access 

through planning area

School

Urban Growth Boundary

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 119 of 143



SW STAFFORD RD

SWWILSONVILLERD

SW
 B

O
E

C
K

M
A

N
 R

D
SW

 A
D

VA
N

C
E 

R
D

NewlandCreek

B o e c k m a n C r e e k

W
ill

ow
Cr

ee
k/

La
nd

ov
er

Ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 P
ar

k

Bo
ec

km
an

Cr
ee

k
Na

tu
ra

l A
re

a

[
0

50
0

1,
00

0
25

0
Fe

et

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

re
a

U
G

B

S
tre

am
s

Tr
ee

 G
ro

ve
s

Ta
xl

ot
s

E
xi

st
in

g 
P

ar
ks

 a
nd

/o
r

N
at

ur
al

 A
re

as

Ex
is

tin
g 

& 
Fu

tu
re

 S
ch

oo
l

Si
te

s

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 N

at
ur

al
R

es
ou

rc
es

B
PA

 E
as

em
en

t

D
at

e:
  

9/
11

/2
01

4

D
is

cl
ai

m
er

:
Th

is
 m

ap
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
na

l p
ur

po
se

s 
on

ly.
W

hi
le

 t
hi

s 
m

ap
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
th

e 
be

st
 d

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

th
e 

tim
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n,
 t

he
 C

ity
 o

f 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 m
ak

es
no

 c
la

im
s,

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

, 
or

 w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s 

as
 t

o 
its

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
r 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s.
 M

et
ad

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
up

on
re

qu
es

t.

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 B
y:

 
A

ng
el

o 
P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ro

up

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

Sy
st

em
:

N
AD

 1
98

3 
H

AR
N

 S
ta

te
 P

la
ne

 O
re

go
n 

N
or

th
 F

IP
S 

36
01

Fr
og

 Po
nd

 Ar
ea 

Pl
an

al
 A

al
 Akmck
m

E 
RR

E 
R

Fu
tu

re
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ar

k

Fu
tu

re
 T

ra
il 

C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

(S
ee

Bo
ec

km
an

 C
re

ek
 T

ra
il 

C
on

ce
p t

fo
r p

ro
po

se
d 

al
ig

nm
en

t)

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
P

ar
k 

Ta
rg

et
 A

re
a 

(fo
r a

 2
.5

 A
cr

e 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Pa
rk

)

Tr
ai

ls
id

e 
P

ar
k

Pa
rk

s 
Fr

am
ew

or
k

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
20

 o
f 1

43



Memorandum  

3/13/2015 

To:  Frog Pond Area Plan Technical Advisory Committee and Task Force 
Cc: Project Team 

From:  Angelo Planning Group and Walker Macy 
Re: Community Design Framework 

 

OVERVIEW 
The purpose of this memorandum is to describe a Community Design Framework for the Frog Pond 
Concept Plan.  As used here, community design refers to the both architectural design (building scale) 
and community design (neighborhood scale) as described in Wilsonville’s Comprehensive Plan: 

“Implementation Measure 4.1.5.ii - The design of developments within the community can be 
regarded from two viewpoints: the design of structures as they relate to site and function 
(architectural design) and, their relationship to the surrounding area (community design).  Both 
aspects shall be considered to be of equal importance. Good architectural design is necessary to 
provide visual variety and allow for individual identity. At the same time, good community 
design provides a sense of unity with other development while eliminating conflicting 
appearances.”  (Plan, page D-29) 

 

It is proposed that a Community Design Framework be included in the Concept Plan to describe the 
vision and expectations for architectural and community design in the Frog Pond area.  The Community 
Design Framework will also serve as the foundation for potential comprehensive plan policies and 
development code provisions to implement the plan. 

The Community Design Framework will add a seventh framework plan to the six that have been 
prepared to date:  

Neighborhood Framework 
Land Use Framework 
Street Framework 
Pedestrian and Bicycle Framework 
Park and Open Space Framework 
Infrastructure Framework 
Community Design Framework 

The key parts of the community design framework will be: 

Community design principles – the intended outcomes 
Demonstration plans and images – conceptual plans and precedent imagery showing how the 
principles could be applied. 

 PAGE 1 OF 2 Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 121 of 143



   
 

COMMUNITY DESIGN PRINCIPLES 
The following principles are proposed.  Some principles are topical and apply broadly across the 
planning area.  Some principles are specific to locations within the planning area.  

Create a network of walkable blocks 

Create community focal points at the schools, parks, civic nodes, and neighborhood commercial center 

Provide safe intersections and safe routes to school 

Provide a variety of housing types and forms at the block scale 

Provide pedestrian-oriented and human scale architectural design  

Create compatible transitions between different building forms 

Create compatible transitions at the urban-rural interface 

Provide physical and visual access to nature 

Preserve key natural features and integrate them into new development 

Design storm water features as amenities 

DEMONSTRATION PLANS AND IMAGES 
Demonstration plans and images are in-process as of the date of this memo.  Working ideas for the 
images include: 

1. Layout of 4-6 block area around a park, representative of potential development in the West 
Neighborhood 

2. Zoom-in detail of the neighborhood commercial center 
3. Layout of 4-6 block area around where multiple housing types come together, such as in the 

East Neighborhood 
4. Site study of Boeckman Creek trail and how it works with adjacent neighborhood areas 

 

 

 

 

COMMUNITY DESIGN FRAMEWORK  PAGE 2 OF 2 Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 122 of 143



Memorandum  

 PAGE 1 OF 6 

Updated - 5/27/2015 

To:  Frog Pond Area Plan Technical Advisory Committee and Task Force 

Cc: Project Team 

From:  Joe Dills, Angelo Planning Group 

Re: Frog Pond Concept Plan Zoning Strategy 
 

INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this memorandum is to discuss and recommend a zoning strategy for the Frog Pond 
Concept Plan and Master Plan.  The term zoning strategy is used here as a short-hand term to mean the 
package of land use regulations needed for implementation, including amendments to the Wilsonville’s 
Comprehensive Plan, Transportation System Plan, Zoning Code and related documents. 

This strategy is a first “structural” review of the following questions: 

What documents will be amended or adopted to implement the plan? 
What should be the proposed Comprehensive Plan designation(s) for the area? 
What will be the nature of the implementing zoning: specifically, existing Planned Development 
Residential (PDR) regulations, Villebois-like village regulations, a hybrid of PDR and Villebois, or 
new regulations entirely? 
What standards and design guidelines should be anticipated? 

This memo is a prelude to writing the actual regulations – an approach, not the language itself.  It is 
beneficial to do now – as the Concept Plan is being prepared – so that the overall vision and plan 
direction is informed by knowledge of how it will be implemented. 

References to the Concept Plan below refer to the concept plan for the entire 500-acre planning area.  
References to the Master Plan refer to the more detailed planning that will be done in Phase 2 of the 
project for the West Neighborhood, the area currently within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). 

BACKGROUND REVIEW 
Wilsonville Comprehensive Plan 
Angelo Planning Group has reviewed the Wilsonville Comprehensive Plan to identify policies that are 
relevant to Frog Pond.  Based on this review, the Comprehensive Plan provisions listed below are 
particularly relevant to crafting the zoning strategy.  

1. Concept Plan and Master Plan as supporting documents of the Comprehensive Plan.  As 
described in the Introduction section, concept plans, master plans and similar documents are 
adopted as supporting documents of the Comprehensive Plan.  A distinction is made between 
those that are explicitly adopted as “part of the Comprehensive Plan” and those which are not.  
The former have regulatory authority, and apply when findings must be made “consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan”.   Supporting documents which are not part of the Comprehensive 
Plan are more guiding and are not regulatory.   

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 123 of 143



   
 

FROG POND CONCEPT PLAN ZONING STRATEGY  PAGE 2 OF 6 

 
2. Core Concepts.  Many of the core concepts in the Concept Plan are consistent with the goals 

and implementing measures of the Comprehensive Plan.  Examples include: 
Walkable neighborhoods. 
Community design that blends the natural environment with urban development. 
Local neighborhood commercial centers, with an emphasis on quality design and 
compatibility with adjacent residential areas. 
Boeckman Creek as an open space with scenic views. 
Protection of valuable natural resource lands. 
Compatibility between urban development and adjacent rural and agricultural lands. 
Recognition of, and priority for, good architectural design and overall community 
design. 
 

3. Minimum densities – the 80% rule.  The Comprehensive Plan includes an explicit 
Implementation Measure requiring a minimum density standard, as required by Metro.  This 
standard is stated in the zoning code.  Flexibility in its application is afforded through the City’s 
Planned Development regulations.   
 

4. Comprehensive Plan Map designations.  The Frog Pond UGB area (the West Neighborhood) is 
designated as Area of Special Concern L.  Most residential areas of the City carry a Residential 
plan map designation.  The exception is Villebois which has a Village designation and package 
regulations that are specific to the Villebois master plan area.  

Zoning Code 
Based on a review of the code and discussions with staff, the following are important points to note 
regarding the zoning strategy. 

1. PDR zoning provides  flexibility to waive and modify standards.  It is notable that minimum 
density is not currently eligible for waiver.  Rather, some flexibility is provided through the 
different housing types and lot sizes allowed in the PDR zones. 

2. Multi-family housing is “typically permitted” in PDR zones.  This provision is counter to the 
intent for the West Neighborhood of Frog Pond.  

3. The City has identified the need to address several problems with density ranges in the code: 
inconsistency with the density ranges in the Comprehensive Plan, and; gaps between the 
density ranges in PDR 4-5 and PDR 5-6.  

4. The Village Zone regulations and review process of Villebois reflect the unique vision, master 
plan and details of Villebois.    Several stakeholders have noted that development review in 
Villebois is very complicated and a more simplified system should be implemented in Frog Pond.  

5. While the Village Zone and procedures may not be the best choice for Frog Pond (due to its 
uniqueness and complexity), staff have indicated that some of the standards may be useful to 
consider in Frog Pond. 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 124 of 143



   
 

FROG POND CONCEPT PLAN ZONING STRATEGY  PAGE 3 OF 6 

Examples from Other Cities 

BBend – Special Planned Districts (SPDs) 
Bend uses Special Planned Districts to implement master plans in sub-areas of the City.   There is a wide 
variety of SPDs: ranging from Northwest Crossing (a master planned community similar to Villebois) to 
the Medical District (a hospital-anchored medical district) to the Lave Ridge Refinement Plan (a 
residential neighborhood).  Bend’s SPDs focus on the code:  each one is a chapter within the zoning 
ordinance.  The chapters are generally very comprehensive, including uses, development standards, 
design requirements, and maps of street and other framework plans.  Some SPDs are essentially mini-
codes within the code, and others are a combination of base zoning and additional special area 
requirements.    

For further information, please see:  http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/bend/?BendDCNT.html 

Portland – Plan Districts 
Like Bend, Portland also implements sub-area plans through its zoning ordinance.  Portland currently has 
32 Plan Districts, covering many different neighborhoods, town centers and districts within the city.         
Portland’s Plan Districts are crafted to include only those regulations that are different from the base 
zone or other sections of the code.  Some are very complex – the Central City Plan District runs 47 pages 
- and others are comprised of  relatively few requirements.  

For further information, please see: http://www.portlandoregon.gov/bps/34563 

Beaverton - South Cooper Mountain Community Plan 
The City of Beaverton recently completed the South Cooper Mountain (SCM) Concept Plan, including the 
SCM Community Plan and code updates.  The Concept Plan covers 2300 acres of land, including lands 
within the UGB and adjacent urban reserve lands.  The Concept Plan was adopted by resolution as the 
guiding plan for the area.  Land use implementation within the 544-acre UGB/city limits area occurs 
through a package of regulations: (1) Comprehensive Plan map designations; (2) the SCM Community 
Plan, a new Comprehensive Plan chapter containing goals and policies (along with explanatory text and 
graphics) that are part of most development reviews; (3) updates to the City’s Transportation System 
Plan; and, (4) citations of the applicability of the Community Plan within the Development Code.  Zoning 
(using the City’s existing zones and standards) is applied concurrent with development review.  Overall, 
the City will be using existing zones, standards and procedures, and supplementing them with a 
comprehensive set of Comprehensive Plan policies that specify requirements for development.  The 
regulations described above were adopted in January, 2015 and will be effective on March 6, 2015. 

For further information, please see:  http://www.beavertonoregon.gov/index.aspx?NID=1210 

  

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 125 of 143



   
 

FROG POND CONCEPT PLAN ZONING STRATEGY  PAGE 4 OF 6 

AN APPROACH FOR FROG POND – DRAFT, FOR DISCUSSION 
General goals and ideas 
The zoning strategy for the Frog Pond area should: 

a. Implement the Frog Pond vision and guiding principles. 
b. Create a system that will implement the vision if there is incremental development in the Frog 

Pond UGB area.  That is, the City should not rely on a large project/master developer approach 
like Villebois.  

c. Design a zoning structure that will work in the short and long term:  first in the West 
Neighborhood, then in the East and South Neighborhoods, and ultimately in other future  urban 
reserve areas. 

d. Only adopt new base zones if there is a compelling reason to.  The more “new code” that is 
created, the more potential there is for problems. 

e. Craft the fewest number of rules to get the job done, while meeting the City’s expectations for 
quality development.   

The Zoning Strategy 
As a zoning strategy for the Frog Pond area, the City should consider creating a hybrid of its PDR 
regulations and the Villebois regulations.  There are good elements to draw from each, and the local 
experience and familiarity with them will be valuable in future implementation. 

The following zoning strategy elements and working ideas should be considered.  

1. Adopt the Concept Plan (500-acre planning area) and Master Plan (UGB area) as supporting 
documents of the Comprehensive Plan as follows: 
 

a. The Concept Plan will establish, for the entire 500-acre area, the: overall vision and 
guiding principles; framework plans for land use, streets, pedestrian and bicycle 
networks, infrastructure and community design; infrastructure funding strategy; and 
zoning strategy.  The Concept Plan would not be “part of the Comprehensive Plan” as 
defined by the City, that is, it would not have a regulatory role.  Rather, it is a guiding 
plan for Comprehensive Plan amendments, more detailed master plans, code 
amendments, and on-going infrastructure planning.   

 
b. The Master Plan will establish, for the West Neighborhood and School-Park UGB areas, 

property specific Comprehensive Plan map designation(s) and the intended zones and 
future zoning boundaries.  The Master Plan would also provide: zoomed-in versions of 
the frameworks plans, with supplementing details (as-needed) for streets, blocks, 
pedestrian and bicycle facilities, parks and open space, and infrastructure; design 
guidelines; and, an infrastructure funding plan. 

 
c. Master plans for the East and South Neighborhoods will be created after/if those areas 

are brought into the UGB. 
 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 126 of 143



   
 

FROG POND CONCEPT PLAN ZONING STRATEGY  PAGE 5 OF 6 

2. Update/delete the “Area L” Comprehensive Plan designation and text to be consistent with the 
plan.   
 

3. Create and apply a new Comprehensive Plan designation called “Neighborhood” as the “base” 
plan designation for the West Neighborhood.  The Neighborhood designation’s purpose will be 
to create complete and walkable new neighborhoods in Wilsonville.  The City’s Residential 
designation is an option, but a new designation would better reflect the City vision for new 
neighborhoods with the areas added to the UGB.  The School-Park properties will be designated 
Public Lands. 
 

4. Adopt “fixes” to the problems previously identified by the City regarding the Planned 
Development Residential zones and utilize these revised PDR zones in the Frog Pond area.1   Add 
language to prohibit multi-family housing types in the PDR zones that are applied in the Frog 
Pond Master Plan (West Neighborhood).  Table 1 lists a comparison between Comprehensive 
Plan densities, PDR zone densities and the working Frog Pond Concept Plan designations.  
 

5. Supplement the PDR regulations with design requirements intended to create quality 
development, consistent with the Master Plan. How to codify these supplemental standards 
needs to be determined – one option is to create a new chapter “4.119 Standards Applying 
within the Neighborhood Comprehensive Plan designation.”   The Village Zone and Villebois 
regulations provide good source material for the supplemental design requirements.  A working 
list is attached.   However, the design standards to be applied in Frog Pond should be specifically 
tailored to Frog Pond. 
 

6. Utilize a two-step approach for entitlements.  Step 1 is the initial adoption of the 
Comprehensive Plan map designations and package of plan and code amendments.  Step 2 is 
the application of property-specific zoning concurrent with PDR review.  The following 
comparison table will need to be updated when the final land use designations for the Concept 
Plan are approved. 

Table 1 Comparison Table 

Comprehensive Plan 
Density 

Zoning District Closest Frog Pond 
Designation – as of May, 

2015 

Frog Pond Density – 
as of May, 2015 

0-1 u/acre PDR-1   
2-3 u/acre PDR-2   
4-5 u/acre PDR-3 Large Lot Single Family 5.4 u/acre 
6-7 u/acre PDR-4 Medium Lot Single Family 7.3 u/acre 
10-12 u/acre PDR-5 Small Lot Single Family 10.9 u/acre 
16-20 u/acre PDR-6 Attached Single Family 17.4 u/acre 
 

                                                           
1 The City has identified the need to: (1) correct the density “gaps” between the PDR-4/PDR-5 and PDR 5/PDR 6 
zones; and, (2) Make the densities cited in the Comprehensive Plan and Code more consistent. 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 127 of 143



   
 

FROG POND CONCEPT PLAN ZONING STRATEGY  PAGE 6 OF 6 

QQuality Design Requirements – Initial Ideas 
The following is an initial list of the types of design requirements that would ensure high quality design.  
They are sourced primarily from the Villebois code and pattern books, as reviewed by City staff.   

This list is intended solely as ideas and information.  The Frog Pond design standards should be 
specifically tailored to implementing the Frog Pond vision. 

1. A table of permitted building materials, similar to Villebois, to require quality materials with a 
shelf life and avoid materials such as vinyl siding.   

2. A “rules of adjacency” approach that addresses architectural styles and colors intended to 
promote architectural compatibility and harmony between adjacent developments, and 
architectural variety within each PDR zone. 

3. Fencing details, standards and placement. 
4. Requirements for enhanced building elevations along public view sheds (streets, parks, trails, 

open space).  This requires window trim, gridded windows, wrapped masonry at corners etc. 
5. Street signs with the Frog Pond logo. 
6. Dark sky street light requirements. 
7. A unified approach to community elements such as street furniture, parks and playgrounds. 
8. A master street tree plan based on planting strip widths and the functional classification of 

streets. 
9. Encouragement of passive solar orientation. 
10. Use of public works standards for Low Impact Development. 
11. Lot diagrams with other design elements included regarding the home – 10” stoops, shutter size 

to cover window proportionally, courtyard designs on townhomes (semi-public space), no 
“snout” houses, rear setback in alleys, front setbacks for home/porch. 

12. Alleys for attached single family and small lot single family development. 

 

 

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 128 of 143



L
o
t 

S
iz

e
 F

le
xi

b
il
it

y 
O

p
ti

o
n
s

B
a
se

 C
a
se

O
p
ti

o
n
 2

: 
A

c
c
e
ss

o
ry

 D
w

e
ll
in

g
 U

n
it

s
O

p
ti

o
n
 1

: 
P

la
n
n
e
d
 D

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

R
e
si

d
e
n
ti

a
l 
Z

o
n
e

St
ud

y 
si

te
 w

ith
 fo

ur
 8

,0
00

 s
qu

ar
e 

fo
ot

 lo
ts

Al
lo

w
s 

an
 e

xt
ra

 “
gr

an
ny

 fl
at

” 
on

 e
ac

h 
of

 tw
o 

16
,0

00
 s

qu
ar

e 
fo

ot
 lo

ts
Al

lo
w

s 
lo

t s
iz

e 
av

er
ag

in
g.

 E
xa

m
pl

e:
 o

ne
 1

6,
00

0 
sq

ua
re

 fo
ot

 lo
t a

nd
 th

re
e 

5,
30

0 
sq

ua
re

 fo
ot

 lo
ts

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
29

 o
f 1

43



C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y 
D

e
si

g
n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

D
e
m

o
n
st

ra
ti

o
n
 P

la
n
: 

S
in

g
le

 F
a
m

ily
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
rh

o
o
d

S
tr

e
e
t 

Tr
e
e
s

(P
ro

vi
d

e 
ca

no
p

y 
o

ve
r 

st
re

et
 f

o
r 

sh
ad

e,
 

p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

co
m

fo
rt

, a
nd

 r
ai

nw
at

er
 a

b
so

rp
tio

n)

S
to

rm
w

a
te

r 
B

io
sw

a
le

(N
at

ur
al

 d
et

en
tio

n 
an

d
 fi

ltr
at

io
n 

o
f 

o
n-

st
re

et
 

ra
in

w
at

er
)

L
a
rg

e
 L

o
t 

S
in

g
le

 F
a
m

ily

H
o
m

e
s 

F
a
c
in

g
 P

a
rk

M
e
d
iu

m
 L

o
t 

S
in

g
le

 F
a
m

ily
(W

ith
 m

at
ur

e 
tr

ee
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 in
 f

ro
nt

 y
ar

d
)

N
e
ig

h
b
o
rh

o
o
d
 P

a
rk

Cr
ea

te
 a

 n
et

w
or

k 
of

 w
al

ka
bl

e 
bl

oc
ks

La
rg

er
 lo

ts
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 lo
t s

iz
e 

av
er

ag
in

g 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

or
y 

dw
el

ln
gs

Pr
ov

id
e 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f 

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s 
an

d 
fo

rm
s

Pr
ov

id
e 

sa
fe

 
in

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
Pr

es
er

ve
 k

ey
 n

at
ur

al
 

fe
at

ur
es

 (t
re

es
)

Cr
ea

te
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
fo

ca
l p

oi
nt

s

Bi
os

w
al

e

Bi
os

w
al

e

Bi
os

w
al

e

Bi
os

w
al

e

L
a
rg

e
 L

o
t 

S
in

g
le

 F
a
m

ily
(7

,0
0

0
-9

,0
0

0
sf

)

L
a
rg

e
 L

o
t 

S
in

g
le

 F
a
m

ily

M
e
d
iu

m
 L

o
t 

S
in

g
le

 F
a
m

ily
(5

,0
0

0
-7

,0
0

0
sf

)

S
m

a
ll 

L
o
t

S
in

g
le

 F
a
m

ily
(3

,0
0

0
-5

,0
0

0
sf

)

C
o
tt

a
g
e
s

N
e
ig

h
b
o
rh

o
o
d

P
a
rk

 (
2
a
c
)

P
la

y
P

ic
n
ic

S
h
e
lt

e
r Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 - 

Ju
ne

 1
0,

 2
01

5 
Fr

og
 P

on
d 

A
re

a 
Pl

an
 U

pd
at

e 
Pa

ge
 1

30
 o

f 1
43



Stafford Road

Bo
ec

km
an

 R
oa

d

Boeckman Creek

Stafford Road

Wilsonville Road

Wilsonville Road

Bo
ec

km
an

 R
oa

d
Ad

va
nc

e R
oa

d
Ad

va
nc

e R
oa

d

Boeckman Creek

Canyon Creek Road Canyon Creek Road

Willow Creek Drive Willow Creek Drive 

60th Avenue 60th Avenue

Ka
hle

 R
oa

d
Ka

hle
 R

oa
d

BoeckmanCreekTrai
l

South Neighborhood Trail

BPA Eas
ement Trail

60th Avenue Trail

[
0

50
0

1,
00

0
25

0
Fe

et

D
at

e:
11

/2
1/

20
14

D
is

cl
ai

m
er

:
Th

is
 m

ap
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 f
or

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s 

on
ly.

W
hi

le
 t

hi
s 

m
ap

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

be
st

 d
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
th

e 
tim

e 
of

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n,

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

W
ils

on
vi

lle
 m

ak
es

no
 

cl
ai

m
s,

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

, 
or

 w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s 

as
 t

o 
its

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
r 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s.
 M

et
ad

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
up

on
re

qu
es

t.

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 B
y:

 
A

ng
el

o 
P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ro

up

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

Sy
st

em
:

N
AD

 1
98

3 
H

AR
N

 S
ta

te
 P

la
ne

 O
re

go
n 

N
or

th
 F

IP
S 

36
01

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
S

tre
et

Lo
ca

l C
on

ne
ct

io
n

E
xi

st
in

g 
R

oa
ds

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

re
a

Ta
x 

Lo
ts

B
PA

 C
or

rid
or

S
tre

am

P
la

nn
ed

 S
ch

oo
l S

ite

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
k

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 O

ve
rla

y

E
xi

st
in

g 
B

ic
yc

le
 L

an
e 

an
d 

S
id

ew
al

ks

E
xi

st
in

g 
S

id
ew

al
ks

e 
 P

e
es

r
a

 
Fr

am
ew

or
k

D
ra

ft 
Pr

ef
er

re
d 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
S

tre
et

(A
ll 

ci
ty

 s
tre

et
s 

w
ill

 
ha

ve
 s

id
ew

al
ks

)

Fu
tu

re
 T

ra
il 

C
on

ne
ct

io
n

P
ot

en
tia

l G
ra

de
-S

ep
ar

at
ed

C
ro

ss
in

g

P
ro

po
se

d 
B

ic
yc

le
 L

an
e 

an
d

S
id

ew
al

ks

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
31

 o
f 1

43



STAFFORD RD

STAFFORD RD

B
O

E
C

K
M

A
N

 R
D

A
D

V
A

N
C

E
 R

D

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 O
F

 H
O

P
E

 

C
H

U
R

C
H

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L

N
e
w

 N
e
ig

h
b
o
rh

o
o
d
 C

o
lle

c
to

r 
In

te
rs

e
c
ti

o
n

B
o
e
c
k
m

a
n
 R

o
a
d
/A

d
va

n
c
e
 R

o
a
d
 I
n
te

rs
e
c
ti

o
n

N
e
ig

h
b

o
rh

o
o
d

 C
o
lle

c
to

r 
R

o
a
d

L
o
c
a
l 
S

tr
e
e
t

C
o
lle

c
to

r/
A

rt
e
ri

a
l 
R

o
a
d

s
(B

o
e
c
k
m

a
n

/A
d

va
n

c
e
 R

d
s)

1

1

2

STAFFORD RD

F
R

O
G

 P
O

N
D

 G
R

A
N

G
E

N
e
w

 L
o
c
a
l 
S

tr
e
e
t 

In
te

rs
e
c
ti

o
n

2

3

3

S
id

ew
al

k 
ex

te
nt

s 
re

p
re

se
nt

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 R

O
W

 fo
r 

p
ot

en
tia

l e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f S
ta

ff
or

d
 R

d
. t

o 
5 

la
ne

s

F
R

O
G

 P
O

N
D

 L
N

Stafford Rd

K
e
y 

M
a
p

B
o
e
c
k
m

a
n

 R
o
a
d

A
d

va
n

c
e
 R

o
a
d

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
32

 o
f 1

43



B
O

E
C

K
M

A
N

 R
D

C
o
lle

c
to

r 
R

o
a
d
 R

o
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t

W
ils

o
n

vi
lle

 R
o
u

n
d

a
b

o
u

t 
E

xa
m

p
le

B
o
e
c
k
m

a
n
 R

o
a
d
 I
n
te

rs
e
c
ti

o
n

21

B
O

E
C

K
M

A
N

 R
D

B
O

E
C

K
M

A
N

 R
D

C
o
lle

c
to

r 
 R

o
a
d

B
o
e
c
k
m

a
n

 R
o
a
d

K
e
y 

M
a
p

C
o
lle

c
to

r
R

o
a
d

S
ta

ff
o
rd

R
o
a
d

B
o
e
c
k
m

a
n

 R
o
a
d

1 2

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
33

 o
f 1

43



S
ea

so
na

l c
ol

or
 p

ro
vi

d
es

 v
is

ua
l i

nt
er

es
t

O
p

p
or

tu
ni

ty
 t

o 
hi

gh
lig

ht
 t

ra
il 

co
nn

ec
tio

n

P
ot

en
tia

l a
re

a 
fo

r 
ga

te
w

ay
 e

le
m

en
t

V
er

tic
al

 e
le

m
en

ts
, l

an
d

sc
ap

e 
an

d
 s

ig
na

ge
 m

ar
k 

tr
an

si
tio

ns
 a

nd
 g

at
ew

ay
s

Fa
ci

lit
at

es
 t

ra
ns

iti
on

 fr
om

 r
ur

al
 t

o 
ur

b
an

 s
et

tin
g

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d
 s

ig
na

ge
 d

es
ig

n 
sh

ou
ld

 r
efl

ec
t 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r
of

 t
he

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ar

ea

C
o
n

c
e
p

tu
a
l 
G

a
te

w
a
y 

In
te

rs
e
c
ti

o
n

S
W

 S
ta

ff
o

rd
 &

 S
W

 K
a

h
le

, 
lo

o
k

in
g

 s
o

u
th

B
P

A
   

Ea
se

m
en

t

T
ra

il

A
g

ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

F
ie

ld

T
ra

il

K
A

H
L

E
 R

D
F

U
T

U
R

E
 K

A
H

L
E

 R
D

STAFFORD  ROAD

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
34

 o
f 1

43



C
u

rb
le

ss
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
n

d
 I

n
te

rs
e
c
ti

o
n

P
e
d

e
st

ri
a
n

 R
e
fu

g
e
 a

t 
R

o
u

n
d

a
b

o
u

t

P
e
d

e
st

ri
a
n

 U
n

d
e
rc

ro
ss

in
g
s

P
e
d

e
st

ri
a
n

 U
n

d
e
rc

ro
ss

in
g
s

B
ic

yc
le

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 a

t 
In

te
rs

e
c
ti

o
n

C
u

rb
 B

u
m

p
-O

u
t

C
o
n

c
re

te
 C

ro
ss

w
a
lk

Z
e
b

ra
 C

ro
ss

in
g

(P
ro

vi
d

e
s 

w
id

e
, 

vi
si

b
le

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

 c
ro

ss
in

g
)

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
35

 o
f 1

43



SW STAFFORD RD

SWWILS
ONVILLERD

SW
 B

O
E

C
K

M
A

N
 R

D
SW

 A
D

VA
N

C
E 

R
D

NewlandCreek

B o e c k m a n C r e e k

C
ou

rt
si

de
Pa

rk

La
nd

ov
er

Pa
rk

W
ill

ow
C

re
ek

Pa
rk

B
oe

ck
m

an
 C

re
ek

C
ro

ss
in

g 
Tr

ai
l

[
0

50
0

1,
00

0
25

0
Fe

et

B
ui

ld
in

g 
Fo

ot
pr

in
ts

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

re
a

U
G

B

P
ar

ks

S
tre

am
s

Tr
ee

 G
ro

ve
s

W
et

la
nd

s*

Ta
xl

ot
s

Fu
tu

re
 P

rim
ar

y 
&

 M
id

dl
e

S
ch

oo
l S

ite

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 N

at
ur

al
R

es
ou

rc
es

B
PA

 E
a

Lo
ca

lly
 S

ig
ni

fic
an

t W
et

la
nd

se
m

en
t

D
at

e:
  

9/
11

/2
01

4

D
is

cl
ai

m
er

:
Th

is
 m

ap
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
na

l p
ur

po
se

s 
on

l y.
W

hi
le

 t
hi

s 
m

ap
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
th

e 
be

st
 d

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

th
e 

tim
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n,
 t

he
 C

ity
 o

f 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 m
ak

es
no

 c
la

im
s,

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

, 
or

 w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s 

as
 t

o 
its

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
r 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s.
 M

et
ad

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
up

on
re

qu
es

t.

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 B
y:

 
A

ng
el

o 
P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ro

up

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

Sy
st

em
:

N
AD

 1
98

3 
H

AR
N

 S
ta

te
 P

la
ne

 O
re

go
n 

N
or

th
 F

IP
S 

36
0 1

Fr
og

 Po
nd

 Ar
ea 

Pl
an

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es

*J
ur

isd
ict

ion
al,

 lik
ely

 no
t lo

ca
lly

 si
gn

ific
an

t

SW LAUREL GLEN ST

SW WILLOW CREEK DR

SW LAUREL GLEN ST

Fu
tu

re
 P

rim
ar

y 
&

 
M

id
dl

e 
S

ch
oo

l S
ite

Fu
tu

re
 C

om
m

un
ity

P
ar

k

Willow Creek
Willow Creek

Meridian Creek
Meridian Creek Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 - 

Ju
ne

 1
0,

 2
01

5 
Fr

og
 P

on
d 

A
re

a 
Pl

an
 U

pd
at

e 
Pa

ge
 1

36
 o

f 1
43



H
o
m

e
s 

o
ve

rl
o
o
k
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
g
a
rd

e
n

H
o
m

e
s 

fa
c
in

g
 p

a
rk

 a
n

d
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
a
re

a

H
o
m

e
s 

fa
c
in

g
 P

o
w

e
rl

in
e
 e

a
se

m
e
n

t

L
o
w

 d
e
n

si
ty

 h
o
m

e
 o

ve
rl

o
o
k
in

g
 o

p
e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

H
o
m

e
s 

fa
c
in

g
 p

o
c
k
e
t 

p
a
rk

H
o
m

e
s 

o
ve

rl
o
o
k
in

g
 n

a
tu

re
 p

a
rk

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
37

 o
f 1

43



K
id

s’
 f

o
u

n
ta

in
 i
n

 p
a
rk

 p
la

za

P
a
rk

 e
ve

n
ts

C
iv

ic
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d

 m
a
tu

re
 t

re
e
s 

in
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
r-

h
o
o
d

 p
a
rk

N
e
ig

h
b

o
rh

o
o
d

 C
e
n

te
r 

P
la

za

Tr
a
ils

N
e
ig

h
b

o
rh

o
o
d

 P
a
rk

P
a
rk

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 w
it

h
 p

o
w

e
rl

in
e
 e

a
se

m
e
n

t
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 - 

Ju
ne

 1
0,

 2
01

5 
Fr

og
 P

on
d 

A
re

a 
Pl

an
 U

pd
at

e 
Pa

ge
 1

38
 o

f 1
43



Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 139 of 143



Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 140 of 143



Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 141 of 143



G
re

e
n
 I
n
fr

a
st

ru
c
tu

re

R
e
te

n
ti

o
n
 P

o
n
d

(H
o
ld

s 
ra

in
w

a
te

r 
in

 w
e
tl

a
n

d
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e
n

t)

G
re

e
n
 R

o
o
f

(R
e
d

u
ce

s 
ro

o
f 

ru
n

o
ff

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

ve
s 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 i
n

su
la

ti
o
n

)
P

e
rv

io
u
s 

P
a
vi

n
g

(A
ll
o
w

s 
ra

in
w

a
te

r 
to

 p
e
rc

o
la

te
 i
n

to
 s

o
il
)

P
a
rk

in
g
 L

o
t 

R
a
in

 G
a
rd

e
n

(N
a
tu

ra
l 
d

e
te

n
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 f

il
tr

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
a
rk

in
g
 l
o
t 

ra
in

w
a
te

r)

S
to

rm
w

a
te

r 
B

io
sw

a
le

(N
a
tu

ra
l 
d

e
te

n
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 f

il
tr

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

o
n

-s
tr

e
e
t 

ra
in

w
a
te

r)

S
tr

e
e
t 

Tr
e
e
s

(P
ro

vi
d

e
 c

a
n

o
p

y 
o
ve

r 
st

re
e
t 

fo
r 

sh
a
d

e
, 

p
e
d

e
st

ri
a
n

 
co

m
fo

rt
, 

a
n

d
 r

a
in

w
a
te

r 
a
b

so
rp

ti
o
n

)

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 - 
Ju

ne
 1

0,
 2

01
5 

Fr
og

 P
on

d 
A

re
a 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e 

Pa
ge

 1
42

 o
f 1

43



Attachment F:

Citizen Input received since April 2015 Open House

Is available online at:

http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/636/Maps Documents

Planning Commission - June 10, 2015 
Frog Pond Area Plan Update 

Page 143 of 143



June 2, 2015 
 
To: Wilsonville Frog Pond Task Force 
c/o Mr. Chris Neamtzu Planning Director 
 
Subject: Concept Plan 
 
We request that you consider the following in your deliberations for the final Frog Pond 
area site configuration. 
There are a diverse number of potential residents, ranging from starter households to 
families to seniors that will be in need of housing. They all have different needs in home 
features and costs. There will be people moving into the area and existing residents that 
would like to relocate within Wilsonville for the amenities it offers. No single type of lot 
size can meet these needs. Large lots are being advocated as a way to address the existing 
imbalance within Wilsonville between multifamily and single family housing. While well 
intended and passionately argued, it is not the panacea. We believe a flexible approach 
allowing larger lots to be created from smaller ones is an appropriate way to address this 
issue. There is a need for medium and small lot housing as well as large lot sites. Allow 
the latitude to develop site lot sizes where they make economic and market sense. We 
feel this balanced approach would appeal to potential residents and contribute to the 
success of the Frog Pond neighborhoods. We are in favor of owner occupied single 
family housing units comprised of stand alone residences, townhouse and condominiums. 
We are not in favor of additional multifamily housing rental apartments. We understand 
that multifamily rental housing is no longer being considered for any of the Frog Pond 
neighborhoods. 
 
Thank you considering our comments. 
 
Paul and Janene Chaney 
27227 SW Stafford Road 
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 

Attachment F



Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: RE: Frog Pond Concept plan

From: Debi Laue [mailto:laued@hasson.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, May 26, 2015 11:07 PM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris 
Cc: Straessle, Linda 
Subject: Re: Frog Pond Concept plan 
 
Thank you for the in depth reply Brian. One piece of the conversation that is missing is all the data is the pent 
up demand for high quality single level homes.   
 
I would enjoy the opportunity to meet with you (Chris) and Brian after the first of June. What are some 
dates/times that work for you? 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Debi 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

 

On May 26, 2015, at 4:40 PM, Neamtzu, Chris <neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us> wrote: 

Hi Debi, 
  
Hope you had a great Memorial Day weekend. 
  
Please see the below response from Brian Vanneman, Principal at LCG, regarding the testimony 
provided at the City Council worksession on 5.18.  
Please let me know what follow up questions there may be. 
  
Thank you, 
Chris 
 
FROM:  Brian Vanneman, LCG 
 
Between November 2014 and January 2015, I and my colleagues at Leland Consulting Group (LCG) 
reviewed home sale information in Wilsonville, Tualatin, and West Linn in order to inform our financial 
analyses for Frog Pond, and among other things to estimate reasonable sales prices of homes in Frog 
Pond (in 2015 dollars). 
 
Our main data source was Metrostudy (http://www.metrostudy.com/), which in our estimation is the 
best source of data regarding sales of new homes in the Portland region (Metrostudy was formerly New 
Home Trends). We also looked at data from Zillow and RMLS, and talked to developers and brokers. 
Metrostudy differs from most RMLS data in that it covers new construction. By contrast, RMLS reports 
information about the sales or new and older homes (re‐sales). Prices for older homes (re‐sales) are 
usually below new construction, and therefore less reliable. In addition, because Metrostudy covers only 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



2

new construction, we feel it is more indicative of recent (and near future) home building trends such as 
number of sales per year, size of homes, size of lots, etc. (We do acknowledge that people’s choices are 
constrained due to zoning, regulation, etc., and therefore issues such as demand for large lots may not 
be accurately reflected by past sales trends.) Metrostudy provided us with information on the sale of 
1,786 homes in Wilsonville, Tualatin, and West Linn between 1/1/2005 and 12/31/2014, and this was 
the primary data we looked at.  
  
It seems like LCG and many of the residents who testified before Council generally agree that there is a 
lot of demand for homes in the $350,000 to $600,000 range. I am glad that people think that is one 
sweet spot for the market. Our demographic analysis indicates that about 35% of Wilsonville’s 
population could buy a home in this range, and that is likely the largest market (by number of 
households) of potential homebuyers. This is a reasonable purchase price for many families earning 
between $75,000 and $150,000. Also, our dataset of home sales in this mid‐market range is deep. Most 
home sales are in that range, and therefore we can be confident that the figures we provided (e.g., lot 
size, sale price, home size) are relatively good averages.  
  
In terms of larger lots, some testimony, including that of Ms. Laue, raises good questions. One of the 
problems with estimating “average” sales prices for expensive homes and larger lots is that there are 
not many of these sales. Hence, when Ms. Laue stated that we based our analysis on a very small 
number of “estate lot” homes, she is correct. For example, of the 458 new‐build homes that sold in 
Tualatin and Wilsonville between 2010 and 2014, only three were 10,000 or larger. (Note that Ms. Laue 
may have more recent data from 2015.) Therefore, for estate lot homes, more judgment on our part 
was required, and we reviewed individual home sales near Frog Pond. We did see some homes that sold 
at or above $1 million, but these tended to be really exceptional lots and locations, in particular with 
views of and access to the Willamette River. This amenity does not exist at Frog Pond.   
  
To me, an important question is how large this market for $800,000 or $1 million‐plus homes is. Our 
demographic research indicates that 4 percent of households currently in Wilsonville earn more than 
$200,000, and therefore would be likely to be able to afford a home of $800,000 or more. Again, I 
recognize the chicken or egg question—it is possible that Frog Pond and Wilsonville could attract a 
greater share of such households. However, even in West Linn, this percentage is 14 percent, which 
suggests a range for how deep this market is likely to be.   
  
A quick review of Pahlisch Homes inventory suggests to me that most of their homes are selling in this 
$350,000 to $600,000 range. (http://www.pahlischhomes.com/homes/northwest‐oregon/)  
They have a few homes at $2 million‐plus, however these are a relatively small share (three?) of their 
offerings; one is the 2015 Street of Dreams home, which is 4,600 square feet on .4 acres in Lake 
Oswego.  
  
Another data point is: Of the 395 new construction homes that sold in Wilsonville and Tualatin between 
2012 and 2014, none sold for more than $625,000, and only 3 percent sold for $500,000 or more.  
  
In summary, a variety of sources suggests that housing that is accessible to households earning $75,000 
to $150,000 per year should constitute the bulk of the offerings at Frog Pond. I will leave the design 
features to the rest of the Angelo Planning Group team, but yards, parks, and access to schools all sound 
like great neighborhood features.  
  
I also hope that this planning process can find a lot of common ground and result in a plan that 
Wilsonville’s residents are really excited about.  
  
I can meet with or talk with you and Ms. Laue; however, my preference is to do that on or after June 1, 
as I have a number of deadlines before then.  

Attachment F



3

  
Thank you. 
  
Brian   
 
Brian Vanneman | Principal 
  
LELAND CONSULTING GROUP 
610 SW Alder Street Suite 1008 Portland Oregon 97205 
p 503.222.1600   m 503.780.1676   f 503.222.5078  
www.lelandconsulting.com 
People Places Prosperity 
  
Confidentiality Note: This email may contain confidential information or privileged material and is intended for use solely by the above referenced recipient. Any review, copying, printing, 
disclosure, distribution, or other use by any other person or entity is strictly prohibited. If you are not the named recipient, or believe you have received this email in error, please 
immediately notify LCG's Corporate Office (503) 222-1600 and delete the copy you received. Thank you. 
  
  
Chris Neamtzu, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.  

 
 

From: Debi Laue [mailto:laued@hasson.com]  
Sent: Friday, May 22, 2015 1:37 PM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: Re: Frog Pond Concept plan 
  
Thank you Chris. 
  
Debi 
 

 
Debi Laue, Principal Broker 
The Hasson Company 
Cell: 503-502-1750 
Office: 503-212-5034 
www.TheLaueTeam.com 

  
 

  
On Fri, May 22, 2015 at 1:31 PM, Neamtzu, Chris <neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us> wrote: 
Sounds good, there is a lot of work underway.  I would recommend that we wait to provide updated 
memorandums as they will be available in the next couple of weeks. 
I did share the original memo with Peter Kusyk when I met with him. 
  
Best, 

Attachment F



4

  
Chris Neamtzu, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.  

  

 
From: Debi Laue [mailto:laued@hasson.com]  
Sent: Friday, May 22, 2015 1:12 PM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: Re: Frog Pond Concept plan 
  
If you have that document handy (in email form) I would be happy to send it on to all the 
developers I've been in touch with.  My copy was printed out when it was given to me and I've 
written all over it.  I would like to talk to the consultant when they are available. 
  
Thank you, 
  
Debi 

 
 

 
Debi Laue, Principal Broker 
The Hasson Company 
Cell: 503-502-1750 
Office: 503-212-5034 
www.TheLaueTeam.com 

  
 

  
On Fri, May 22, 2015 at 12:57 PM, Neamtzu, Chris <neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us> wrote: 
 
Hello Debi, 
  
Thank you for the letter, it will be included in the record.  Just curious, did you share the infrastructure 
funding and development feasibility memo with Pahlisch Homes? 
  
The project team is working on a wide variety of materials that will be the subject of upcoming 
meetings.  I am asking Leyland to respond directly to your concerns/comments in writing.  
Once I get you that, you may want to have a conversation with them about the approach and findings.  I 
am happy to set that up. 
  
Have a great weekend, 
  
Chris Neamtzu, AICP 

Attachment F



5

Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.  

  

 
From: Debi Laue [mailto:laued@hasson.com]  
Sent: Monday, May 18, 2015 9:49 PM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: Frog Pond Concept plan 
  
Hi Chris, 
  
Tonight at the City Council meeting, I shared data from my own research regarding the 
possible/probable pricing for several product types that would more than cover the infrastructure 
cost of larger lots.  Tim Knapp encouraged me to set an appointment with you to review the data 
and give you a copy of it. 
  
I would really like the opportunity to follow up with you when you have time.  I've attached a 
letter from Phillip Pahlisch that shares the perspective of several builders I've talked to regarding 
the large lot scenario.  It would be great to have this added into the record. 
  
Please advise. 
  
Thank you for your time, 
  
Debi 
 

 
Debi Laue, Principal Broker 
The Hasson Company 
Cell: 503-502-1750 
Office: 503-212-5034 
www.TheLaueTeam.com 
 

 
---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: Elya Simukka <elyas@pahlischhomes.com> 
Date: Mon, May 18, 2015 at 3:26 PM 
Subject: Letter for Hearing Tonight 
To: "laued@hasson.com" <laued@hasson.com> 
Cc: Phillip Pahlisch <phillipp@pahlischhomes.com> 
Hi Debi,  
  

Attachment F



6

Here is a letter for the Frogpond hearing tonight with Pahlisch’s support for bigger lots in 
Wilsonville. Phillip is golfing for charity currently, so feel free to contact me if you think 
anything in the letter needs changed immediately. Wishing you well tonight!  
  
Warm regards, 
  
Elya Simukka 
Regional Business Representative 
Pahlisch Homes, Inc. 
12725 SW 66th Avenue, Suite 101  
Tigard, OR 97223 
Mobile: (503) 314-0744 
Office: (503) 596-2208; 207 
www.PahlischHomes.com 
www.Facebook.com/pahlischhomes 

 

Attachment F



May 18, 2015

To the Wilsonville City Planning Council,

Pahlisch Homes’ wishes to express our endorsement in favor of larger lot sizes at the Frogpond 
Concept Planning area. 

Pahlisch attests that larger lots in Frogpond would be a mutually beneficial plan and sound development 
decision for the city and builder, as larger lots meets the need of an ever growing home buyer market 
seeking executive and luxurious single level homes. Larger lots will accommodate these home styles 
that are desired and needed in Wilsonville, OR. With ideal land conditions, Pahlisch Homes has 
experienced much success building homes on larger lots in our 30 years’ building communities in 
Oregon. Pahlisch Homes believes Frogpond is one such area.

One past example of our success building homes on larger lots was at the 2013 NW Natural Street of 
Dreams at Stonehenge. We built two homes here on Rosement Road, and each lot was approximately 
1/3 acre on flat land. The margins on these homes allowed for the costs associated with infrastructure to 
be fully covered.  In Pahlisch Homes’ experience, the final sale of the homes here, and in many 
instances of building on sizable, flat lots do fully support the additional costs of development associated 
with a larger lot size. From these positive outcomes and given the current homebuyer market in 
Wilsonville, Pahlisch Homes urges the Wilsonville city planning council to consider larger lot sizes at 
Frogpond.

Sincerely, 

Phillip Pahlisch

Owner and VP of NW OR & SW WA Region

Pahlisch Homes, Inc.

Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

From: Straessle, Linda
Sent: Friday, May 22, 2015 12:41 PM
To: 'Katjohn1'
Cc: Neamtzu, Chris
Subject: RE: Frog Pond

Kathy, 
 
The Traffic Analysis is included as Appendix B: Future Transportation Analysis Memorandum to the Frog Pond 
Alternatives Evaluation Summary Appendices document found on the Frog Pond Area Plan’s Maps and 
Documents page.   
 
It starts on page 45 at this link:  http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/DocumentCenter/View/6695. 
 
 
 
 

Linda Straessle 
Planning Administrative Assistant 
City of Wilsonville  
29799 SW Town Center Loop East  
Wilsonville OR 97070 
503.570.1571 
straessle@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
 

 
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.  
 
 

From: Katjohn1 [mailto:katjohn1@frontier.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2015 7:58 PM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris 
Cc: Straessle, Linda 
Subject: Re: Frog Pond 
 
Sorry, I can't seem to locate the traffic analysis. Can you send me the link for that?Wilsonville Rd can't handle the traffic 
it has now and Villebois isn't even completed. Boeckman Rd is the only savior and that is getting backed up now.  It takes 
15 minutes to get to the West side unless you get stuck behind a bus. Plus, anytime a bus has kids on it, it backs up 
Wilsonville Rd even more with each stop both ways. Fun in the morning and afternoon.  
Thanks for your time, 
Katherine  
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On May 19, 2015, at 1:19 PM, Neamtzu, Chris <neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us> wrote: 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



2

Hello Katherine, 

Thank you for your comments.  I would like to provide you with a link to the project web site so 
you can stay apprised of the latest information.  The page can be accessed at 
http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/628/Frog‐Pond‐Area‐Plan  

It contains all of the technical information created to date, including the traffic analysis.  The 
consultant team indeed does account for the specific uses in the area, including the middle 
school.  There are no apartments proposed in the concept plan and the west neighborhood is 
currently proposed with all single‐family detached homes on a variety of lot sizes.  More 
information will be coming over the next couple of months.  If there are other questions or 
comments, please let me know. 

Thank you, 

Chris 

  

  

Frog Pond Area Plan Draft Alternative Concept Plan 
Comments 

First Name* 
Katherine 

Last Name*
budiao

Email* 
katjohn1@frontier.com 

Please provide comments or questions in the box below. 
Since the new middle school will bring in kids from other areas I hope you are 
calculating that into the traffic. I lived for 14 years in Rivergreen. Once Villebois 
opened, I could walk faster than drive on Wilsonville Rd headed to the East side of town. 
Very poor planning. Crimes, drugs, fights at schools, and gangs are way up- mainly from 
kids in the apartments. Parents in the apartments aren't invested in the community and a 
lot aren't invested in their kids. They are too busy working and usually have only one 
parent. At council meeting, one council member said there won't be apartments. At the 
end, another council member said there might be? Which is it and why the confusion? 

  

Chris Neamtzu, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.  
  

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



1

Straessle, Linda

From: Neamtzu, Chris
Sent: Friday, May 22, 2015 12:50 PM
To: luiten@alumni.usc.edu
Cc: Straessle, Linda
Subject: RE: Frog pond development

Dear Kathy,  
 
Thank you for your comments. 
I want to point out that the draft concept plan does not contain any apartments, and that the west neighborhood is all 
single‐family detached housing on a range of lot sizes to accommodate a variety of buyers. 
 
If you have not already reviewed the draft plan on the project web site, I would encourage you to do so.  It can be 
accessed at:  http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/628/Frog‐Pond‐Area‐Plan  
 
Have a great weekend. 
 

Chris Neamtzu, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.  

 

From: Kathy Luiten [mailto:luiten42@frontier.com]  
Sent: Friday, May 22, 2015 11:20 AM 
To: Talk2PC 
Subject: Frog pond development 
 

To the Planning Commission, 
 
First of all, thank you for your dedicated service to our wonderful town and community.  I have 
lived, worked and raised my children in Wilsonville for almost 38 years.  I have seen it grow 
from 1000 people to the present population.  Overall I have been pleased with the growth and 
new amenities but I am seriously concerned with the number of apartment complexes and 
attached housing units that have been built.  In the early days of city planning, we were told by 
the city officials that the apartments/high density would be built first.  “Don’t worry” the 
single family homes will come later.  Now it is time for the single family homes.  High density 
housing makes up 60% of the residences in Wilsonville.  This is too high of a percentage for our 
community.  We need to keep a balance of incomes, families, structures.  I can go on and on but 
I think you know all of the concerns. 
 
Please designate the Frog Pond area as a place for larger lots sizes.  I do not believe that 
it will cost too much to develop if we let many of the lots become ¼ acre lots for families who 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle

straessle
Rectangle

straessle
Rectangle



2

treasure a little more space, gardens and animals.  Wilsonville has grown up from being a 
farming community to more densely populated in just a few short years.  We don’t want it to 
just become like every other suburb…we have our own unique community that values nature. 
Please consider this in your planning.  Our parks are wonderful but backyards are great too. 
 
Thank you for listening, 
Kathy Luiten Goodwin 
luiten@alumni.usc.edu 
 
 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



1

From:
Sent: Thursday, May 14, 2015 3:08 PM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: Frog Pond lot size 

Dear Chris: 

I am out of the country on business. I was concerned to hear that the Frog Pond master plan is being 
scrapped and that development will be delayed for another year. Can you confirm? The rumor is that 
the large lot group has become organized, talking about aesthetics, talking about catering to 
"entrepreneurs" and other supposedly well heeled citizens. But these types of people are already a 
small minority of the US population. Why are they suddenly going to choose Wilsonville over West 
Linn or, for that matter, Dunthorpe? What is the demographic and economic argument? An 
entrepreneur like me (running a business with 130 employees) already lives in Frog Pond. You keep 
me by not doing anything. But would that be good for the real growth needs of our city? I'm certainly 
not going to stay for so called "large lots" when the bulldozers start moving. Hey, my "lot" is already 
16 acres!  

Count me as a landowner who would be very happy with the small lot sizes that you laid out for my 
property--the southwest corner of Frog Pond.  

Sincerely,  

Jim Wolfston  
Boeckman Rd 

Sent from IBM Notes Traveler 

Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: FW: Frog Pond development

From: Cosgrove, Bryan  
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2015 2:34 PM 
To: 'Lisa Reiter' 
Subject: RE: Frog Pond development 
 
Lisa, 
 
Thank you for sharing your thoughts and concerns about the Frog Pond development. I'd like to address a few of the 
concerns you've raised. There are zero apartment units being proposed for Frog Pond West. The proposed densities are 
akin to Meadows, Canyon Creek Estates and Arbor Crossing. The plan includes an abundance of parks, open spaces, 
natural areas, riparian zone protection, and trails. Additionally, the city owns 10 acres adjacent to the proposed new 
middle school at Frog Pond, and between the two entities there will be roughly 15 acres of new sports fields added to 
the mix. The city's planning department has a long history of ensuring all new residential development is high quality, 
safe, and connected to the larger community. We also understand that traffic is a concern for all of our residents. The 
city's engineering department could provide you additional details on what transportation projects are scheduled for the 
Frog Pond area over the next 20 years. You make the point that the plans have been "discussed/debated/defended", but 
I'd like to assure you that there are many additional opportunities for you to weigh in on the proposed plan, including 
public hearings before the planning commission and the city council. I am not sure if you have visited the project 
website for Frog Pond, so I'm including the link for your information. There is a ton of information on the website that 
might satisfy some of your concerns. I do appreciate you reaching out, and city staff shares your concerns and desire to 
make sure all new development is well planned, thoughtful and of the highest quality. Let me know if there is anything 
else I can provide to you. Here is the link: http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/628/Frog‐Pond‐Area‐Plan 
 
Regards, 
 
Bryan Cosgrove, 
City Manager 
 
503.570.1504 (office) 
cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
29799 SW Town Center Loop  
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 
 
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E‐mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law. 
 
“The only disability in life is a bad attitude.”  
~Scott Hamilton 
 

 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Lisa Reiter  
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2015 11:15 AM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Subject: Frog Pond development 
 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



2

Dear Mr. Cosgrove, 
 
My name is Lisa Reiter.  I have lived at my current address of         SW Morgan Street (Landover) with my husband and 
children for 18 years.  Our home backs to the corner of Wilsonville Rd. and Boeckman, and I am writing to you today to 
express our concerns regarding the development being proposed in Frog Pond. 
Like many of the residents of Wilsonville, we are greatly concerned about the proposal of multi‐family housing and small 
lot development.  Although we understand the development of Frog Pond is inevitable, our hope is the ultimate decision 
will be made to increase lot sizes and provide more single level homes, more parks and common spaces, including a 
sports field or community center.  This is what is needed in our community‐ we are not desperate for more apartments 
or compact homes on tiny lots‐ we have neighborhoods in Wilsonville that meet those needs and are still developing. 
In 18 years, we've lived through the rapid development of our city.  We've welcomed the new businesses and appreciate 
the diversity that comes with varying housing developments.  However, we have also watched our beautiful Frog Pond 
become an ever increasing traffic jam‐ what used to be a secondary route in and out of the city has changed to a primary 
outlet.  Although the plans show some improvements/alterations to the current 4 way stops and single roads, that 
solves only a minor problem.  Stafford Road and 65th can only handle so much traffic‐ I cringe to see what would/could 
happen if the proposed multi‐housing developments come to pass.  I realize all of this has been 
discussed/debated/defended, but my family will be personally impacted with having this nightmare directly behind our 
home‐ the air quality, the noise, the safety issues directly affect us. 
Please consider how these changes will impact individual residents.  I love this city and my home, but the proposed 
changes, if not constructed thoughtfully and with care, will destroy our quality of life here on Morgan Street.  I speak for 
myself and my family, but I know many residents who feel the same.   
 
Thank you for your consideration‐ 
 
Lisa Reiter 
Wilsonville 97070 
 
Sent from my iPhone 

Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: FW: Frog Pond

From: Neamtzu, Chris  
Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2015 1:20 PM 
To: katjohn1@frontier.com 
Cc: Straessle, Linda 
Subject: Frog Pond 
 

Hello Katherine, 

Thank you for your comments.  I would like to provide you with a link to the project web site so you can stay 
apprised of the latest information.  The page can be accessed at http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/628/Frog‐
Pond‐Area‐Plan  

It contains all of the technical information created to date, including the traffic analysis.  The consultant team 
indeed does account for the specific uses in the area, including the middle school.  There are no apartments 
proposed in the concept plan and the west neighborhood is currently proposed with all single‐family detached 
homes on a variety of lot sizes.  More information will be coming over the next couple of months.  If there are 
other questions or comments, please let me know. 

Thank you, 
Chris  
 
 
Chris Neamtzu, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.  

 

Frog Pond Area Plan Draft Alternative Concept Plan Comments 

First Name* 
Katherine 

Last Name* 
Budiao 

Email* 

Please provide comments or questions in the box below.  
Since the new middle school will bring in kids from other areas I hope you are 
calculating that into the traffic. I lived for 14 years in Rivergreen. Once Villebois 
opened, I could walk faster than drive on Wilsonville Rd headed to the East side of town. 
Very poor planning. Crimes, drugs, fights at schools, and gangs are way up- mainly from 
kids in the apartments. Parents in the apartments aren't invested in the community and a 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



2

lot aren't invested in their kids. They are too busy working and usually have only one 
parent. At council meeting, one council member said there won't be apartments. At the 
end, another council member said there might be? Which is it and why the confusion? 

 

Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: Online Form Submittal: Frog Pond Area Plan Comments

From: noreply@civicplus.com [mailto:noreply@civicplus.com]  
Sent: Saturday, May 16, 2015 7:46 AM 
To: Straessle, Linda; Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: Online Form Submittal: Frog Pond Area Plan Comments 
 
If you are having problems viewing this HTML email, click to view a Text version. 

Frog Pond Area Plan Comments 

First Name* 
Kathy 

Last Name* 
Hight 

Email* 

Please provide comments or questions in the box below.  
I prefer low density housing for the entire Frog Pond plans. These past years we have 
added too much high density housing and this is causing huge traffic issues. We live in 
Wilsonville to keep away from the traffic issues in the large metropolitan cities!  

If your comment is specific to a certain map or document, please include a reference to it so we 
can best respond. 

Thank you for participating. 

 
 
 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: RE: Frog Pond

From: Christina Skipper 
Sent: Saturday, May 16, 2015 9:48 AM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Cc: dawehler@gmail.com 
Subject: Frog Pond 
 
My family lives in the Meadows at        SW meadows loop and we do not want more high density housing in Frog Pond. 
Please keep our community of high quality with large lots and single family homes! 
 
Sent from my iPhone 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: RE: Frog Pond development

From: Cosgrove, Bryan  
Sent: Thursday, May 14, 2015 11:28 AM 
To: 'Charlotte Wilson' 
Subject: RE: Frog Pond development 
 
Charlotte, 
 
Thanks for the email regarding your concerns about Frog Pond. I agree with you that Wilsonville truly does have the best 
of both worlds, and a lot of that has to do with the exceptional attention to detail and thoughtful planning that has gone 
into the growth and development of this great town from its inception to present day. Whether it’s the planned 
communities of Villebois and Charbonneau, or the more traditional neighborhoods like Meadows, Canyon Creek Estates, 
Morey’s Landing, Hazlegreen, Park at Merrifield, or the recently completed, and exceptionally well designed 55‐and over 
senior apartment complex, Protera at the Grove.  
 
The City is committed – and required by statewide planning laws – to provide a diverse range of housing options across 
all income spectrums to meet the current and future needs of our residents. The city has a long tradition of ensuring 
quality design, and well planned, thoughtful neighborhoods. I hear much about “density”,  but I always hear people say 
how much they love their own neighborhood, whether they live in an apartment, traditional subdivision, or in Villebois. I 
think that’s a great thing when people feel very passionate about their neighborhood, and protective about the quality 
of life we all enjoy. 
 
Your email makes reference to high density, apartments, and unaffordable housing. Let me see if I can ease your 
concerns about apartments. There are zero apartment units being proposed for Frog Pond West. The entire 
neighborhood is proposed to be single‐family detached homes, with lot sizes ranging from 4,000 to 9,000 square feet – 
so essentially a blend of Canyon Creek Estates and Meadows.  
 
On the affordability issue, I have had several emails sent to me in the past four days with roughly the same talking point. 
Unless I’m missing something on this issue, increasing lot sizes is not going to help with the affordability issue. Indeed, 
larger lot sizes will make housing prices dramatically more expensive. Developers pay a premium price for land and 
infrastructure costs. If they have fewer lots to spread those costs over then the cost of a single building lot increases 
accordingly. 
 
I sincerely appreciate you taking the time to provide me with feedback on Frog Pond. I hope that you receive my email in 
the spirit in which it was intended, that is, to inform and provide additional background on the project. Your City Council 
takes very seriously its charge to ensure that the high standard of living we all enjoy in this town remains intact.  
 
I am including a link to the project site for Frog Pond. I would encourage you to take a look at what is being planned, and 
remain engaged in the planning process as it moves forward for ultimate adoption by City Council. There is a “contact 
us” function on the website where you can provide additional feedback. Again, many thanks for reaching out. My phone 
number is listed below should you desire to speak with me directly.  
 
http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/628/Frog‐Pond‐Area‐Plan 
 
Bryan Cosgrove, 
City Manager 
 
503.570.1504 (office) 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



2

cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
29799 SW Town Center Loop  
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 
 
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law. 
 

“The only disability in life is a bad attitude.”  

~Scott Hamilton 
 

From: Charlotte Wilson  
Sent: Thursday, May 14, 2015 10:49 AM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Cc: LRoney@WilsonvilleSpokesman.com; Doris Wehler 
Subject: Frog Pond development 
 
Hello,  
 
I'm Charlotte Wilson, and I'm a homeowner in Wilsonville. Almost two years ago my husband and I purchased a small condo on Volley 
Street. We've lived in Wilsonville for five years now (and my husband, Josh, spent most of his childhood here as well). What I love most 
about this community are the family-friendly neighborhoods, small-town feel, and fabulous schools. We have great grocery chains right at 
our fingertips, and the urban, funky vibes of Portland are only 20 minutes away. Wilsonville really does have the best of both worlds. 
 
I was dismayed, therefore, to hear about the plans for developing the Frog Pond land, because Wilsonville does not need more high-density 
housing or more apartments. What Wilsonville needs is affordable--and investment-worthy--housing for young families that would allow 
them to grow and stay in the community. I've had so many friends (also young families) who, while they love Wilsonville, have had to move 
to places like Tualatin, Sherwood, Woodburn, and Salem, because long-term housing isn't affordable. Wilsonville doesn't need to be 
Portland; let Portland be Portland, because Wilsonville is a unique spot of its own. 
 
I'm afraid that by building more high-density homes--that are honestly hardly a notch above town homes and far more expensive--we'll be 
crowding out the very demographic that makes this community so wonderful and inviting. Wilsonville needs homes that have real backyards, 
homes that families can grow in and settle into long-term.  
 
Our family loves Wilsonville, and that's why when we were buying a home we decided to purchase a condo, rather than finding a more 
affordable house in a neighboring town. We won't, however, be able to stay in our current home for longer than five years or so, because our 
dreams for our family will require more space. We'd hate to have to move away from Wilsonville, but if the city continues on its trajectory of 
crowding out young, hardworking families, we'll be forced to leave this wonderful and unique pocket of the Portland metro area. 
 
Please reconsider the plans for the Frog Pond development and find a solution that is more friendly to those who are eager to grow their 
families and contribute to this loving community. 
 
Thank you for your time. 
 
Regards, 
Charlotte Wilson 

Attachment F



Attachment F



1

 Subject: RE: SW Grenoble St Wilsonville, OR 97070

From: Malea Vedack  
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 3:58 PM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Subject: Re: SW Grenoble St Wilsonville, OR 97070 

Yes, I did notice that ‐ after my email (of course). Thank you :) My main concern is really the density, the increasing crime 
rate (almost 9% in one year), and the traffic (we avoid Wilsonville Rd altogether and avoid the freeway like the 
plague)...and to us it feels less and less like a community every year (been here since 1996...long before Villebois). I 
appreciate you reaching out though, that number was an error on my part.  

Malea  

On May 12, 2015, at 3:48 PM, Cosgrove, Bryan <cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us> wrote: 

Malea, 

I meant to mention that your email states that the large lots being planned for Frog Pond are “4000 
square feet” and that you are concerned about apartments.  There are no apartments being planned for 
in Frog Pond West, and the lot sizes range between 4000 to 9000 square feet. If you have not reviewed 
the project website for Frog Pond, I would encourage you to do so.  I note by your address that you live 
in Villebois. The planned densities for Frog Pond are significantly less than those of Villebois; however, 
the planning concepts are similar: create livable, safe, walkable, connected neighborhoods with lots of 
parks and open spaces. Here is the link:  http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/628/Frog‐Pond‐Area‐Plan  

Best, 

Bryan Cosgrove, 
City Manager 

503.570.1504 (office) 
cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
29799 SW Town Center Loop  
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 

DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records 
Law. 

“The only disability in life is a bad attitude.” 

~Scott Hamilton 

From: Malea Vedack  
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2015 4:21 PM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Cc:  
Subject: SW Grenoble St Wilsonville, OR 97070 

Attachment F



2

To Whom It May Concern,  
  
Please stop the current Frog Pond Development Plan which is to make more high-density housing 
(the LARGE lots are 4000 sq. feet...makes me wonder about the small ones...) in the Frog Pond 
Area.  
I moved to Wilsonville because of its high quality of life, the schools, the very family friendly 
atmosphere, and a myriad of other reasons...in the last few years, Wilsonville has added huge 
numbers of  
apartment buildings. I didn't move here for more traffic and high-density, which leads to more crime, 
worse schools, a more transient population etc. I came here because I like knowing my neighbors,  
I like the small-town feeling, and the top-rated schools. 
  
  

Malea Vedack 
Chief Administrative Officer 
Foundation for Excellence in Mental Health Care 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 
www.femhc.org 
  

Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: RE: Frog Pond development

From: Carl Goodwin  
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 1:54 PM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Subject: Frog Pond development 
 
Bryan Cosgrove 
Wilsonville City Manager 
 
Mr. Cosgrove, 
 
I have concerns about the high housing density that’s being proposed for the Frog Pond 
development area.  The  city of Wilsonville already has an excess of recent higher-
density housing, most notably in the new apartments, townhomes and the retirement complex 
just east of I5.  Before these were built, the city already had a higher percentage of 
apartments than any neighboring city.  Currently nearly 60% of housing units are 
apartments.  Much  of Villebois consists of multi-unit buildings, and townhouses, and 
many more are already under construction.  The detached, single-family houses are all on 
small lots.  Even the larger homes have little or no yard.  There are exactly two single-
level housing units in Villebois. 
 
The houses in the Landover and Wilsonville Meadows developments adjacent to Frog Pond, by 
contrast, have usable yards and more comfortable spaces between buildings.  Still, the 
ubiquitous apartments exist as part of Wilsonville Meadows and Bridge Creek, but at least 
the houses offer alternatives. 
 
Wilsonville needs more separate houses with yards to supplement those already nearby in 
order to attract people to come and stay as their families grow.  Lower-density 
development in Frog Pond offers a better transition from Landover and Meadows to the 
fields, woods, and farms north on Wilsonville Road and east on Advance Road.  
 
Higher density brings higher population and with it more stress on schools.  Wilsonville 
High School was completed (1995).  It needed to double its capacity for students just 10 
years later.  Doubling again to four times the original capacity is probably not 
physically possible but additional capacity would be necessary with the hundreds of 
housing units already built and the additional ones proposed for Frog Pond. 
 
Carl Goodwin 
Homesteader Rd. 
Wilsonville 
 
 
 
 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: RE: Thoughts from a WV resident

From: Scott McKnight  
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 3:40 PM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Subject: Re: Thoughts from a WV resident 
 
Bryan, 
 
I appreciate your thoughtful response and I recognize the challenges involved with these matters.  I'm 
unaware of any talking points, outside of my personal experience in WV and conversations with 
friends. My wife did ask me to send my comments to you.   
 
Look forward to meeting you as this process moves forward, 
 
Scott McKnight 
Regional Manager, Retail Sales Div. 
Shawfloors.com 
 

On Tue, May 12, 2015 at 3:34 PM, Cosgrove, Bryan <cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us> wrote: 

Scott, 

Thank you for the very thoughtful email. I’ve received emails on Frog Pond in the past four days, all with similar talking 
points. I appreciate the sentiments expressed in your email. It’s worth noting that the vast majority of apartments that 
have been built in Wilsonville over the past 5‐7 years have been built in Villebois, and on the former Thunderbird Mobile 
Home Park site. Villebois is a planned community 17 years in the making, and the original intent of that plan was to 
include a variety of housing types, with quality regional and neighborhood parks. The Thunderbird site is zoned for 
higher density, which makes sense given its close proximity to I‐5.  

The current recommendations for Frog Pond West call for 100 percent single‐family residential on lot sizes ranging from 
4,000 to 9,000 square feet, which is essentially a blend of Meadows and Canyon Creek Estates.  Moreover, the concept 
plan calls for quality parks, walking paths, natural area/wetland protection, and safe connections to nearby schools. I 
would encourage you to visit the project website and take a look at the concept plans for Frog Pond West and Frog Pond 
East. Here is the link:  http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/628/Frog‐Pond‐Area‐Plan 

I hope that you always feel comfortable reaching out to your local government for any reason. I take your comments 
and concerns seriously, and I will forward your comments to the City Recorder so they are part of the official record.  

Regards, 

Bryan Cosgrove, 
City Manager 
503.570.1504 (office) 
cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
29799 SW Town Center Loop  
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



2

DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law. 

“The only disability in life is a bad attitude.”  
~Scott Hamilton 

From: Scott McKnight  
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 3:00 PM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Cc: LRoney@wilsonvillespokesman.com; Alys McKnight 
Subject: Thoughts from a WV resident 

I'm writing as a very proud citizen of Wilsonville.  My family and I moved here nine years ago, when 
housing was in very short supply and prices were quite steep.  We made a tough decision to move here 
versus Sherwood and Tualatin, in part because of the 'community' feeling we felt here.  

Last year, we decided we had outgrown our home and were looking to relocate- our preference was to 
stay in WV, but we gave strong consideration to leaving due to the type of growth that WV City 
leadership seems to be supportive of.  We've watched apartment complex after complex be approved 
and built, while single family homes, with some type of basic family-friendly yard, have been largely 
ignored (outside of Villebois).  We originally moved to Wilsonville Meadows, but honestly, as we 
considered our next move, we were frustrated with the lack of WV housing options for families. 
Ultimately, our investment and connections to the people of Wilsonville compelled us to stay in the 
Meadows and we were fortunate to find a home that fulfilled many of our wishes. 

I'm forty-five years old and this is the first time in my life I've written to any type of government group 
or agency (shame on me, I guess), but  I'm asking you to please consider the broader-base of full-time 
Wilsonville residents as you plan the Frog Pond area.  Please plan for abundant parks and homes and 
yards that families can enjoy and grow with. Please, no more postage stamp lots or multi-family 
housing for this project. 

I appreciate your listening and your civic service, 

 
Scott McKnight 
Regional Manager, Retail Sales Div. 
Shawfloors.com 
 
********************************************************** 
Privileged and/or confidential information may be contained in this message. If you are not the addressee indicated in this message (or are not responsible for 
delivery of this message to that person) , you may not copy or deliver this message to anyone. In such case, you should destroy this message and notify the 
sender by reply e-mail. 
If you or your employer do not consent to Internet e-mail for messages of this kind, please advise the sender. 
Shaw Industries does not provide or endorse any opinions, conclusions or other information in this message that do not relate to the official business of the 
company  or its subsidiaries. 
********************************************************** 
 

Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: RE: Frog Pond

From: Anthony Newbold  
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 1:40 PM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Cc:  
Subject: Re: Frog Pond 
 
Thanks Bryan, 
 
I appreciate your prompt response!  I just took some time to sort through a lot of the documents on the website.  It 
does seem like there is a huge misconception about this project.  I'd like to apologize for not doing my due 
diligence prior to contacting you and I'd also like to thank you for your reply. 
 
One of the neighborhoods that my wife and I love to walk through is the neighborhood near us, on Roanoke.  I think 
the Frog Pond plan seems to be a larger scale of this area, with the "medium" sized lots being similar to the homes 
in this area, then the smaller lots being similar to the homes a little to the south on Emery Circle.  I like the 
diversity all along the East side of Canyon Cr. Rd. because it sort of appeals to everyone and seems to have more 
diversity than the Villebois area.  I saw a comment in one of the draft plans that the idea is to have a community sort 
of like the Canyon Creek neighborhood that I just mentioned.  Living in the Canyon Creek Apartments and walking 
through the neighborhoods just to the South of us always keeps us anxious to get our own place.   
 
Thank you again for your prompt and kind response, despite my lack of prior knowledge.  I was refraining from 
commenting on the Facebook group because it seems to only create drama, but I'm going to leave a little bit of this 
info on there for people to look into.  I think it's highly important to see both sides and have actual knowledge of the 
plan... 
 
I just subscribed to the Frog Pond notifications so I will be aware when changes are made in the future. 
 
Have a great afternoon and thanks again! 
 
Anthony Newbold 
   

From: "Cosgrove, Bryan" <cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us> 
To: Anthony Newbold  
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 12:01 PM 
Subject: RE: Frog Pond 
 
Anthony, 
  
Thank you for taking the time to share your opinions and thoughts on Frog Pond. I would encourage you to 
stay in engaged in the planning process, and research what is being planned for the area. I’ve been receiving a
lot of emails like yours with similar talking points. Of note in the string of emails is a misconception about the 
planned densities for the Frog Pond area. Many of the emails refer to “densities similar to Villebois, and 3,000 
square foot lot sizes”, which is not the case. I am including a link in this email to the project website. I would 
encourage you and others to review the information on the website, and continue to remain involved 
throughout the planning process. I am a firm believer that citizen input and involvement always leads to a 
better process and outcomes. I appreciate the tone of your email, and I hope the link I’m providing answers 
some of your questions. The website also has contact information for the project coordinator, and I encourage 
you to ask more questions, request information, and provide feedback.  
  

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



2

I’m always willing to meet with any citizen to discuss their concerns or answer any questions. My phone 
number is listed below. Here is the link to the project website: 
  
http://www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/628/Frog-Pond-Area-Plan 
  
Regards, 
  
  
  
  
Bryan Cosgrove, 
City Manager 
  
503.570.1504 (office) 
cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
29799 SW Town Center Loop  
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law. 
  
 

“The only disability in life is a bad attitude.”  
~Scott Hamilton 
 

From: Anthony Newbold  
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2015 9:53 AM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Cc:  
Subject: Frog Pond 
  
Dear Mr. Cosgrove-- 
  
I would like to offer my opinion on the Frog Pond Development planning.  Unfortunately I will not be able to attend 
the next meeting on May 18, 2015 so I am hoping that my email will be seen and my family's voice will be heard. 
  
We currently live in the Canyon Creek Apartments and would like to buy a home someday soon (in Wilsonville, of 
course).  Our family is growing and we are planning on continuing that growth.  Currently, our oldest is 2 and she 
has more energy than any kid I've ever met!  One of the things that we have discussed for when we buy a house is 
needing to have a backyard big enough to let our children run around in and get their energy out.  With the Villebois-
style housing that is becoming the new construction norm in Wilsonville, we would not be able to have that 
opportunity. 
  
We LOVE Wilsonville and we are so thankful that there is a plan for further development.  Without 
past development, we wouldn't live in Wilsonville.  However, I would like to ask that you strongly consider larger lots 
that give plenty of space for families with young kids to run around in, entertain friends as the kids grow older, and 
give plenty of space for the parents to take advantage of when the kids are done with school (gardening, 
entertaining, etc.).  When we buy a house, we will be looking for a long-term purchase.  We want a home that will 
serve our needs for not just the next 5 years, but the next 50.  I know that we are not alone in this, and in 20 years 
when Frog Pond is developed, there will be families just like us.  Obviously I know it's not being built now and we 
probably won't be buying a house there.  But I also know that we're not alone in our view and there will be families 
just like us in 20 years. 
  
When we look to buy a house, our top priority is to stay in Wilsonville.  But if the current trend continues, the only 
available housing being the Villebois-style, we will look elsewhere.  If we look elsewhere and move out of 
Wilsonville, we probably won't come back.  And that is a sad reality.  It's sad for us because we love Wilsonville...but 

Attachment F



3

we also need to pick a home that we will love and we want to establish roots for ourselves.  It's also sad for the 
Community of Wilsonville as a whole, because my family has always been active in the community and always will 
be.  My wife and I live with a purpose to connect with our neighbors and help people when they are in need.  I see 
that as a priority with a lot of people in Wilsonville and that's one thing that is so great about this city.  As a family, 
we will be growing in our community, both with friendships/relationships, and as our income grows.  As our income 
increases, so will our ability to give back to the community.  We hope to become an established family in Wilsonville, 
but if there is not the right type of housing available when we're ready to buy, we will be forced to look in a different 
area.  I know this will be true for other families in 20 years as well. 
  
Please consider a broader housing approach, rather than just high-density housing.  One of the neat things about 
Wilsonville is that the East side is so different from the West side.  There are many options for what neighborhood to 
live in and what style you want.  What would be cool to see is that diversity sticking around for years to come, 
because I think it would attract more people, and more diverse people.  By only moving forward with Villebois-style 
housing, you are really only targeting very young families and older, empty-nesters.  Not that there is anything 
wrong with those types, but there also needs to be a place for the people in the middle, like my family will be in a 
few years. 
  
Thank you for reading my lengthy email, I truly appreciate your time.  Good luck next Monday, I know that people 
get upset real quick, so I don't envy you in your position! 
  
Grace & Peace, 
  
Anthony Newbold 
 

Attachment F



1

 Subject: RE: Frog Pond development 

‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Cosgrove, Bryan  
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2015 5:08 PM 
To: 'Courtney' 
Subject: RE: Frog Pond development  

Courtney, 

Thanks for the email. I will forward your email to the City Recorder so she can include it in the official record that will 
ultimately go to Council prior to any decision being made. I am copying Chris Neamtzu and Miranda Bateschell in the 
city’s planning department so they are aware of your concerns.  

Best Regards, 

Bryan Cosgrove, 
City Manager 

503.570.1504 (office) 
cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
29799 SW Town Center Loop  
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 

DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E‐mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law. 

“The only disability in life is a bad attitude.”  
~Scott Hamilton 

‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Courtney  
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2015 5:07 PM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Cc: dawehler@gmail.com 
Subject: Frog Pond development  

I received your information from Emily McClelland. 

I strongly disagree with this frog pond development. Wilsonville is very family oriented but if it gets even bigger with 
residents it will no longer be family oriented. It will also be less safe. I love the school that my kids go to and how safe it 
is. Please do not take this family feel away from us. We do not need to over due itself by meeting some sort of ridiculous 
goal that does not need to be met. We love Wilsonville. It is perfect how it is. Do not make this into Portland and I don't 
like Portland. Keep the goal to keep Wilsonville family oriented.  

Thank you.  

Attachment F



1

 Subject: RE: Against Current Frog Pond Plan

From: Cosgrove, Bryan  
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2015 5:04 PM 
To: Emily Mc. 
Cc: Bateschell, Miranda; Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: RE: Against Current Frog Pond Plan 

Emily 

Thanks for the email. I will forward your email to the City Recorder so she can include it in the official record that will 
ultimately go to Council prior to any decision being made. I am copying Chris Neamtzu and Miranda Bateschell in the 
city’s planning department so they are aware of your concerns.  

Best Regards, 

Bryan Cosgrove, 
City Manager 

503.570.1504 (office) 
cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
29799 SW Town Center Loop  
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 

DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law. 

“The only disability in life is a bad attitude.”  
~Scott Hamilton 

From: Emily Mc.  
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2015 4:09 PM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Cc: LHall@wilsonvillespokesman.com 
Subject: Against Current Frog Pond Plan 

Dear Mr. Cosgrove, 

I have recently become aware of the city's plan to develop the Frog Pond area with the large lots being around 4000 sq. feet.   We need 
larger lots, making for a much more family friendly neighborhood somewhat like The MEADOWS.   I am VERY MUCH AGAINST the 
current proposal for Frog Pond.  As I see it, the current plan is ANTI-FAMILY among many other bad things...Families, especially larger 
ones, can't live in apartments and have a long-term happy quality of life no matter how many parks you build.  Families are what has 
made Wilsonville great and is what attracts long term and stable people to this area.  I know of good families, good people, that will 
LEAVE our fantastic town if the current plan continues. Crime will increase, traffic will be horrendous, schools will suffer, leading to a 
lower quality of life for EVERYONE. 

Sincerely, 
Emily McClelland 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 

Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

To:
Subject:

Neamtzu, Chris
RE:  SW Grenoble St Wilsonville, OR 97070

From: Cosgrove, Bryan  
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2015 5:05 PM 
To: Malea Vedack 
Cc: Neamtzu, Chris; Bateschell, Miranda 
Subject: RE:  SW Grenoble St Wilsonville, OR 97070 

Malea, 

Thanks for the email. I will forward your email to the City Recorder so she can include it in the official record that will 
ultimately go to Council prior to any decision being made. I am copying Chris Neamtzu and Miranda Bateschell in the 
city’s planning department so they are aware of your concerns.  

Best Regards, 

Bryan Cosgrove, 
City Manager 

503.570.1504 (office) 
cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
29799 SW Town Center Loop  
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 

DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law. 

“The only disability in life is a bad attitude.”  
~Scott Hamilton 

From: Malea Vedack 
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2015 4:21 PM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Cc: 
Subject: 12025 SW Grenoble St Wilsonville, OR 97070 

To Whom It May Concern,  

Please stop the current Frog Pond Development Plan which is to make more high-density housing (the LARGE lots 
are 4000 sq. feet...makes me wonder about the small ones...) in the Frog Pond Area.  
I moved to Wilsonville because of its high quality of life, the schools, the very family friendly atmosphere, and a 
myriad of other reasons...in the last few years, Wilsonville has added huge numbers of  
apartment buildings. I didn't move here for more traffic and high-density, which leads to more crime, worse schools, 
a more transient population etc. I came here because I like knowing my neighbors,  
I like the small-town feeling, and the top-rated schools. 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



2

Malea Vedack
Chief Administrative Officer 
Foundation for Excellence in Mental Health Care 
P.O. Box 3772 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 
Phone:  503.841.1020 

www.femhc.org 

Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: RE: Concerns about Frog Pond Development

 

From: Brooke Smith  
Sent: Sunday, May 10, 2015 10:05 PM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Subject: Concerns about Frog Pond Development 
 
   
To whom it may concern, 
 
I am writing to express my concerns for the future development plans of 
Frog Pond in Wilsonville, Oregon.  I am a current resident of Wilsonville 
and have lived here for 11 years.  We moved to Wilsonville because we felt 
like it was a great place to raise a family, it had a tight knit community 
feel, the ratings of the school were good, and it wasn’t congested like 
Tigard, Tualatin, Beaverton, etc…. The smallness is what made Wilsonville 
great! We have always felt like there were too many apartments in this 
town, but I understand a little diversity is good.  However, you go on to 
build more apartments. Insane!! The effects are already showing with crime 
in our neighborhoods… A recent house burglary in the middle of the 
afternoon, along with several car burglaries. One in which my husband had 
to wake up half the neighborhood yelling… trying to chase down a guy 
attempting to get into our car. The amount of beggars getting off the 
freeway has also increased.  High density brings more crime!! Are you 
raising children here in Wilsonville? Do you have families?  Or, are you 
against families?  Because I sort of feel like this is an attack on 
families! Families need yards to play in! The last set of homes you have 
added to the community are pretty much glorified town homes because they 
come with no yard! In-fact, you may as well not even put any yards in 
because they are no use to anyone!  I am not sure I understand your 
motives behind wanting to add this to our community. Are you getting paid 
under the table by land developers?  And if so, how do you sleep at night 
under such ethics???  
  
I’ve also researched recent development in the Wilsonville area, and have 
discovered higher density housing is practically taking over this 
community.  Research shows Wilsonville has already exceeded the balance of 
housing diversity, with the apartment housing having reached 55% in this 
area.  The continued development of high density housing is going to have 
an extremely negative impact on Wilsonville. It will lower the economic 
value of surrounding properties, such as mine. It will decrease the safety 
I seek for my children, it will increase transient population and already 
has, and it will become a city known for transients rather than a 
community! 

  I understand and sympathize with the concept of meeting everyone’s needs 
within their stage of life. However, I do believe 100% in balance within a 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



2

community.  With the apartment percentage/high-density housing where it is 
now, this community needs Frog Pond to cater to the lower density housing! 
Frog pond should only consist of detached, single family homes! Lots 
should go above 8000+sq ft. The lot size in Arbor Crossings should be the 
small lot size, Meadows should be the medium lot size and there should be 
somewhere to go after that- ½ acre to 1 acre…  For those people that have 
large families and have outgrown Arbor Crossings and The Meadows but can’t 
quite afford the 5-10 acres out on Stafford. 
  
Last but not least I feel strongly about not including retail in the 
future development.  Retail needs to stay out by the freeway. Retail also 
tends to bring in a lot of crime and we don’t want that by our 
neighborhoods! People can go 2 minutes into town for what they 
need.  There is absolutely no need for retail in this development!    
 
I ask that you strongly consider my thoughts. We are the long-term 
residents who want to promote long-term families to move in to this area 
and continue to build our safe, family friendly, tight-knit community. If 
you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 503-682-3277 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Brooke Smith 
 
 

Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: RE: Online Form Submittal: Frog Pond Area Plan Comments

From: Neamtzu, Chris  
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2015 4:59 PM 
To:  
Cc: Straessle, Linda 
Subject: RE: Online Form Submittal: Frog Pond Area Plan Comments 

Hello Janet, 

Thank you for your comments. 

Timelines are very difficult to anticipate at this time, particularly for the east and south neighborhoods.  Metro has 
stated that they will be delaying their decision on adding land to the UGB this year due to numerous lawsuits (a final 
decision was scheduled for the end of this year).  We do not know when they may take up this process again.  It may be 
as short as a few years out, but not required by state law for 6 years.   

The market and available infrastructure will determine the timelines for development.  For the west neighborhood, we 
could see requests for development following adoption of phase 2 of the project, which is anticipated to run well into 
2016.  The development would start generally in the southern/southwestern part of that area and would progress north 
as developers install streets, sewer and water, which would have to be extended in an orderly manner.  It would likely 
be many years before the development reached the northern portions of the west neighborhood.  The city will not 
install on‐site infrastructure (except possibly some parks) but could be involved in the perimeter roadways and off‐site 
infrastructure in the form of reservoirs, sewer pipelines and pump stations. 

I took a look at the urban and rural reserve map, your site is ‘undesignated’, which means it is not part of the 50‐year 
supply of urban land that Metro and the three counties adopted several years ago.  

As to the details of development such as roundabouts, those will require careful consideration and are part of future 
discussions.  Generally, the way it works is there are appraisals done, offers made, counter offers, negotiations and fair 
market value or above paid for any property needed for public improvements.  This is of course, and overly generalized 
description of a very complex set of negotiations.   

Let me know if there are other questions. 

Thank you, 

Chris Neamtzu, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.  

From: noreply@civicplus.com [mailto:noreply@civicplus.com]  
Sent: Sunday, May 10, 2015 5:38 PM 

Attachment F



2

To: Straessle, Linda; Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: Online Form Submittal: Frog Pond Area Plan Comments 

If you are having problems viewing this HTML email, click to view a Text version. 

Frog Pond Area Plan Comments 

First Name* 
Janet 

Last Name* 
Robertson 

Email* 

Please provide comments or questions in the box below.  
Hello, I own 15 acres on the NE side of Stafford and Kahle (Plat 0557 Turner Little 
Farms). It is right on the edge of the Frog Pond development. I have reviewed the project 
documents but I don't see a timeline for development once metro accepts the plan and 
allows the inclusion of land into the urban growth district. A couple of questions: Will 
the construction on any part of this begin once developers own the land or the right to 
develop the land? Or will the city begin installing infrastructure such as street 
improvements, sidewalks, water/sewer before a developer is brought in? Since my 
property is right on the edge of all this I am very interested in the timing and also curious 
if my property is being considered to become urban reserve. Also if a round-a-bout is 
constructed at Stafford and Kahle, will it take a piece of my property and how is that 
handled? Thanks, Janet Robertson 

If your comment is specific to a certain map or document, please include a reference to it so we 
can best respond. 

Thank you for participating. 

The following form was submitted via your website: Frog Pond Area Plan Comments 

Attachment F



1

From: Cosgrove, Bryan  
Sent: Thursday, April 30, 2015 9:11 AM 
To: 'Roger & Carmen Hulbert' 
Subject: RE: Frog Pond Development 

Roger and Carmen, 

Thank you for your email. I will make sure your comments are included in the record as we move forward. In response to 
some of your concerns, the Frog Pond West area is currently in the Urban Reserves, while the Advance Road area is in limbo 
due to litigation surrounding the Clackamas County portion of Rural Reserves, which includes Advance Rd and the Stafford 
area. The current recommendations for Frog Pond West is make the area 100 percent single‐family detached housing with no 
commercial or multi‐family units being proposed. The current concept for lot sizes in Frog Pond West calls for lot sizes 
between 3,500‐9,000 square feet. At a recent Council work session, there was Council consensus to bring the single‐family to 
multi‐family ratio back into balance. There are several factors that drive single‐family lot sizes: cost of infrastructure, return on 
investment, cost of raw land, and consumer desires to name a few. In terms of timing, I like to remind folks that the Villebois 
development began over 17 years ago, and it is only 60 percent built out. These large scale developments are costly, time 
consuming, extremely complex and do not happen overnight. 

Finally, the city is mandated by the state of Oregon to have a 20‐year supply of residential land within our urban growth 
boundary. What we are doing right now is engaging in responsible planning for the next 20 years of orderly growth and 
development with the ultimate goal of providing needed housing for the 1500 acres of employment land between Tualatin 
and Wilsonville in the Coffee Creek and Basalt Creek areas. I encourage your continued involvement as the planning for Frog 
Pond moves forward. Thank you again for reaching out, and please feel free to email me with any additional 
concerns/questions. 

Best Regards,  
Bryan Cosgrove, 
City Manager 

503.570.1504 (office) 
cosgrove@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
29799 SW Town Center Loop  
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 

DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law. 

From: Roger & Carmen Hulbert  
Sent: Thursday, April 30, 2015 8:07 AM 
To: Cosgrove, Bryan 
Subject: Frog Pond Development 

April 30, 2015 

Bryan Cosgrove 
City Manager 
29799 SW Town Center Loop East 
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 

Dear Mr. Cosgrove, 

Thank you for your service to the Wilsonville community.  My wife and I are homeowners in Wilsonville and selected the area due to the 
family friendly community we found when house hunting. We appreciate the opportunity to let you know our opinion regarding the Frog Pond 
Development.  

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle

straessle
Line



2

1. We are concerned at the rate in which high density developing has happened in Wilsonville and the negative impact it has had on our
schools, quality of family life and economic impact on our home value. 

2. In speaking with realtors, it is our understanding that there is a high demand for single family detached homes on larger lots allowing
for children to play in their own yards.   

3. We are a part of the aging population and would love to see more one-level homes, larger lots and garages without alleys.  The alley
concept seems that it would be difficult to navigate for many reasons.  We are currently in a two story and will be looking for the one-
level living as we reach the age of no longer able to navigate a two story. 

4. As we approach this development, it seems as though Wilsonville’s housing diversity is already out of balance (55% apartments)
and adding more high density development will negatively impact the quality of life and home values of the Wilsonville community.   

We urge you to protect our quality of life in Wilsonville. Thank you again for taking time to consider our opinion regarding this very 
important matter.   

Sincerely, 

Roger & Carmen Hulbert 

Attachment F



1

From: Neamtzu, Chris
Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2015 9:40 AM
To: Straessle, Linda
Subject: FW: Frog Pond Area Plan

From: Liz Ciz
Sent: Sunday, April 12, 2015 9:40 PM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: Frog Pond Area Plan 

Hello Chris, 
I would like to make a few comments concerning the Frog Pond Neighborhood Plan.   
1. When this project was first introduced to the community it was presented as a plan where the community
could make suggestions and have input.  As the plan progressed, and to this day, I do not see that any 
suggestions requested by members of the community has been considered by the Frog Pond Area 
planners.  Not one.  How is it that we are asked to give our suggestions and none have been put forward?   
2. One of the biggest problems I see is the use of 60th Ave. as an access road for the school and park.  Many
of the folks on 60th Ave. have no intention of selling and moving away.  My neighbors and I are upset and 
confused that at one meeting it appears 60th Ave. will remain as it is, with the school and park traffic using 
internal roads, and then at another meeting there are plans to widen 60th Ave. and use it as an access road for 
the school and park.  This would greatly impact the neighborhood causing increased traffic and congestion.   
I hope you will consider the communities request to keep the school and park traffic within the UGB Area. 
Thank you for you time. 
Sincerely, 
Liz Ciz 

Attachment F



1

 Subject:

FW: Facebook comment regarding Frog Pond

From: Gail, Jon  
Sent: Monday, April 13, 2015 8:27 AM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris; Bateschell, Miranda 
Subject: Facebook comment regarding Frog Pond 

FYI.  We got this comment on our Facebook page after Friday’s reminder post about the Frog Pond survey.  I let her know that I would 
share the comment with you two. 

Elizabeth McCord Hoping the survey and feedback from the community is truly considered and that this is not all smoke & mirrors to 
just push through what city councillors & some developers "want" $$$ 
.........if I wanted to live in Tigard, Tualatin, or Beaverton - we would have moved there. 

Jon 

Jon C. Gail 
Community Relations Coordinator 
City of Wilsonville 
29799 SW Town Center Loop East 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 
General: 503‐682‐1011 
Direct: 503‐570‐1502 
Mobile: 503‐730‐6450 
Email: gail@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
Web: www.ci.wilsonville.or.us 

DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E‐mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law.  

Attachment F



1

From: William Ciz  
Sent: Friday, April 10, 2015 2:51 PM 
To: bbc@dksassociates.com 
Cc: Elizabeth Ciz; Andrew Parish (aparish@angeloplanning.com); jdills@angeloplanning.com; Neamtzu, Chris; Bateschell, 
Miranda; Scott Mansur; Straessle, Linda 
Subject: RE: Frog Pond Concept Plan 

Hi Brad‐ Thanks for providing the project teams position on the road classification for 60th Ave at the open house last 
week.  I would like to provide some additional comments on the road classification for 60th Ave. Until the open house 
last week I was under the impression that based on Chris’s email below that 60th Ave and the new entrance to the school 
and park site were both reclassified as local framework streets. I attend both the January 22nd City Council and Planning 
Committee Workshop and the March 18th Task Force meeting and was told the maps were not updated so I assumed 
that the idea of 60th Ave as a local framework street was in the concept plan. At the open house I saw the concept plan 
transportation map with 60th Ave was classified as a collector for about 1000 feet along the school property. This 
surprised me. You explained in more detail that the team’s thoughts were that 60th needed to be a collector, along the 
school and park frontage, primarily because of the school and park traffic, the street would have to handle in the future 
along with the new urban development in the south neighborhood. I believe the school and park traffic will mostly use 
the local framework street (the school driveway) from Advance Rd to enter and leave the school and park. This would 
split the future school and park traffic demand between to access points (school and park local framework street and 
60th Ave). Additional 60th Ave would have to handle about 70 acres of residential development in the South 
neighborhood. 
In my December email to Chris below I highlighted my reasoning why 60th Ave should not be a collector. I still think 60th 
Ave should be classified as a local framework and would like the project team to reevaluate the collector classification. 
Here are a couple of additional observations that I think support 60th Ave as a local framework: 

1. As I said above I believe the majority of traffic to the school and park site will be on the local framework street
off Advanced Rd. This reduces the future travel demand and volumes on 60th Ave

2. When you compare the size (in acres) and development potential of westerly part of the West neighborhood it
is about the same size in area and development potential as all of the South neighborhood including the school
and park site. So overall traffic demand should be about the same for both areas with just different traffic
peaking  characteristics for the school/park site. Note that the westerly part of the West neighborhood is served
by local framework streets connecting to a new north/south collector.

3. As you know the only portion of the South neighborhood that is inside the UGB is the school and park site
which I believe will be starting land use approves and design review for the new middle school very soon. I and
my neighbors are concerned that if 60th is classified a collector it could affect the use of the street by the school
and park site in the short term (1‐10 years) which would impact our quality of life with more traffic and traffic
noise on the street. We believe that 60th Ave as local framework street, with a smaller footprint, would be a
better neighbor while we wait for our properties to be included into the UGB by Metro and for economic
conditions to warrant development.

4. I believe you mentioned that city access requirements for properties adjacent to local framework streets are
different than for collectors. I think you told me property access along local framework streets can be from
multiple points while collectors require property access from one point per property. If you look at the sizes of
the properties along the portion of 60th Ave that is currently classified as a collector, you find 4 properties in the
one‐two acre size and 1 five acre parcel. While nobody can predict how development will occur on these
properties in the future having 60th Ave as a local framework street will provide more flexibility for development
of our properties in the future.

Please review my email and reasoning with the project team and let me know if you are willing to change your 
recommendation of 60th Ave as a collector to the Planning Commission and the City Council. Let me know if you have 
any questions or need further clarification. 

Attachment F



2

Also one last thing. You mentioned or asked me what I thought of a roundabout at the intersection of 60th Ave and 
Advance Road. After I thought about it for a while I think it is a great idea. A roundabout at this location could provide an
excellent gateway into future Wilsonville from rural Clackamas County. It would be a great transition between urban and 
rural lands. I think the real plus is that it would slow traffic down for both the school and park activity zones. Right now 
traffic speeds on Advance Rd are in the 50mph range. I think it would also slow traffic down east of the roundabout.  
Thanks for your time last week discussing these issues. 
Bill 

William Ciz 

From: Neamtzu, Chris [mailto:neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us]  
Sent: Friday, December 19, 2014 4:10 PM 
To: William Ciz; jdills@angeloplanning.com 
Cc: Elizabeth Ciz; Andrew Parish (aparish@angeloplanning.com); AICP Becky Hewitt (rhewitt@angeloplanning.com); 
Bateschell, Miranda; Scott Mansur; Straessle, Linda 
Subject: RE: Frog Pond Concept Plan 

Hello Bill, 

Thank you for taking time to provide your comments on the draft plans, your expertise and knowledge in these areas is 
very valuable to the project.  

The consultant team is taking a close look at the street classifications, we are in agreement that the collector may not be 
warranted on 60th, DKS will confirm and adjustments will be made in the next set of revisions.  I like the idea of a 
framework street in this area, it is really about safe movement to and from the school and park.   

Regarding the trail to the west of the school, it is common practice for new schools to have paved trails basically encircle 
the campus for recreational purposes.  The plans to date show only the major connections (many from the city’s 
TSP/bike ped plan), there will be many more smaller connections throughout the area.  Also, the park design will need to 
be thought of as the school is being designed so they are integrated.   

The area referenced south of Barber in Villebois is outside of the right of way in a private tract dedicated by the 
developer.  The meandering paths are attractive and could be a good buffer as you have identified.  I do know there are 
concerns about mixing bikes and peds on a single path, however the volumes in this area are likely to be relatively low 
reducing potential conflicts.  These are really site design issues that will need to be taken up with the school district.  The 
Lowrie property is a bit of an unknown and as you know is not currently part of the UGB.  I am not sure if you envision 
the trail going around this piece, or across the front.  The consultants have pulled the trail away from the northern part 
of the creek near Landover where the riparian canyon is thinner and have emphasized the future driveway off of 
Advance west of 60th.  Until there is a more detailed school/park site plan, all of the lines are very generalized and will be 
refined as the site planning process begins.       

In response to the question about the future driveway off of Advance to the school and park being a framework street 
and how that affects your property I offer the following.  In the 2010 concept plan for  the school site that was created, 
there was a driveway connection to 60th north of the Lowrie site that corresponds pretty closely to your north property 
line.  There was also the connection to the very south end of the school site.  It would seem a given that the school site 
will be developed with perimeter sidewalks and an internal circulation network.  I am not sure I see a direct impact. 
Perhaps you can describe more of what you are thinking there and I can take a look. 

Attachment F



3

I hope some of this information is helpful to you, Bill. Again, I want to thank you for providing your ideas and adding 
value to the TF and project. 
Please let me know what other questions there may be. 

Happy Holiday’s to you and your family. 

Thank you, 

Chris Neamtzu, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

From: William Ciz
Sent: Wednesday, December 10, 2014 2:04 PM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris; jdills@angeloplanning.com 
Cc: Elizabeth Ciz 
Subject: Frog Pond Concept Plan 

Chris and Joe‐ After the meeting last week I started to think about your comments on 60th being a collector street and 
the new street or access road from Advance Road into the school and park site being designated in the plan as a new 
local framework street.  
First some comments on 60th designated a collector. It seems to me that designating a road as a collector is about the 
type and amount of traffic that use the road now and will be using the road in the future and what type of uses the road 
would connect to now and in the future. The collectors in the west neighborhood make sense because they connect the 
whole neighbor to Stafford and Boeckman roads and to future UR land north of the power lines. The collectors in the 
east neighborhood make sense because they connect the whole neighbor to Stafford and Advance roads. 60th as a 
collector in the south neighborhood connects existing rural properties (about 12 houses outside the UR) and the South 
neighborhood to Advance Road but to nothing else. There are no future plans for any of the rural properties to urbanize 
and the amount of development capacity in the South neighborhood is less than the other two neighborhoods. Also 
some of the existing rural properties can use 53rd to get to Advance Road.  So in my quick evaluation 60th does not 
warrant collector status, it is more like a local framework street. At the meeting you also brought up that having 60th as a 
collector would mean that the street would be wider and have bike lanes. A solution that I would like to propose is to 
classify 60th as a Local Framework Street and move the location of the trail from the west property line of the school and 
park site to the east property line of the school and park site on the west side of 60th. This would move the trail away 
from the neighbors in Landover per comment letter and would also provide a buffer for current and future residential 
uses along 60th from the school and park uses and activities (noise and light..etc). The design of the trail along 60th could 
look something like the wide setback sidewalk along Grahams Ferry south of the new Barber St roundabout. From the 
Advance Road/60th intersection the trail could continue east along the north or south side of Advance Road and connect 
to the BPA Easement trail. Let me know what you think of this idea. 
Regarding the new street or access road into the school and park site being shown in the plan as a new local framework 
street. I would like to get some additional detail so I could understand how it might affect my property in both the long 
and short term. Since the school site will be the first to develop I would like to get a sense of what this might mean.  
Thanks for your great work. 

Bill  

Attachment F



1

From: Neamtzu, Chris
Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 9:29 AM
To: Dr. Shari Melton
Cc: Straessle, Linda
Subject: RE: Frog Pond Development Plan

Thank you, Dr. Melton, the city appreciates your comments.  They will be entered into the record for the decision 
makers consideration as part of the review process. 

There is an on‐line survey that you could complete to provide additional information 
(www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/FrogPond).   
The draft plan at this time does not include any multi‐family housing (apartments, condos, senior housing) and the west 
neighborhood is entirely single‐family detached housing on a variety of lot sizes.  

Thanks again, 

Chris Neamtzu, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  

DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.  

From: Dr. Shari Melton 
Sent: Sunday, April 05, 2015 8:11 PM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: Frog Pond Development Plan 

Chris Neamtzu  
City of Wilsonville Planning Director 

Dear Chris, 
Unfortunately, I was unable to attend the open house on April 2nd but wanted to provide some 
feedback on the proposed Frog Pond Development plan. I have lived in Wilsonville for about 12 years 
and am a homeowner in the Landover neighborhood. I have two main concerns about the plan as I 
understand it. The first is that I would like limited multi-family dwellings (no more than 10% of the 
overall residential area) so as not to overwhelm this area with a dense population that would 
significantly increase the noise and congestion in our neighborhood. The second is that I would prefer 
a plan that offers a variety of single-family home lots with integrated green spaces so as to maintain 
the beauty and livability of this area. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this feedback. 

Sincerely, 
Dr. Shari Melton  

Attachment F



1

Straessle, Linda

Subject: FW: 7070 Frog Pond Lane
Attachments: Frog Pond Co-Housing.pptx

 

From: Neamtzu, Chris  
Sent: Monday, April 06, 2015 2:16 PM 
To: Joe Dills (jdills@angeloplanning.com); Andrew Parish (aparish@angeloplanning.com); Ken Pirie 
Cc: Straessle, Linda 
Subject: FW: 7070 Frog Pond Lane 
 
Gents,  
 
Attached is a presentation I received from a FP property owner/task force member, Amy Thurmond. 
We will need to keep co‐housing and cluster/cottage housing design in mind and have a strategy going into phase 2  
 
Thanks, 
 

Chris Neamtzu, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.  

 

From: Amy Thurmond  
Sent: Friday, April 03, 2015 1:34 PM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: Re: 7070 Frog Pond Lane 
 
Perfect. See you then. Here is the rough draft powerpoint presentation I put together. The main question from 
the project manager at SOJ was would the City recommend individual lots or condominium development. It 
may be too early to say--trying to be proactive! 
 

 
On Fri, Apr 3, 2015 at 1:26 PM, Neamtzu, Chris <neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us> wrote: 

Hello Amy, 

 How about 3 PM next Friday (4.8.15)? 

Other times could work as well, please let me know. 

I look forward to seeing your work. 

Thank you, 

Attachment F

straessle
Rectangle



2

Chris Neamtzu, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.   

From: Amy Thurmond]  
Sent: Friday, April 03, 2015 1:24 PM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: Re: 7070 Frog Pond Lane 

 My ideas seem consistent with the recent 85 page task force presentation. Could I schedule a time to meet with 
you and confirm that and see how I might best proceed? Fridays for me are usually totally open, and then other 
times here and there if needed. 

On Thu, Mar 12, 2015 at 8:53 AM, Neamtzu, Chris <neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us> wrote: 

Amy, 

I would be very pleased to be able to meet with you and discuss your development concepts.  I am going to be on spring 
break vacation for two weeks, is there any chance you can wait until April?  If not, you could meet with Miranda in my 
absence, she is Katie’s replacement. I have cc’d her for convenience. 

Thank you, Amy. 

Chris Neamtzu, AICP 
Planning Director 
City of Wilsonville | Community Development Department 
503‐570‐1574 | neamtzu@ci.wilsonville.or.us  
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this Email address may be subject to the Oregon  Public Records Law.  

From: Amy Thurmond  
Sent: Wednesday, March 11, 2015 7:22 AM 
To: Neamtzu, Chris 
Subject: 7070 Frog Pond Lane 
  
I am working with Shiels, Obletz and Johnsen and have a rough draft for a planned community involving my 
property and possibly my neighbors on Frog Pond Lane. I know it is early but I would like to review this with 
you some basic concepts, including whether it would best be categorized as condominiums or separate lot lines. 
This is something I had discussed with Katy Mangle before she left and she thought it was something the City 
would support. Thanks so much. 
 

Attachment F



5/29/2015

1

Frog Pond Co-Housing
rough draft

Amy Thurmond
March 2015

7070 Frog Pond Lane

Attachment F



5/29/2015

2

New street access 
planned by Wilsonville

210’

858’

Trees to save:
Pine and Oak

barn

Attachment F



5/29/2015

3

210’

858’

M
as

te
r 

be
d 

an
d 

ba
th Ki

tc
he

n 
an

d 
D

in
in

g

Attachment F



5/29/2015

4

Master bed and bath

Kitchen 
and Dining

48’ wide x 53’ deep

http://www.houseplans.com/plan/1380-square-feet-3-
bedrooms-2-bathroom-ranch-house-plans-2-garage-33475

Cottages

http://www.hous
eplans.com/plan/
2693-square-feet-
3-bedrooms-2-5-
bathroom-
contemporary-
house-plans-0-
garage-32304

This side towards Frog Pond Lane

This side towards Community

Laundry

Common House

Attachment F



5/29/2015

5

210’

858’

Features:
2700 sq’ Common House
with 770 sq’ kitchen-
dining-meeting room, laundry,
workshop, office, 
3 guest rooms, covered front
and back porches,
Adjacent guest parking

2400 sq’ garden with walkways
2000 sq’ chicken yard and 
additional outbuildings if needed

24 individual 1380sq’ Homes
with 3 bedrooms
2 baths, kitchen facing central 
strolling area, private covered
back patio, 2 car garage and
driveway access, covered front
porch

 Make a sound real estate investment

 Enjoy farm life with others

 Share the beauty of chickens and gardens as well as the upkeep

 Own a smaller home, and have access to a bigger chicken coop and garden

 Time previously spent on housework and weeding will be reduced, and spent with 
friends, children, and grandchildren

 Garden bounty, recipes and cooking expertise will be appreciated through 
community dinners, probably two or three a week

 Decision-making on community affairs through committees composed of a 
minimum of 3 people, depending on level of interest:
chickens & pets, garden & grounds, common house & shared meals, accounting 
and legal, dispute resolution

 Common house and spaces co-designed by owners

Attachment F



5/29/2015

6

 Collected rainwater for garden

 Solar power

 Eco-roof (like Multnomah County Library)

 Shared transportion: bikes, van, recycled school bus

 Root cellars, sky lights

 State of the art insulation: thermal and sound

Attachment F



 
Note:  Complete Petition documents located in the Frog Pond Area Plan Planning File 

 
 

 
 

   

Attachment F



 
 

   
 

 
   

Attachment F



 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
   

Attachment F



 
 

   
 

 

 

Attachment F



 
   

 
 

     
 

 
   

Attachment F



 

 
 
 

 
   

Attachment F



 
 

    
 

 
 
 
 

 
   

Attachment F



 
 

      
 

 
   

Attachment F



 

    
 

 
 
   

Attachment F



 

   
 

 
 

 
   

Attachment F



 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

Attachment F



 

     

     
   

Attachment F



 

   

   
   

Attachment F



 

 
 

 
   

Attachment F



 

       

 

None Given

Attachment F



 
 

 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION  
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 10, 2015 

 
 

 

 

 
VI. WORK SESSIONS 

B. Transportation Performance Modeling  – Preliminary 
Look (Adams) 

 

Documents are to be distributed at the meeting 
  



 
 

 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION  
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 10, 2015 

 
 

 

 

 
 
VIII. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. 2015 Planning Commission Work Program 



 2015 Annual Planning Commission Work Program

Informational Work Sessions Public Hearings

June 10
Basalt Creek Concept 

Plan Update  

Frog Pond Area Plan

Transportation Performance 
Modeling-Preliminary Look  

July 8

Frog Pond Area Plan

Coffee Creek Industrial Area
Form-based Code           

Basalt Creek Concept Plan

Transportation Performance 
Modeling

August 12 Frog Pond Area Plan

           2015

1  Asset Management Plan

2  Basalt Creek Concept Planning

6  Citywide signage and way finding program

7  Coffee Creek Industrial Area Form-Based Code

5  Density Inconsistency Code Amendments

11  French Prairie Bike/Ped Bridge

8  Frog Pond Area Plan

9  Old Town Code Amendments

10  Parks & Rec MP Update - Recreation Center

3 Solid Waste and Recycling Code Amendments 

12 Transit Master Plan

13 Transportation Performance Modeling

*Projects in bold are being actively worked on in preparation for future worksessions

DATE
AGENDA ITEMS

2015

 6/3/2015


	5.29.15 cullen letter
	5.26.15 Laue email string with Pahlisch ltr
	5.22.15 Budiao Web email string
	5.22.15 Luiten email to talk2pc
	5.21.15 Wolfston email
	5.20.15 Reiter email to Bryan
	5.19.15 Budiao Web comment & Chris Response
	5.16.15 Hight email
	5.16.15 Skipper email to Bryan
	5.15.15 Bowles Ltr to Bryan
	5.14.15 C. Wilson email
	5.13.15 B & J Burns ltr to Bryan
	5.13.15 Vedack & Cosgrove Followup emails
	5.12.15 Goodwin email
	5.12.15 Grano letter to Bryan
	5.12.15 McKnight email
	5.12.15 Newbold email
	5.11.15 Courtney email to Bryan C
	5.11.15 McClelland email to Bryan C.
	5.11.15 Vedack & Cosgrove email string
	5.10.15 Brooke Smith emai to Bryan
	5.10.15 Robertson web comment
	4.30.15 Hulbert.Cosgrove email string
	4.16.15 Liz Ciz email
	4.13.15 E. McCord facebook posting
	4.10.15 Bill Ciz email string
	4.6.15 Melton email with Chris response
	4.6.15 Thurmond & Chris email string with Ppt



